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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading operator in
providing integrated facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services in south China for
petroleum and liquid chemicals products, offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms (the “terminal storage business”), trading of oil and petrochemical products (the “trading business")
and operating and leasing of a filling station related business (the “other business”).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

BUSINESS REVIEW

Terminal Storage Business

The Group owns and operates a liquid product terminal, namely
Dongzhou Petrochemical Terminal (“DZIT") carried out by
Dongguan Dongzhou International Petrochemical Storage Limited
("DZ International”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company. DZIT
is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian county,
Dongguan city, Guangdong province, the PRC, with a site area
of approximately 516,000 square metres. It was built with berths
ranging from 500 to 100,000 dwt and is installed with 94 oil and
petrochemical tanks of a total storage capacity of approximately
260,000 cubic metres, out of which 180,000 cubic metres are for
gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum products commonly available
in trading and consumption markets. Storage tanks with capacity of
80,000 cubic metres were built for petrochemical products.

The Group tried its best to tap into market potentials and to
diversify its terminal storage business to generate more revenue and
maximize shareholders’ value with utilisation of spare capacity from
jetties and vacant land of DZIT. In 2022, the Group actively discussed
with the different stakeholders on DZIT second phase development
about modification of the existing jetty and construction of a
liguefied natural gas (“LNG") storage tanks and LNG related facilities
in the vacant land of approximately 150,000 square meters, in order
to expedite the approval progress from the local government. As at
the reporting date, the application approval is still in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRIN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR + BHEZHERIN)

Strategic Location

The liquid product terminal of the Group is located in the Greater
Bay Area. As Guangdong province is the pioneer in economic
development of China and our terminal situates in the centre of
the economic circle of the province, such location edge attracts
customers to engage with our terminal for their distribution of
refined oils. Apart from oil products customers, there are customers
who have manufacturing plants in the Greater Bay Area. In their
business cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their
dangerous, poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled
facilities with proper licences in accordance with governmental
regulations for safety and environment reasons. The customers may
store their hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods in our storage facilities. Our terminal employs experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
features storage hardware. The Group persistently maintain high
standards in safety and environment protection. Our terminal is
fully and properly licensed to handle wide range of dangerous
and hazardous goods. We provide convenience to our customers
to move their products in and out of the terminal during their
production cycle.

Revenue from Terminal Storage Business

The terminal earns storage income by leasing its storage tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size and category engaged.
Furthermore, the terminal collects handling charges when providing
services in moving cargoes in and out from the terminal for
customers, either by water in the jetties or by road from the loading
stations. Apart from these, the terminal provides ancillary services
such as tank cleaning and charges related fees for the services
rendered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA#TTHIR + BETERAERSIN)

Key Performance Indicators

The leaseout rates and cargo throughput are the major key
performance indicators of the terminals. Assume that the unit rate
remains the same, higher leaseout rate should return with higher
storage income. More cargoes flows mean more works in the
terminals thus more handling fee income. The leaseout rates and
cargo throughput of DZIT during the last two years are as follows:

Operational statistics

EELTBT

IERBER
HEXRREEERBHENTERRER -
BREVBRAFIAE  HEXDS - &
FRABHEK - HEEVZEREHH
THEEERX  AERFEBATES - 1
BEMEFE  RMNALENHEXREE
BEWT

Liquid product terminal and REERBEER

transshipment services Hig R
Number of vessels visited SHEMERE
— foreign — Mt 69 95 -27.4
— domestic — 7K 705 666 +59
Number of trucks served to pick up BBy SHEEE

cargoes 41,512 64,634 -35.8
Number of drums filled EREE 11,919 16,462 -27.6
Transshipment volume (metric ton) @S (ANE)
- ol —Hf 54,557 25,071 +117.6
— petrochemicals —fitm 91,663 49,777 +84.1
Terminal throughput (metric ton) ERANE(ARE) 3,295,000 4,165,000 -20.9
- port jetty throughput — AT E 2,257,000 2,632,000 -142
— loading station throughput —-RELRME 1,038,000 1,533,000 -323
Storage services 17 RS
Leaseout rate - oil and AR ARk

petrochemical products (%) BICER(%) 97.5 97.8  -0.3 pointsZ

The major operational statistics of DZIT was challenged by some
external factors, including the consumption tax on some oil and
petrochemical products imposed by China government since
2021, temporary closures of workplaces and lockdowns in several
cities across China in early 2022 due to continued pandemic and
high volatility of oil price during the year that caused the certain
customers of DZIT to reduce its production and operating capacity.
As a result, the number of foreign vessels visited, number of trucks
served to pick up cargoes and terminal throughput decreased
by 27.4%, 35.8% and 20.9% respectively over the last year.
Nevertheless, the average leaseout rate for oil and petrochemical
tanks still achieved as high as 97.5% during the year, slightly
dropped by 0.3 percentage points over last year. As the epidemic
gradually stabilised, anti-Covid measures for isolation requirement
have been removed across the world. We do believe that our
terminal storage business will gradually return to normal track.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WATTHIR + BEFERRERRSIN)

Trading Business

The Group operates in trading of oil and petrochemical products
carried out in the PRC (including Hong Kong) and has long term
cooperative relationship with major energy companies such as
CNOOC, Sinopec and Sinochem etc.

The strategy of the Group’s trading business is to expand the
customers base to the end customers of filling stations by prioritizing
supply the petrol and diesel to the filling stations through signing of
key fuel supply agreements, and providing the brand management
services, thereby enhancing the unit profit from the trading business.

The operational statistics of trading business during the last two
years are as follows:

Operational statistics
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Number of sale contracts entered B EESRHE
Sales volume of oil and petrochemical R ACEREE
products (metric ton) (M)

The pandemic has lasted for more than three years and has a
certain impact on the Group's trading business. Coupled with China
government has levied consumption tax on some refined oil products
such as light cycle oil, mixed aromatics and diluted asphalt since
June 2021, on top of that, as China strengthened the supervision
of taxation on the upstream and downstream distribution of refined
oil products, the market price became more transparent, the price
difference between the north and the south shrank and high
volatility of crude oil price during the year, prompting the Group
to reduce the number of sale contracts entered and sale volume in
order to minimize the uncertainty of external environment towards
our trading business. During the year, number of sales contracts
entered and sales volume of oil and petrochemical products
dropped by 37.6% and 74.1% respectively as compared to last
year. In order to improve unit profit, the Group has taken proactive
measures to vigorously develop and expand the customer base to
the end customers of filling stations, which not only facilitated the
business operations to bring into play the advantages of centralized
procurement, reduced procurement cost and gained stable profit
through the way of centralized procurement, retail and wholesale,
but also helped to enhance the market risk resistance and obtain
higher profit by leveraging on market price fluctuation. As the
pandemic slows down, the Group will actively expand the customer’s
base and business scale, and increase the volume of trading activities
to enhance the Group’s profits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR « BHEFHBAERIN)

Other Business

The Group owns a filling station which is situated in Zengcheng
district, Guangzhou city, the PRC with a site area of approximately
12,500 square metres. Its floor area, fuel island configuration,
equipment level and construction standards all meet the standards
of local flagship filling stations. In August 2021, the Group leased
out this filling station to an independent third party for rental
income by signing of key fuel supply agreements and providing the
brand management. The Group actively expands its share of the
refined oil retail market by increasing its business segments through
various means, including but not limited to leasing, signing of key
fuel supply agreement and providing brand management services.
Currently, there are nine filling stations under the brand “Hans
Energy” located across Guangdong Province and Guangxi Province
in the PRC.

To diversify the business of the Group and to increase the Group's
source of revenue, the Group has been seeking various development
opportunities to broaden the Group’s revenue base. The Group will
continue its established business diversification strategies, operating
a traditional business while expanding to the other business sectors.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WATTHIR + BEFERRERRSIN)

SEGMENT REVENUE 2 EUA

During the year, the Group manages its operations by three existing R » Z"EB AR =TERE()E 5 %5
reportable segment revenue from the business of (i) trading, (i)  (ii5IEAEEETE + AR(iNE b 2K H AT
terminal storage and (iii) other business. The breakdown is as  H2OEUAEITEIE - BAAD T T -
follows:

F
% Change %
% 1%
Trading business ER%HK
Sales of oil and petrochemical  $5% 3 & R A (L E
products 543,625 78.2 1,791,052 90.7 -69.6

Terminal storage business BEEARER

Storage income FEA 113,588 16.4 128,011 6.5 -113
Handling income and others  #Z{EUA K Efty 29,901 43 37,627 1.9 -20.5
Transshipment income 2 RIS WA 1,368 0.2 762 0.0 +79.5
Port income BOUA 774 0.1 1,578 0.1 -51.0
Other business Hih#d

Revenue from operating and  £84 & HH8 A0 b
leasing of a filling station =l 730N
related business 5,595 0.8 15,737 0.8 -64.4

694,851 100.0 1,974,767 100.0 -64.8

m HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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EEENWRDN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR + BAEHERIN)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a
total revenue of $694.9 million, a significant decrease of 64.8% as
compared to the last year, and of which revenue from sale of oil and
petrochemical products, provision of terminal, storage transshipment
activities for liquid chemicals products and rental income from a
filling station was $543.6 million (accounting for 78.2% to the
Group's total revenue), $145.6 million (accounting for 21.0% to the
Group's total revenue) and $5.6 million (accounting for 0.8% to the
Group's total revenue) respectively, a decrease of 69.6%, 13.3%
and 64.4% respectively on an annual basis. The decrease of trading
revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in the number of
sales contracts entered and sales volume of oil and petrochemical
products during the year as a result from the consumption tax on
some refined oil and petrochemical products imposed by China
government since June 2021 that increased the costs and dampened
the customer demand. In addition to the impact of the consumption
tax on the trading business, temporary closures of workplaces and
lockdowns in some cities across China at the beginning of the
year due to the pandemic not only hindered the volume of trading
activities, but also affected the financial performance of terminal
storage business in 2022. The Directors believe that, as the global
is gradually returning to normal, the Group’s financial performance
will be recovered with various proactive measures being taken such
as introduction of new customers and initiation the DZIT second
phase development. On top of that, the Group's filling station was
leased out to an independent third party for rental income instead
of revenue from operating a filling station from August 2021, the
rental income from a filling station for the year ended 31 December
2022 was $5.6 million while the revenue from operating and leasing
of a filling station was totally $15.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, of which the rental income of $2.4 million has
been reclassified from other income to revenue to conform with the
current year’s presentation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRIN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR + BHEZHERIN)

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, as China lifts its stringent control
measures, the world basically emerged from the shadow of the
pandemic, bringing a stable social environment for business
operations. However, internationally, the ongoing impact of
the Russia-Ukraine war and global inflation have brought many
uncertainties to the development of the Company. In 2022, the
Group continued to implement the business development strategy
from last year by stabilizing the terminal storage business, controlling
trade risks and actively seeking the approval of DZIT second phase
development, while allocating more resources to tap into the new
energy industry.

Building on its stable existing customers and product varieties, DZ
International will focus on attracting customers engaged in new
energy products (such as biodiesel) business to better face the
challenges in the future development of new energy industry and
complement the Group's transformation to the new energy industry.

In 2023, the Group's refined oil trading will make better use of the
resources of DZIT to drive trading activities by storage business. It
brings more customers to use oil terminals through trading activities.
Regarding the filling stations retail business, the Group strives to
increase franchised filling stations under the brand "Hans Energy" to
expand its share in the retail market.

Shaking off the constraint of the three-year pandemic and
stringent control measures, it is expected that the DZIT second
phase development regarding construction of the LNG tanks and
modification of terminal will have a substantial progress in terms
of approval in 2023. DZ International will definitely step into a new
stage of development.

In 2023, the Group will continue to pursue a diversified investment
strategy. At the beginning of 2022, the Company increased its
holdings in Bravo Transport Holdings Limited (“BTHL") (with Citybus
Limited (“Citybus”) and New World First Bus Services Limited
("NWFB") as its subsidiaries) and had achieved good returns as at
the year end, it indicates that the Group's diversified investment
strategy is getting positive sign of success. The Group will keep an
eye on local and overseas investment projects with strong cash flows
and relatively high returns.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WA#TTHIR + BETERAERSIN)

As a traditional energy company, the Group attaches great
importance to emission reduction and environmental issues and has
pioneered the investment of the hydrogen energy industry chain in
Hong Kong. In combination with the introduction of hydrogen fuel
cell buses by Citybus, the Group will invest in the construction of a
hydrogen filling station in Hong Kong to support the operation of
its hydrogen fuel cell buses. In addition, the Company will cooperate
with local and overseas leading companies and institutions in the
hydrogen energy industry to study and explore various technologies
applicable to the environment in Hong Kong, such as hydrogen
energy production, storage, transportation and application, thereby
ensuring an advantageous position for the Group in the future
development of the hydrogen energy industry chain in Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s financial
performance are set out as below:

Revenue WA
Direct costs and operating expenses BERAREE
Gross profit EA
Earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT")  Br BF4AT@FI([EBIT))
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH
Finance costs BIHE AR
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation Fr#F| 8 ~ I8 « TEK
and amortisation ("EBITDA") H3ERTE A ([EBITDA])
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%)
Net profit/(loss) margin (%) wF, CFER)E(%)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per BREANEE
share (cents) BH,/(B#E) (L)

—E-FFR EDERERAT

ﬂzﬁ!{ﬁéﬁﬁb/ N RNEE D ERRG
RRZE  URAEFBRADERER
i o #%éﬁlﬂ%l“i’—:\%ﬁljji REE K
ERBREER —EMSY - UESGHES
BEELTHEE - thS - REHEBEAIT

EREMRBMEEAIE - HREMEKE
REGAASRIBHHNTERI - FF
BRMNERSRN  AEDEEERKE
B EAEE RIRIERR T B B ML

B A5 BB
BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HIF%E -
REBWMEREETIAT -

Changes

2%

%

%

694,851 1,974,767 -64.8
(601,234) (1,867,945) -67.8
93,617 106,822 -124
55,358 46,780 +18.3
56,930 76,227 -253
51,924 54,934 -55
112,288 123,007 -8.7
13.5 5.4 +8.1 points
0.2 -0.7 +0.9 points

0.01 (0.41) +102.4
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Revenue and gross profit margin

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately $694.9
million (2021: $1,974.8 million), representing a decrease of 64.8%
over the last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from trading of oil and petrochemical products
by 69.6%. During the year, the gross profit was approximately
$93.6 million (2021: $106.8 million), a decrease of 12.4% over
the last year but gross profit margin was 13.5%, increased by 8.1
percentage points on a yearly basis. The decrease in gross profit was
mainly attributable to the reducing trading activities during the year.
Nevertheless, the terminal storage business strictly implemented cost
control in 2022, which uplifted the Group’s overall gross margin
during the year.

Direct costs and operating expenses

During the year, the Group's direct costs and operating expenses
were approximately $601.2 million (2021: $1,867.9 million),
representing a decrease of 67.8% over the last year, of which cost
of inventories from oil and petrochemical products were $522.8
million (2021: $1,759.5 million), accounting for 87.0% (2021:
94.2%) of total direct costs and operating expenses. The decrease of
direct costs and operating expenses was mainly due to the decrease
of revenue during the year.

EBIT and EBITDA

During the year, the Group's EBIT was approximately $55.4 million
(2021: $46.8 million), increased by 18.3% over the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in other income
which was mainly due to dividend income from unlisted equity
securities of approximately $31.1 million and on the other hand,
the reduction in Group’s selling and administrative expenses which
was mainly due to decrease of equity settled share-based payment
expenses by approximately $40.7 million, decrease of depreciation
and amortisation by approximately $19.3 million and reversal
of loss allowance of trade and other receivables by $4.0 million
(2021: recognition of loss allowance of trade and other receivables
of $13.7 million), partially offsetting the decrease of gross profit
by approximately $13.2 million and recognition of net fair value
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by
approximately $8.1 million (2021: gains of $70.0 million) during
the year. Excluding the decrease of depreciation and amortisation,
EBITDA recorded as approximately $112.3 million (2021: $123.0
million) for the year, decreased by 8.7% over the last year.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs amounted to $51.9 million (2021:
$54.9 million) which were mainly incurred on the Group's
outstanding bank loans. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in average bank loan balance arising from repayment of
bank loans during the year.

WA RER=R

FR - AEEHRALAE6949EIL(Z
T —4F 1 197481B70) REF T
64.8% ° TEMEZRE AR NMAE
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9,3608 L (=F——%F : 1.068187T) ' &
EFRAD12.4% - EEFIEE135% @ %
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

Taxation

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2022 is calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits of the year, except for one subsidiary
of the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-tiered
Profits Tax rate regime. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 25% (2021:
25%).

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the basic and diluted
earnings per share was $0.01 cents (2021: losses per share of $0.41
cents). The basic and diluted earnings per share turnaround from
loss indicates that the Group’s earnings are improving.

LIQUIDITY, GEARING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately $162.3 million (2021: $118.2 million).
The increase was mainly attributable to cash inflow generated from
operating activities during the year. Most of the funds were held in
HK dollars, RMB and US dollars.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total assets of approximately
$1,976.7 million (2021: $2,286.7 million) and net current assets of
approximately $235.3 million (2021: $354.3 million). The current
ratio as at 31 December 2022 of the Group was 1.73 (2021:
2.02). The decrease was primarily attributable to the completion of
purchase in BTHL shares during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings
of $584.8 million (2021: $768.2 million). The total equity of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
$1,207.0 million (2021: $1,352.4 million). The decrease of total
equity of the Group was mainly attributable to the decrease in
shareholders’ equity in respect of decrease in assets revaluation
reserve during the year. The gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities
to total assets) as at 31 December 2022 was 38.9% (2021: 40.9%).
The Group continuously considers various financial methods to
improve our existing financial position and reduce the degree of
leverage of the Group. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
Group has successfully refinanced bank loan with more favorable
borrowing rate to replace the existing bank facilities. For details,
please refer to note 36 to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group met its working
capital requirement principally from its business operation and
financed with facilities provided by banks. Management is confident
that the Group should have adequate financial resources to meet its
future debt repayment and support its working capital and future
expansion requirements. Due attention will be paid to the capital
and debt markets as well as the latest developments of the Group in
order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’'s significant investments
comprised unlisted equity securities and financial assets set out as
below.

(i) Unlisted equity securities

The unlisted equity securities are shares in BTHL, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and engaged in
investment holding. The principal subsidiaries of BTHL include
Bravo Transport Service Limited (“Bravo Transport”) which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is principally engaged in the provision of public bus
and travel related service in Hong Kong, through its subsidiaries
Citybus and NWFB.

On 21 August 2020, Glorify Group Limited (“Glorify”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
BTHL Share Subscription Agreement with Templewater Bravo
Holdings Limited (“TWB Holdings”), Ascendal Bravo Limited
(“ABL") and BTHL, pursuant to which each of Glorify, TWB
Holdings and ABL has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for shares (the “BTHL Share Subscription”) constituting (in
aggregate) approximately 8.56%, 90.85% and 0.59%,
respectively of the entire issued share capital of BTHL following
the final completion of the issue of such shares for the
aggregate consideration of $119 million (equivalent to US$15.3
million), $1,258 million (equivalent to US$162.3 million) and $8
million (equivalent to US$1.1 million), respectively.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

On 21 August 2020 (immediately after signing of the BTHL
Share Subscription Agreement), BTHL (as purchaser) and
NWS Service Management Limited (“NWS Service”) (as seller)
entered into the Acquisition Agreement, pursuant to which
NWS Service has conditionally agreed to sell, and BTHL has
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital
of Bravo Transport for the aggregate consideration of $3,200
million (the “BTHL Acquisition”). The completion of BTHL Share
Subscription and BTHL Acquisition took place on 30 September
2020 and 15 October 2020, respectively. Following the
completion of BTHL Acquisition and as at 31 December 2020,
Glorify held 855.91 BTHL Shares, representing approximately
8.56% of entire issued share capital in BTHL. Details of the
transaction are set out in the Annual Report 2020 and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 August 2020, 28
August 2020 and 21 October 2020.

On 3 December 2021, Glorify further entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with TWB Holdings and ABL, pursuant to
which Glorify has conditionally agreed to acquire an aggregate
of 700 BTHL Shares (“Sale Share”), being 695 BTHL Shares
from TWB Holdings and 5 BTHL Shares from ABL, respectively
and together representing 7% of the entire issued share capital
of BTHL at the total consideration of $350 million (equivalent
to US$44.9 million), of which $244.5 million for Tranche 1 Sale
Shares of 489 BTHL Shares and $105.5 million for Tranche 2
Sale Shares of 211 BTHL Shares. Tranche 1 Completion and the
Tranche 2 Completion took place on 8 December 2021 and 28
March 2022, respectively.

Immediately after Tranche 1 Completion and as at 31 December
2021, Glorify held 1,344.91 BTHL Shares, representing approximately
13.45% of the entire issued share capital in BTHL. Immediately
after Tranche 2 Completion and as at 31 December 2022,
Glorify held 1,555.91 BTHL Shares, representing approximately
15.56% of the entire issued share capital in BTHL.

Details of the aforementioned transaction are set out in the
Annual Report 2021 and the announcements of the Company
dated 3 December 2021 and 28 March 2022 and the circular
of the Company dated 29 July 2022.
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(i)

SEZAERIN)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a fair value of
$638.0 million (2021: $672.5 million) in respect of its holding
in about 15.56% (2021: 13.45%) of such unlisted equity
securities. The fair value of such unlisted equity securities
represented 32.3% (2021: 29.4%) of the Group's total assets
and 83.8% (2021: 82.3%) of the aggregate fair value of
the Group’s investment portfolio. In terms of performance,
the investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income recorded a fair value loss of $140.0
million (2021: gain of $309.3 million) in the asset revaluation
reserve for the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year,
dividend distribution of $31.1 million (2021: Nil) was received
from such investment.

Financial assets

The financial assets represent the Group's subscription
of limited partnership interest in Templewater I, L.P.
("Templewater”) which is an unlisted fund managed by asset
manager who applied various investment strategies to
accomplish their respective investment objectives through
investments in equity and equity-related securities, mainly
in companies based in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio
funds with a similar investment focus. The principal business of
Templewater is to invest for returns from capital appreciation
and investment income, either through the use of special
purpose vehicles or by investing directly.

As at 31 December 2022, the total capital contribution
into Templewater by the Group was approximately $78 million
(equivalent to approximately US$10 million) and the Group
had committed a maximum capital commitment of $156
million (equivalent to US$20 million) in Templewater which
had total committed capital of approximately US$187 million
in respect of its holding in about 10.7% (2021: 10.7%) of such
financial assets. As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
a fair value of $123.3 million (2021: $144.4 million) of such
investment. The fair value of the financial assets exceeded the
purchase cost for such investment and represented 6.2% (2021:
6.3%) of the Group's total assets and 16.2% (2021: 17.7%) of
the aggregate fair value of the Group’s investment portfolio.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
invest (including advisory fee) into Templewater (2021: $25.0
million). In terms of performance, net fair value losses of $8.1
million (2021: net gains of $70.0 million) on such financial assets
was recognised in profit or loss for the year. During the year,
distribution of $13.0 million (2021: $0.2 million) was received
from such investment.

As at 31 December 2022, the subscription for the limited
partnership interest has not been completed.

Save for the those disclosed in this annual report, there was no
other significant investments, nor there was no any other material
acquisitions or disposals during the year. The Group did not have
any future plans for materials investments nor addition of capital
assets as at the reporting date.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
PRICES AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group's cash and bank balances are held predominately in
HK dollars, RMB and US dollars. Operating outgoings incurred by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in
RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management
considers that the Group exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates
are not significant. Prices of oil products are affected by a wide
range of global and domestic factors which are beyond the control
of the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have favourable
or unfavourable impacts on the Group. However, the Group mainly
operated on a back-to-back sale and purchase model and has been
vigorously developing the establishment of end customers of filling
stations (including branded filling stations) to reduce procurement
costs by centralising procurement, retail and wholesale, which
not only prevents risk of oil price fluctuations but also enhances
profitability. Accordingly, management is in the opinion that the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate and price risks are not
significant, and hedging by means of derivative instruments is
considered unnecessary.

Save for the those disclosed in this annual report, there was no other

significant risks of exchange rates and price during the year ended
31 December 2022.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of approximately
172 employees (2021: 230), 146 (2021: 187) of which worked
for the terminals. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices and individual performance and experience. Every
year, the Group devises a budget which states total salary and bonus
plan for the year to encourage the Group’s employees to contribute
their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to the
Group. In accordance with the relevant government regulations in
the PRC, the Group is required to cover social insurance, including
but not limited to retirement, medical, workman compensation
and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every
qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and
staff benefits, the Group hopes to provide a reasonable welfare
for each qualified employee. On top of the basic remuneration,
discretionary award or bonus (in cash or other forms in kind) as may
be determined by the Board may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group’s as well as individual’s performances.
The Group has adopted the share option scheme and share award
scheme under which eligible participants may be granted options to
subscribe for shares in the Company or awards in the Company’s
shares respectively. Details are set out in the Directors’ Report under
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award
Scheme”.

CHARGE ON GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group has provided the lender with certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use as collaterals for the banking facilities
granted. Details are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENT
Details of commitments are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
Details of events after balance sheet date are set out in note 36 to
the financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERENEEAESHRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 63, has been the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company since July 2002. He has many years of
experience in China business particularly in the provision trading of
petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties investments and
developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 62, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2016. Mr.
Yang joined the Company in 2012. Prior to that, he held various
senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general manager in China
Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and deputy chairman and
executive director in Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (stock code:
934), the securities of which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”). He has extensive experience
in international trade of petroleum and chemical commodities. Mr.
Yang graduated from Beijing Normal University with a degree in
Economics. He also holds a Master’s degree in Project Management
from University of Management and Technology.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 57, has been an executive Director of the
Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang joined the Company
as Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. He has many years of
experience in petroleum and petrochemical industry. He has
expertise in petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar
with financial accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr.
Zhang also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical project
management. He had held various key positions such as the chief
financial officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager
and chief financial officer of the Hong Kong branch of China
Petrochemical Corporation. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification
of engineer.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 66, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li is now an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code:
604), China South City Holdings Limited (stock code: 1668) and
Centenary United Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959); and Mr.
Li is an independent non-executive director of Legend Upstar
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Midland IC&I Limited) (stock
code: 459) from 29 March 2022, the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land
Development Company Limited. He was a chief financial officer of
GDH Limited and Guangdong Holdings Limited until 31 December
2019, an executive director and company secretary of Guangdong
Land Holdings Limited (stock code: 124) until 20 February 2020 and
a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock
code: 270) until 28 March 2020, the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned, Mr. Li was
the 12th standing committee member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangdong Provincial Committee, and an
advisor of Management Accounting of Ministry of Finance, the PRC.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 51, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is also
the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is
now an independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8137), the security of which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. He resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited
(stock code: 660) and Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1013) with effect from 6 November 2020, the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Besides, he was no longer
a joint company secretary of Zhejiang Canguan Instrument Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1743) as the security of which was
delisted on the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 July 2021.

BYFHITES
ZEMELE 665 B _TT itﬂt
BARRNBVBUIERITES - HIHAEAR
ZﬁﬁéAa&%Mééﬁzfﬁh%é
BHNE - FTEEZENEEETISMR
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁoﬁm
ARBBFARSHAAGREBSHE
“Aﬁmgéoé%iﬁ%/W¥kﬁ@
NEIRMDASE - 604) ~ EFBIZERER

NEI (RS - 1668) M4l A A% E
BA T (R R5E : 1959) 2 B 7 JESh1TE

£ pFEEE-_E-__F=A=-1thH
AR AR AR (FIEEE TR

BRARD) (B HRSE © 459) 2B IEHTT
BEx ZERAZEFHRBRM LT o

T B MEE KR MERRER A AT
B MBTEaERERARARNMER
EREBRERARZUEHEE  EE-F
—NWF+-—A=+—HAIL TETES
EHIERER AT (RGRIE - 124) 2%
TEEHRNAWE BEE-_FT-_TF_HA

“tHERLE 0B EEEREFRAR (K
RIR : 270) 2 ERITES EE-FT—

ZE=ZA-TN\BARIL ZBRRZEFH

R P £ o BR T LAtz S - FRAE
ERFET_ETEARBAHEEHRER

ézé% BEERTPEVBIEESET

RIRBELXE 518 BE-ZEZTRFHA
BARNBEYIENITES - BIHEEAR

ARAZBETFREVZBENFHFHE
BEKE - REER—(IHMESE - X
BAE—RUEGEET - HRNEERTE

RHBEFLEFHARGTEHEREELR
%’i o WbAN - REERBERIINK AR £
CHBLEERESTETAEEER
%°ﬁ%ﬁaﬁ%%ﬁﬂhlﬁaﬁ%i
B - RAEERE AR EEBR AR (BN

R : 8137) 2 BYFEMITES » LA F
CEERBRFET - B2 T F+—
BB HEBRTEEBEEBAREA

ﬂ(ﬁifﬁﬁ?f 1 660) REEEEIZERABR
RANRMARIE - 1013) 2B IERITE

F RERRZBFGRBRM LT - Ut

S WABAMIEREEEERNAR

REN(RIDARSR - 1743) 2B R R AW E -

l& AlzEHFEB_T_—F+ARBR
AR S PTREH £ 7 o

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William, aged 64, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 15 March 2022. Mr. Chung has extensive experience in
business management in the public transportation industry. Since
January 2021, he has been the vice chairman of Bravo Transport
Services Limited (“Bravo Transport”), which is the holding company
of Citybus Limited (“Citybus”) and New World First Bus Services
Limited ("NWFB") and the vice chairman of Citybus and NWFB. Mr.
Chung has been a director of Bravo Transport since 1 April 2019, a
director of Citybus since March 2004, and a director of NWFB since
February 2010. He was previously the managing director of Citybus
and NWFB from April 2019 to January 2021. From March 2004 to
March 2019, Mr. Chung was the head of operations of Citybus and
NWFB. Besides, he was an executive director of Kwoon Chung Bus
Holdings Limited (stock code: 306), the security of which is listed on
the Stock Exchange, from June 2008 to May 2014. Mr. Chung is a
chartered fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport
in Hong Kong (the “CILTHK") and has been serving the CILTHK as
a council member since October 2016. He has been a non-official
member of the Road Safety Strategic Engagement Working Group
in the Road Safety Council since August 2019, and a member of
the Accessible Transport and Travel Committee in the Hong Kong
Society for Rehabilitation since November 2019. Mr. Chung holds
a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 47, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since February 2017. Ms. Lam joined
the Company in 2008 and is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. Ms. Lam is responsible for accounting and financial
management, corporate governance and company secretarial
duties. Ms. Lam has extensive experience in accounting, auditing
and financial management. Prior to joining the Company, she had
worked for auditing and accounting at reputable international
accounting firms and listed companies. Ms. Lam is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Ms. Lam graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree
in Accountancy.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
ESREREEASHE

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 54, is the director and chairman of
Dongguan Dongzhou International Petrochemical Storage Limited
("DZ International”). Mr. Li has extensive knowledge and experience
in technology and operating management of oil and petrochemicals
storage. He also holds a Master’s degree of corporate management
from Liaoning Shihua University (formerly named as #&IE45H £257).

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 46, is the director and general manager
of DZ International. He graduated from Guangdong Petroleum
School (BEEAMAEHR) in 1997 and is now studying at China
University of Petroleum (East China) with a major in petrochemical
technology. Mr. Huang has solid knowledge and many years of
experience in technology, construction project and operating
management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He is now fully
responsible for the production and safety of DZIT.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 49, is the director and deputy general
manager of DZ International. Mr. Deng obtained a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He has
many years of experience in trading and marketing in the business
of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 51, is the director and general manager of
Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd. Prior to that, Mr. Han graduated
from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce, where he majored in oil
storage and transportation operation. Mr. Han has many years of
experience in business operation and import and export customs of
cargoes.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 56, is the director of DZ International and the
financial responsible officer of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries. Mr. Nie is
an International Certified Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certificate Public Accountants and has professional
accountant qualification in PRC. He has over 15 years financial
management experiences in large state owned enterprises, and has
worked as a senior project manager in a renowned accounting firm.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) set out in the corporate governance code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The board of Directors
(the “Board”) is of the view that throughout the year, the Company
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has complied with the CG Code except for the deviations explained
in the relevant part of this annual report.
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In December 2021, the Stock Exchange published the conclusions to
its consultation on Review of CG Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules and the related Listing Rules. Most of the amendments are
applicable for financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022.
A good part of the new requirements under the amended CG Code
have long been adopted by the Group as our corporate governance
practices over the years. These are highlighted in the following table:

New Requirements

Group's practices

TEBMIWER

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is vital for the
Group to achieve its vision and mission towards sustainable
growth. It is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture
with core principles to guide the behaviours of its employees,
and ensure that the Company’s vision, values and business
strategies are aligned to it. For details, please refer to “Culture
and Values” section of this Corporate Governance Report.
RARENEZIRRNEELHASE TR AIFERR
MRS RETEHER - EFENRE IS ABEZ ORI
MR LIEBETTR  YHRERRAQFNESR - EE
REBREEZ BT - FER2HEAEEBRREN L
HEE|—F-

HRE

Align the company s culture with its purpose,
values and strategy
(Code Provision A.1.1)

BRAREEERR « BEERE—X
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Corporate Governance Report

ERERRE

New Requirements

Group's practices

HRE

Establish policy(ies) and system(s) that promote
and support anti-corruption laws and regulations
(Code Provision D.2.7)

BlERENSTHRESEER
RO B K HIE
(FENERED.2.715)

Establish whistleblowing policy and system
(Code Provision D.2.6)

i) T B ERIBUR K il E
(TRIFEXED.2.615)

Communications with shareholders and
annual review

(Paragraph L of the Mandatory Disclosure
Requirement)

B REAR S FE AR
(5% I B BFLER)

AEENER

The Group’s Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy was
introduced in November 2022. It covers activities such
as anti-corruption, guidance on gifts, entertainment and
hospitality, the Group’s expectations and requirements
of business ethics, as well as investigation and reporting
mechanism of suspected corruption practices. Any convicted
cases will be reported to the Audit Committee. For details,
please refer to “Risk Management and Internal Control —
Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy” section of this Corporate
Governance Report.
AEBE_Z-_—F+—ASIARBREESEE - BERE
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AL EARTE - ANOSIREISTTRIAT LB RIS - £
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The Group’'s Whistleblowing Policy was introduced in
November 2022. Any convicted cases will be reported to the
chairman of the Audit Committee. For details, please refer
to “Risk Management and Internal Control — Whistleblowing
Policy” section of this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Group’'s Shareholders’ Communication Policy sets
out the Group’s commitment of maintaining an effective
ongoing dialogue with shareholders. The Shareholders’
Communication Policy is reviewed by the Board on a
regular basis. The Board is committed to assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
annually and ensuring that independent views and input
are made available to the Board. For details, please refer to
"Communication with shareholders and investor relations”
section of this Corporate Governance Report.
REBRFBABCRSA - AEEAHERRRFEER - B
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New Requirements

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Group's practices

HRE

Equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options
or grants) with performance related elements
should not be granted to independent non-
executive directors

(Recommended Best Practice E.1.9)

TEMB I TEERHERER

MR = AR A AT R B S

(Pl anEE AR e SRR AR 1))
(BEHRIEFZHEE1.91F)

Annually review the board diversity policy; and
disclose the mechanism(s) to ensure independent
views and input are available to the board,

and annual review of the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanism(s)

(Code Provisions B.1.3 and B.1.4)

BERIFFGHEZTBER « WRERR
EXQREEUERNERNOKY - WEF
IE R B B e B AUt
(FANEXEB.1.3R%B.1.415F)

Gender diversity targets at board level and
across workforce. Board level — to set and
disclose numerical targets and timelines for
achieving gender diversity. Workforce level — to
disclose and explain the gender ratio (including
senior management), any plans or measurable
objectives the company has set for achieving
gender diversity.

(Paragraph J of the Mandatory Disclosure Requirement)
FESSEAREEBEIEmMIZESERZ Tt
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We have a benchmarked approach in determining our non-
executive Directors’ fees, which does not involve equity-
based remuneration with performance-related elements. The
level of fees payable to non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is also subject to
shareholders” approval.
BPREEEFATEFTRENEEN L Y NP RERR
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The Group’s Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the
Board in August 2013 and is subject to annual review by the
Nomination Committee. The Board Diversity Policy formally
recognises the practice of ensuring that independent views
and input are made available to the Board; details of which
are explained in the section “Independent non-executive
Directors” in this Corporate Governance Report.
FEBEZEFENEZTEBRAEFEN _Z—=F/\F
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The Board currently has no female Director. The Board would
continue to take initiatives to identify suitable candidates so as
to appoint at least one female Director on the Board no later
than 31 December 2024. Gender diversity at workforce levels
(including our senior management) is disclosed in this annual
report.
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ERERRE

New Requirements

Group's practices

HBRE

Nomination Committee chaired by an
independent non-executive director and
comprising a majority of independent non-
executive directors

(Listing Rule 3.27A)
RELZEGUERBVIRITEREEER -
BB ANBIEITEREAZH
((ETTARRIES.27A1%)

Elaborate the linkage between corporate
governance and ESG

(Introductory paragraph in the Corporate
Governance Code, Principle D.2, Code Provisions
D.2.2 and D.2.3)

MR EREIRE e kERZANBER
(PRERTFRIZSERE - RAIFED.2IF -
FEIFEXED.2.2%D.2.31%)

Publish ESG reports at the same time as
publication of annual reports

(Listing Rule 13.91(5)(d) and paragraph 4(2)(d)
of the ESG Reporting Guide)

R g REAREEERARTIE
(LTARRIE1391)NAIXRERE - HHERER
HEFESIFEA2)A)E)

AEENER

The Nomination Committee, which all members are
independent non-executive Directors, has also been chaired
by an independent non-executive Director. For details, please
refer to “Nomination Committee” section of this Corporate
Governance Report.
REZEGEBUENRBEIIFNTES  WE—BHHBEY
FRTERRELIRE - FER2HAEEBRREREE
&

The linkage is shown under the paragraph headed “Board’s
Oversight of ESG Issues” and “Board’s ESG Management
Approach and Strategy for Material ESG-Related Issues” in
the section of ESG report which forms part of the annual
report.
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The ESG Report has been published at the same time as the
annual report for each year since Annual Report 2016.
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The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.
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CULTURES AND VALUES

The Group is committed to continuously improve its services to
manage safety, health and environmental performance, to achieve
the highest standards of occupational health and safety among all of
the Group’s employees, customers, suppliers and all those involved
in an integral part of its activities.

To ensure the Group in conducting its business in accordance with
the highest ethical and legal standards, the Company should be
headed by an effective Board which assume responsibility for its
leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting
its success by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board's role is
to foster a corporate culture with the following core principles that
are built on accountability, transparency, fairness and responsibility,
and to ensure that the Company’s vision, values and business
strategies are aligned to it. Directors should take decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

e  The Board is accountable to shareholders.

e Shareholders should be entitled to voting rights in proportion
to their interests.

e The Board should be responsive to shareholders and be
proactive in order to understand their perspectives.

e  The Board should have a strong and independent leadership
structure.

e The Board should adopt structures and practices that enhance
their effectiveness.

e The Board should develop management incentive schemes that
are aligned with the long-term strategy of the Company.
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BEERRE

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions of all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised six members,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.
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The composition of the Board during the year was set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and Member of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William (Member of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee) (appointed
on 15 March 2022)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three INEDs. Pursuant to Rule
3.11 of the Listing Rules, the issuer shall appoint a sufficient number
of INEDs to meet the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules within three months after failing
to meet the requirements. Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the audit committee shall comprise non-executive directors only and
must comprise a minimum of three members.

Effective from the appointment of Mr. Chung Chak Man, William as
an INED and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2022, the
Board has six Directors, three of whom are INEDs and the Audit
Committee comprises three members, all of whom are INEDs with
at least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Effective
from the said appointment, the Board met the requirements under
Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10A and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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In order to ensure that independent views and input of the INEDs
are made available to the Board, the Nomination Committee and the
Board are committed to assess the Directors’ independence annually
with regards to all relevant factors related to the INEDs including the
following:

Required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability
to fulfill their roles;

e Time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

e Firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

. Declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as INEDs;

¢ No involvement in the daily management of the Company nor
in any relationship or circumstances which would affect the
exercise of their independent judgement; and

e The Chairman meets with the INEDs regularly without the
presence of other Directors.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED in respect of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed his independence and concluded that all INEDs are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and article of association
(the "Article(s)”), all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at the Company’s general meeting and
any Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s Articles, Mr. David An, Mr.
Yang Dong and Mr. Li Wai Keung shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company's expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
C.1.4 on Directors’ training. During the year, all Directors attended
seminars and training sessions arranged by various professional
institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant reading materials
including the updates on the business, operations, corporate
governance, legal and regulatory matters have been provided to all
Directors for their reference and studying.

The participation by individual Directors in the continuous
professional development programme during the year ended 31
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December 2022 is recorded in the table below: T
Attending
seminars/
conferences/
Reading materials webcasts
HEAE
Name of Directors EERA MEER g WMLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. David An HiEEE v/ v
Mr. Yang Dong RS 4 4
Mr. Zhang Lei RESAE v/ v
INEDs BN TEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEBIE 4 v/
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony PRIR(E 24 4 v
Mr. Chung Chak Man, William RN RE(RE - —F
(appointed on 15 March 2022) = A+AHEZT) v/ v/
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Twelve Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2022.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

EE S

SERESHERE

BHE - Z-—"F#+-_A=1+—HItFERK
BRI+ AEZTTE -

REE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLIF
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ZEehEZZETLEMEALRE (EH
FE R FEBEME BN R ) L8EEy
T~

Attendance/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of directorship

RESERA LR/ CRTERRY

Annual
Nomination  Remuneration Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors BZ Bxg REZEE yMzES ENZEE RRAFAS
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. David An (Chairman of the Board) &5t (EZ2 1) 1212 NATER 4/4 NANER 0/
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer) 18R 54 (7746 ) 1212 NATNER NATER NANER /1
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 12112 NATER NATER NATER 01
INEDs BUHEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung BN 1212 33 4/4 6/6 17
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony BiREEE 1212 33 4J4 6/6 ”n
Mr. Chung Chak Man, William BEVEE (K -E- - 99 2R 33 5/5 n
(appointed on 15 March 2022) S+ T REEK)
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held FREZEEFIGIN - FREEIMRE T AIE

meetings with the INEDs without the presence of other Directors
during the year pursuant to the Code Provision C.2.7.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.
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The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie is the Company Secretary. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2022. The biographic of Ms. Lam is set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
on 29 August 2013.

All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates for Board
membership will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, of which three of them are INEDs.

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company complies with the Code Provision C.2.1, the positions
of the Chairman and CEO are segregated and are held by Mr.
David An and Mr. Yang Dong respectively. These positions have
clearly defined separate responsibilities. Mr. David An will focus
on the overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group, whereas Mr. Yang Dong will be responsible for the overall
management, administrative functions and day-to-day business
operations of the Group.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the website of Company and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX") and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Chung
Chak Man, William.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.
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The Nomination Committee will reference to the Board nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Group on 21
December 2018 for selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due
consideration to criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how, sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties, their
services on other listed and non-listed companies should be limited
to reasonable numbers, qualifications including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the Company’s business
is involved in, independence, reputation for integrity, potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board and
commitment to enhance and maximise shareholders’ value.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

(@) By giving due consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

(b) To consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying or
selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
directors, advertising, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the criteria;

(c) To adopt any process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

(d) Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE
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(e) To make the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment and the proposed remuneration
package;

(f)  The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees;

(@) In order to be eligible to be elected as Director at any general
meeting, the candidate should be recommended by the Board;
or a notice in writing by a member of the Company given
his intention to propose such candidate, and also a notice in
writing by the candidate of his willingness to be elected; and

(h) In the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors by giving
due consideration to the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring Directors including his attendance
of Board meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
criteria, thereafter recommend retiring Director(s) to the Board
for re-appointment. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.

The Nomination Committee convened three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2022 to (i) ensure that the Board has
a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet
the requirements of the business of the Company; (ii) review and
recommend the re-appointment of Directors standing for re-
election at the Company’s 2022 annual general meeting; (iii)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
and make recommendations to the Board; and (iv) review and
make recommendation to the terms of reference of Nomination
Committee and Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony and Mr.
Chung Chak Man, William.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and the remuneration policy and structure
for all individual Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and/or
the CEO about these recommendations on remuneration policy,
structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee convened four meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2022 to (i) review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors; (ii) review of 2022 Share Option Scheme;
and (iii) review the terms of reference of Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Audit Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony and Mr. Chung Chak
Man, William. All of them possess the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board,;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors;
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() To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions;

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters;

(f) To review and approve the Company’s assessment of the
corruption risks to which it is subject and the framework of
controls put in place to mitigate those risks, including but
not limited to the Group’s policies on anti-bribery and anti-
corruption, and risk management; and

(9) To review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure compliance with terms approved by shareholders of
the Company.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022 to (i) review audited annual financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2022; (ii) review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control and
compliance procedures; (iii) review the scope of work and make
recommendations on the appointment of the auditors of the
Company; and (iv) review the terms of reference of Audit Committee
and formulate the anti-bribery, anti-corruption and whistle-blowing
policies and systems of the Company.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision A.2.1.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code and
there was no event of non-compliance throughout the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to 116.
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The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was set out in note 5(c) to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Company has maintained an internal control system and
its implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to understand
if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company
will review the need for an internal audit function on an annual
basis.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management
and internal control system and has overall responsibility for reviewing
and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company and reviewing its effectiveness on an
annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Group’s risk management framework adapts an integrated
bottom-up and top-down risk review process. The top-down risk
review process covers overseeing, identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at corporate level while the bottom-up risk review
process covers identification, assessment and mitigation of risk
at business unit level and across functional areas. The integrated
risk review process is to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation
of material risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue
among the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.

The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.
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The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the internal control system and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and the Audit Committee.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls Effectiveness
During the year under review, the Group has performed the risk
management and internal control review of the Group. The Board
and the Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control system on all major operations and
considered the Group’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance, thereby minimizing risks and allowing
the Group’s business objectives to be achieved optimally. The Board
and the Audit Committee considered that the risk management and
internal control system was operating effectively during the year.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Board adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”) in November 2022. The purpose of the Whistleblowing
Policy is to provide formal communication channels for employees
and third parties to raise or report any concerns that may have
been committed by the Group or its employees in the capacity of
employees of the Group, and enable the Group to take appropriate
actions to minimize the impact of disruption and damage, and
prevent any future recurrence.

The nature, status and the results of the complaints received under
the Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material
effect on the Group's financial statements or overall operations for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has been discovered. The review
of the Whistleblowing Policy shall be conducted at least once every
three years, or whenever deemed necessary by the Audit Committee
to ensure its effectiveness. Any amendments or updates should be
subject to the Board's approval.

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE
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Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy

The Board adopted an anti-bribery and corruption policy (the "Anti-
Bribery and Corruption Policy”) in November 2022. The Group is
committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards
of openness, probity and accountability. The Anti-Bribery and
Corruption Policy forms an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance framework. The Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
sets out the reporting channels and guidance on reporting possible
improprieties in matters relating to the Group, and reassurance
to the reporting person or entity of the protection that the Group
will extend to them against dismissal, victimisation or any form of
reprisal for any genuine and good faith reports made under the
Policy.

The Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is reviewed at least once
every three years by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
shall supervise the implementation and enforcement and the
procedures herein, and is responsible for the interpretation, review
and amendment of all the rules and procedures set out herein from
time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’” meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted on
the websites of the HKEX and the Company immediately after the
relevant shareholders’ meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s Articles, general meetings
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members of the Company deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event that the
Company ceases to have such a principal place of business, the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman
Islands Companies Act (As Restated) for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to compile
with Code Provision D.2.4(e).

There are guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
It also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

e defines the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;,

e controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;

e procedures of communicating with the Group’s stakeholders,
including shareholders, investors, analysts, etc. in ways which
are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to
handle enquiries from external parties related to the market rumours
and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the HKEX's
website and the Company’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy in October 2022 with the objective to (i) promote effective
communication with shareholders of the Company in an informed
manner; (i) in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large, are provided with equal and timely access to information
about the Company; and (jii) to allow shareholders of the Company
and investment community to engage actively with the Company.
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The shareholders’” meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all Board committees
(or their delegates) and where applicable, the independent
Board committee, are available at the general meetings to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Under the Code Provision F.2.2, the Chairman should attend the
annual general meeting. The Chairman and one of the Directors
was unable to attend the last annual general meeting held on
15 June 2022 due to business engagement. They will use their
best endeavour to attend all future shareholders’ meetings of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board proposed
to make the proposed amendments to the existing Articles, for
the purpose of, among others, (i) reflecting the core shareholder
protection standards to the Listing Rules which took effect on 1
January 2022; (ii) explicitly allowing the Company to hold hybrid
general meetings; and (iii) incorporating certain housekeeping
amendments and tidying up typographical errors. The Board also
proposed to adopt the amended and restated Articles in substitution
for and to the exclusion of the existing Articles. The proposed
amendments to the existing Articles and the amended and restated
Articles are subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
in the forthcoming 2023 annual general meeting. Details are set out
in the circular enclosed with this annual report.

The Company places great emphasis to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors as the Company’s policy
to maintain timely and effective communications with their
shareholders. This is crucial aspect of good corporate governance,
and part of the statutory and regulatory regime. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with existing shareholders
and potential institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

The Board hereby presents the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group's business are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages
4 to 20 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
21 December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia: —

the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
e shareholders’ interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

e the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;
e possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group's lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

e liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;
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. taxation considerations;
e  statutory and regulatory restrictions;
e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

e  other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 117.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment of
bank loan of the Group and its business development, the Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note
29 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution represented the share premium and accumulated losses
(net of treasury shares held under the share award scheme) which
in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$561 million (2021:
approximately HK$586 million).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 232. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William (appointed on 15 March 2022)

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s Articles, Mr. David An, Mr.
Yang Dong and Mr. Li Wai Keung shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of directors who have served in the board of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report is kept at the Company’s registered office
and is available for inspection by the members of the Company
during the business hours.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of twelve months, renewable
automatically for successive terms of twelve months upon expiry
of the current term of his/her appointment, unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract and he/she is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company's Articles.

Each of the INEDs has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years, unless terminated in accordance
with the terms of appointment letter. Each of the INEDs is subject
to the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election at least
once every three years at the annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company'’s Articles. The term of office of each of the INEDs
is the period up to retirement as required by the Company’s Articles.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, no Directors are considered to have interests, either
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or is likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout this year. In addition,
the Company has taken out and kept in force appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Approximate

percentage in
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Approximate

number of Number of percentage in
shares held to underlying total interests
the issued shares to the issued
Number of  share capital of pursuant to share capital of
Name of Director Capacity sharesheld  the Company  share options  Total interests  the Company
FisRBEE B
fEART fEART
BEfTRAz  REBREZ BRTREZ
ESfE L) Fres %A B#HEI  HERGEA iR BHEDL
Mr. David An Founder of a discretionary trust 2,548,203,9801" 64.40% - 2,548,203,980 64.40%
Epie RETEIIRA
Beneficial owner 218,390,000 5.52% 636,427,6000 854,817,600 21.61%
ERBRA
Notes: BT
1. Mr. David An (“Mr. An") was taken to be interested in those shares by 1. EEEE(TEHLEE]) AR 2 EETAIA

virtue of being a founder of a discretionary trust. Those shares are held
directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments Ltd.
("Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd. (“Vand Petro-Chemicals”). Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd. (“Julius Baer")
which is a trustee of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
An is deemed to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.
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2,338,430,000/% FaVand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd.([Vand Petro-Chemicals |)
BEERHFAE - WX 2 a3 /A Julius Baer
Family Office & Trust Ltd.([Julius Baer])
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2. The interest in underlying shares of the Company held represented
636,427,600 share options carrying the rights to subscribe for
636,427,600 shares granted by the Company to Mr. An under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An is deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 636,427,600 underlying shares subject
t0 636,427,600 new shares will be issued and allotted by the Company
upon the exercise of the share options granted and such exercise will
not result in the Company not in compliance with the public float
requirement under the Listing Rules. Details of Mr. An’s and other
Directors’ interests in the share options granted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company”, “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme”, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debts securities (including debentures) of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
children under the age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiary, or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected and related party transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs the annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all INEDs are
independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, shareholders (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Approximate
percentage in
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Approximate

number of shares Number of Percentage to

held to the underlying shares the issued

issued share capital pursuant to share capital of

Name of shareholders Number of shares held of the Company share options Total interests the Company

FisRf#E

{EART EAAT

BRiTREZ REBREZ BRITREZ

RRER FrERfHEA BaEAL HERGEE BER BHBESL

Mr. An Bt 2,766,593,9801 69.92% 636,427,6000 3,403,021,580 86.01%

Julius Baer 2,548,203,9801 64.40% - 2,548,203,980 64.40%

Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000) 59.10% - 2,338,430,000 59.10%

Extreme Wise 209,773,980 5.30% - 209,773,980 5.30%
Notes: MiEE

1.

ZECFFR

The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr.
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
An is a founder of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An
is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. An is a
director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

The interest in underlying shares of the Company held represented
636,427,600 share options carrying the rights to subscribe for
636,427,600 shares granted by the Company to Mr. An under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An is deemed to
be interested in an aggregate of 636,427,600 underlying shares subject
t0 636,427,600 new shares will be issued and allotted by the Company
upon the exercise of the share options granted and such exercise will
not result in the Company not in compliance with the public float
requirement under the Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, apart from the “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” of the Company as disclosed below, no equity-
linked agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) which would expire on 27 December 2022.

In order to enable the continuity of the share option scheme of the
Company, the termination of the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
the adoption of 2022 share option scheme (the “2022 Share Option
Scheme”) were approved by the Company’s shareholders on 15
June 2022. The 2022 Share Option Scheme is due to expire on 14
June 2032.

In view of the recent amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023, the Board proposes to
terminate the 2022 Share Option Scheme and adopt a new share
option scheme (the “2023 Share Option Scheme”), subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming 2023
annual general meeting. Details of the 2023 Share Option Scheme
are set out in the circular enclosed with this annual report.
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Summaries of the 2012 Share Option Scheme and 2022 Share
Option Scheme are set out below:

2012 Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose:

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.

Participants:

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their
discretion grant options to any eligible participant including
any employee, Director, consultant, advisor, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or services to the
Company or any subsidiaries of the Company from time to
time to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Total number of shares available for issue and percentage
of issued share capital:

The maximum number of shares with respect to which options
may be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The limit may be refreshed
by obtaining approval of the shareholders of the Company
at a general meeting from time to time, provided that the
new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the relevant
shareholders’ approval at the general meeting. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
shares of the Company from time to time.
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Refreshment of 2012 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) are summarised as below:

BT FBEREBIRERA
([EHEgRE DBAmT

Original Scheme First Second

Mandate Limit Refreshment Refreshment

RAETERERE BREH BEZREH

Date of shareholders' approval 28 December 2012 25 January 2021 2 June 2021

IRERBER ZE-CHETZAZtAR ZEC-%-A-tEA B -ERAZH

Maximum number of shares 373,263,800 395,663,800 395,663,800

Ot

Percentage of total number of issued shares as at the date of

the relevant shareholders' approval 10% 10% 10%

REBRREERBEE R TR BENAD L

As at 28 December 2012, the total number of shares which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme was 373,263,800 shares
(the “Original Scheme Mandate Limit"”), being 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. Subsequent to the adoption of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Original Scheme Mandate
Limit was refreshed by an ordinary resolution passed on 25
January 2021, the total number of shares available for issue
pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme was 395,663,800
shares (the “First Refreshment”). Subsequent to the First
Refreshment, the refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit was further
refreshed to 395,663,800 shares (the “Second Refreshment”)
by the approval of Company’s shareholders on 2 June 2021.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme expired on 15 June 2022. As at
the reporting date, the total number of shares which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme is 711,427,600 shares,
being 18.0% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the reporting date.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period must be approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company.

The period within which the option may be exercised by
the participant:

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant save as
otherwise decided by the Board in the relevant offer of options.

The vesting periods of options:

There is no minimum vesting period for an option save as
otherwise imposed by the Board in the relevant offer of
options.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must be
paid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, provided that
it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the share options; (ii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life:
The life of 2012 Share Option Scheme was 10 years from
adoption of such scheme and terminated on 15 June 2022.
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2022 Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose:

The purpose of the 2022 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.

Participants:

Under the 2022 Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their
discretion grant options to any employees or Directors of the
Group, or service providers who provide services to the Group
on a continuing or recurring basis in its ordinary and usual
course of business which are material to the long term growth
of the Group from time to time to subscribe for the shares.

Total number of shares available for issue and percentage
of issued share capital:

The maximum number of shares with respect to which options
may be granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the 2022 Share Option Scheme. The scheme mandate limit
may be refreshed by obtaining approval of the shareholders of
the Company at a general meeting from time to time, provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
relevant shareholders’ approval at the general meeting.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which the
options may be granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme
is 395,663,800 shares, being 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the annual report and
the date of adopting the 2022 Share Option Scheme by the
shareholders at the AGM.

As at the reporting date, no options were granted under the
2022 Share Option Scheme.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period must be approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company.

The periods within which the option may be exercised by
the participant:

Options may be exercised from date of grant of the share
option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the Directors save as otherwise decided by the
Board in the relevant offer of options.

The number of options that may be exercised by each participant
for each year during the exercise period shall not exceed one-
third of the number of options granted to the participant in a
particular grant, subject to certain exceptions as set out in the
rule of the 2022 Share Option Scheme.

The vesting period of options:
There is no minimum vesting period for an option save as
otherwise imposed by the Board in the relevant offer of options.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must be
paid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.
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8. The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, provided that
it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the share options; (ii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

9. The remaining life:
The 2022 Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 14 June
2032.

In view of the reasons for amendments mentioned above, the
Board proposes to terminate the 2022 Share Option Scheme.
For details, please refer to the circular enclosed with this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option was
granted (2021: 639,427,600 options), 3,500,000 share options were
lapsed by the relevant grantees (2021: Nil), no share options were
forfeited by the Company (2021: 3,000,000 options) and no share
option was exercised by the relevant grantees (2021: Nil) under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. As at 31 December 2022, 711,427,600
outstanding options granted (2021: 714,927,600 options) will
remain valid and exercisable notwithstanding the termination of the
2012 Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share options were
granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled by the Company under
the 2022 Share Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share
options granted under the 2022 Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2021 and 2022.
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Details of fair value of options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme,
the accounting standard and assumption are set out in note 28(b)

to the financial statements and the movements of the share options  #28(b) ' HE_-_E_-_—_F+_-_A=+—H
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set as below: IFFERNERESESFHTIOT
Outstanding During the year Outstanding
Exercise at A at
Date of Vesting Exercise pice  1January Granted/ Cancelled/ 31 December
Eligible participants grant period period HKS 2022 Exercised Forfeited  Lapsed 222
b3 2
it -A-A BHEE/ CHs# +ZA=1-H
AERSEE RLRE 5RE i B HAGR fif b Y3 QR o S
Executive Directors #gs
Mr. An gk 231212020 - 5012021-220122025 0400 243,763,800 - - - 243763800
140042021 02/06/2021-13/042022  14/04/2022-13/0472027 @ 0.340 392,663,800 - - - 392,663,800
Mr. Yang Dong BAKE 30082018 30082018-30/052019  30/082019-29/08/2028®  0.236 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
Mr. Zhang Lei FERE 1312200 - 23122020-221122005¢ 0400 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Independent non- BIEYA
executive Directors g=
Mr. i Wai Keung ZERLE 30082018 30082018-30/052019  30/082019-29/082028%  0.236 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony — [RIREL4E 30082018 30/082018-30/052019  30/082019-29/082028®  0.236 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
667,427,600 - - - 667,427,600
Employees &8 30/082018  30/08/2018-30/052019  30/08/2019-29/08/2028® 0236 37,500,000 - - (3,500,000) 34,000,000
Consultant B 30/0822018  30/08/2018-30/052019  30/08/2019-29/08/2028® 0236 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
714,927,600 - - (3,500,000) 711,427,600
Notes: FifeE -
1. The relevant options became valid upon obtaining the independent 1. 1HEBERER —T-—F—-H -+ hHA

shareholders’ approval at the general meeting held on 25 January
2021 and the relevant options were vested on 25 January 2021 and
exercisable from 25 January 2021 to 22 December 2025.

The relevant options became valid upon obtaining the independent
shareholders’ approval at the general meeting held on 2 June 2021
and the relevant options were vested on 14 April 2022 and exercisable
from 14 April 2022 to 13 April 2027.

The relevant options were vested on 31 May 2019 and would be
exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August 2028.

The relevant options were vested on 23 December 2020 and would be
exercisable from 23 December 2020 to 22 December 2025.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which
the relevant share options were granted on 29 August 2018, 22
December 2020 and 13 April 2021 was HK$0.225, HK$0.390 and
HK$0.340 respectively.

The options granted above are not subject to any performance targets.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) on 15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), which is due
to expire on 14 April 2029. In view of the recent amendments to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023,
the Board proposes to terminate the existing Share Award Scheme
and adopt the Hans Energy Share Award Scheme Il, being the new
share award scheme of the Company (the “New Share Award
Scheme”), subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders in
the forthcoming 2023 annual general meeting. Details of the New
Share Award Scheme are set out in the circular enclosed with this
annual report.

A summary of the Share Award Scheme is stated as follows:

1. Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recruit and
retain high-calibre employee and to encourage them to make
contributions to the growth and development of the Group.

2. Participants:
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the “Scheme
Rules”), the Board may grant an award to anyone (other than
any excluded participant) who is an employee, Director, or
consultant of any member of the Group.

3. Administration:

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The Board has
a discretion to determine the terms of the award. The Board
may engage one or more trustees in the process of granting,
administrating and/or vesting any awards, and the Board may
at its discretion delegate such powers and/or functions relating
to the administration of the Share Award Scheme to the trustee
as the Board thinks fit.

4. Maximum number of shares available for issue under the
Share Award Scheme:
The number of shares which may be held by the trust at any
one time (taken together with all unvested awarded shares
granted under the Scheme Rules) shall not be more than 5%
of total numbers of issued shares at the date of grant of the
award.

The maximum number of shares which may be held by the
trust is 197,831,900 shares, being 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the reporting date.
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5. Maximum entitlement of each participant:
Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, there are no maximum
entitlement limits to each participant.

6. Operation:

The Board may, from time to time remit funds to the trustee
for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, and such money
will form part of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the
trustee to purchase the number of shares underlying the award
from the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants until
they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

7. The vesting period of awards:
The Board has a discretion to determine the terms of the award,
including the grantor of the award, the number of shares
subject to the award, the vesting conditions, the date when
the award will vest, and whether the award will carry rights to
dividends paid between the date of the award and the vesting
date.

8. The amount payable by a participant to purchase shares
under the Share Award Scheme:
No consideration is payable by a participant to receive the
award or to purchase shares under the Share Award Scheme.

9. Duration:
The Share Award Scheme will terminate on the 10th anniversary
of the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of the Company’s shares
purchased for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme was
78,590,000 shares (2021: 58,590,000 shares). On 6 January 2022,
the trustee purchased a total number of 20,000,000 shares of the
Company on the market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$3,241,000 for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme. As at
the reporting date, no grant of awards has been made under the
Share Award Scheme.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the percentage of the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
comprised approximately 82.0% (2021: approximately 86.4%)
of the Group’s total turnover and the percentage of the turnover
attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
29.7% (2021: approximately 33.9%) of the Group'’s total turnover.
The percentage of the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers comprised approximately 70.0%
(2021: approximately 88.2%) of the Group's total purchases and
the percentage of the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier were approximately 25.0% (2021: approximately 33.6%) of
the Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had banking facilities which
were secured by certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and interests in land and buildings held for own use
under operating leases. Details of Group's bank loans during the
year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles or the Cayman Islands Companies Act (As Restated) which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policy for the employees of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report on page 20.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the
financial statements of this annual report, respectively.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

Except as disclosed in elsewhere in this annual report, during the
year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2022, there were no material contingent liabilities
in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings that need to
be disclosed (2021: Nil).

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by our terminal are hazardous, safety
and environment protection measures and equipment are regarded
as the most vital and critical importance to the success of the
Group. The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection during the year ended 31 December 2022.
For the financial risk management, please refer to the note 30 to the
financial statements of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company has not changed its external auditor in any
of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an
overview of the Group’s management on significant issues affecting
the operation, and the performance of the Group in terms of
environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect
of corporate social responsibility, covering its operating activities
which are considered as material by the Group — (i) trading of oil
and petrochemical products business carried out in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, as well as the operation and leasing of a filling
station in Zengcheng, the PRC (the “trading and other business”);
and (ii) provision of terminal, storage and transshipment activities
carried out in Dongguan, the PRC (the “terminal storage business”).
With the aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements
in the Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies,
record relevant data as well as implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022.

Contact Information
The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our sustainability
initiatives. Please contact us by email to info@hansenergy.com.hk.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested
or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the
outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by
or have the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group's
activities, products, services and relationships. It allows the Group
to understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group'’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest
in the Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our business and established
various channels for communication. The following table provides an
overview of the Group's key stakeholders, and various platforms and
methods of communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Issues of concern

RS dEgREEAHS

Engagement channels

&

Government and Market regulator

B B 5 B

Shareholders and Investors

BERRIEE

Employees

—E-FFR EDERERAT

BxEE

Compliance
Promote regional economic
development and employment

B
R R AR B R S LR

Return on the investment
Information transparency
Protection of interests and fair
treatment

&R

EHBERE

e A FEEHRE

Employee rights and interests
Working environment

Health and safety

Career development
opportunities

(=Ve TUNST: 32

TERIR

fREEZ S

BEBREE

2RRE

On-site inspections

Research and discussion through
work conferences, work reports
preparation and submission for
approval

Annual and interim reports,
announcements

EHAR R
BRTESRTT R
RE TR TEREAMER
FHREPHRE  2F

Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings
Annual and interim reports,
announcements
BERBFARGREMBEREZ
FERPH®RE  AF

Conference

Training, seminars, briefing
sessions

Cultural and sport activities
Intranet and emails
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BE dEgRERES

Stakeholders

Issues of concern

Engagement channels

B E

Customers

5P

Suppliers

HAER

Peer/Industry associations

CESYE ik

Community

=

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

2pz 3

Safe and high-quality service
Stable relationship
Information protection and
privacy

Business ethics

22 MMEERD
RERE
BARE RALRE
ERER

Long-term partnership
Honest cooperation

Fair, open

Information resources sharing
Risk reduction

REABH AR

BEAE

NS CYNG|

BRI

JFR\ g 4B K

Experience sharing
Cooperation

Fair competition
KmoF

A

ATHF

Community involvement
Social responsibilities
a2

HerE

SRRE

Website, brochures, annual
reports

Email and customer service
hotline

Feedback forms

Regular meeting

auk - M RE W

B REP RS

R BRI

EHgE

Business meetings, supplier
conferences, phone calls,
interviews

Review and assessment
Tendering process
e HEEgS -
BB - Tk

5 REHE

BIRRFF

Industry conference
Site visit

GEST
BEER

Charity and social projects
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The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.

The Group have evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

e Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

e The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement
e The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

e  Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2022, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.
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ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues
Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing
the management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the
year, the Board spent significant time in evaluating the impact of
ESG-related risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy
in dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to ensure the
management to have all the right tools and resources to oversee the
ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-term value creation.

ESG working group

The Group attaches great importance to ESG work. Under the
leadership of the Board of the Company, the Group has set up a
dedicated safety and environmental protection department (“ESG
Working Group”) to implement specific safety and environmental
protection work, so as to comply with government requirements,
implement the concept of “safety and environmental protection”
in its operation and fulfil its social responsibilities. The ESG Working
Group consists of at least three members, of which one Director of
the Board and various department heads or managers.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the Working Group at the
meeting, which holds at least once per year. During the reporting
period, the ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the
ESG governance and different ESG issues.
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Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels
of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders,
the Group understands the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification
by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of
their degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue,
and can enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable
development work in the future. Those important and material ESG
areas identified during our material assessment were discussed in
this Report.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Based on ISO14001, the standard of management system for
environment, the Group has established a set of management
systems regarding environmental protection, including but
not limited to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”,
"Waste Management System” and “Wastewater Management
System”.

The Group's objectives on environmental protection are
to eliminate and reduce the impact of its operation on the
ecological environment and endeavours to save resources and
protect the environment. The Group is in strict compliance with
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during
the reporting period.
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A1. EMISSIONS

Air Pollutants Emission

Emission control is essential for mitigating the impact on
the environment and protecting the health of employees.
The Group’s emission complies with “Emission Limits of
Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)" (KR5S ¥ HEMR(E) and
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk Gasoline Terminal
(GB 20950-2007)" ({7 /B AR5 &M EEMAZZE). Owing to the
reduction in business travels and transportation by vehicles and
effective implementation of energy saving strategies in 2022,
the amount of air pollutants emission remained stable during
the year. The Group targets to reduce the emission of air
pollutants by 10% by 2025. The air pollutants emission during
the reporting period is as follows:

Al. BERD

RR5RIBER
THBEREIR R IR BN L MR E
BERREEZHEE - AEENEERD
FEI KRS PENPRE(DB44/27-
2001) ) R [ Fé i B K &R055 2 ) HE R
Z#(GB 20950-2007) | - AR ==&
CoFERARENEEE RGBT
2B PR DA R B JE e B BE SR R -
FRARSEEREREBEE - K&
EUZZE=AFRRD10%HMAR5
AMEEE - RRERE - KR5E
YIER BRI T

Trading and Terminal
Air Pollutants other business  storage business
PNNEES ) BHREMEE  BEARES
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) [&{LmINo,) kgF7 25.52 1647.90 167342 153427
Sulfur dioxide (SO,) ZEILER(SO) kgF 52 2.59 33.70 36.29 33.94
Particulate matter (PM) ST HLT(PM) kgT5 2.61 172.27 174.88 163.37

As most of the products stored are highly volatile, the
Group has implemented “VOCs One Enterprise One Policy
Comprehensive Improvement Program” (VOCs —{b—%R454&
Y& 7 %) to control volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
from source and production processes. Key measures to
mitigate the leakage of the volatile chemicals are implemented
as follows:

e External floating roof tanks are used to store gasoline, diesel
and other volatile chemical products.

e Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapour generated in the
tank is collected and treated with activated carbon.

1 External floating roof tanks (ZTE= 1) are storage tanks commonly
used to store large quantities of petroleum products. They eliminate
breathing losses and greatly reduce the evaporative loss of the stored
liquid.

2 Nitrogen blanketing (B2 &) is widely used in many industries
to prevent fires, explosion, degradation of products during their
production, storage and transportation.
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e Toreduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)
emission, oil-gas condensation recovery devices are
installed to achieve a recycling rate of 98%.

e All the volatile organic compounds (e.g., gasoline, alkane
solvents) are stored in specific containers and sealed
properly to avoid leakage.

e Using gasoline recovery device to collect volatilized
gasoline, the recovery ratio is over 95%, in order to
reduce air pollutants emission.

Apart from measures adopted to reduce VOCs, the Group
lowers the emission of SO, by using low-sulfur diesel (National
VI standard) for the boiler.

Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Emission3

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon neutral by minimising the energy
consumption and water consumption as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use
of resources”. With a sense of promoting the use of clean
energy and green environment, the Group has switched its fuel
consumption to fossil fuel with lower carbon content such as
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG").

The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.
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The decrease in GHG emissions in 2022 was mainly attributable
to the impact of the national policy of imposing consumption
tax on certain oil and petrochemical products since 2021, to
which the Group has adjusted its operation strategy in a timely
manner and significantly reduced electricity consumption
through technological renovation and optimization of
operational processes. The Group will strive to reduce GHG
emissions by 10% by 2025. The GHG emission during the
reporting period is as follows:

Trading and

other business
BHRAMER
23.84

GHG Emission
RER BN
Scope 14 tonnes of CO,-e

“RICHE BN

tonnes of CO,-e
“EiREEW

tonnes of CO,-¢

ZRICHRE BN

tonnes of CO,-¢/ 222
employee

—altigen/
E8

tonnes of CO,-¢/
thousand tonnes of
terminal throughput

1101V
ERATETH

Scope 25 29.44

Total A&t 53.28

BERE

i

GHG emission
intensity

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated are handled with a comprehensive procedure
to mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a
strict classification system for different types of wastes. Each
type of waste has specific storage location and collection
procedures. There is a precaution implemented for the leakage
of waste to prevent pollution.

Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by
the Group.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by the
Group.
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AT

Terminal
storage
business
BRERES
192.71 216.55 236.30
2,507.62 2,537.06 4,888.48
2,700.33 2,753.61 512478
Trading and retail
business:
ZHRTEER
322
0.82 Terminal storage
business:
BEEHES
1.93
BEREZEEY

PREERMERYEBEEIEFFEELRE
HIREFE - ARBUTRERMELR
BBROEHE - SEBREMBREENTE
Bt E R AERIER - CHERMRIFER
TEBIHE e AR LB 2

¢ EEN  REEHEAFIES NIREE RS
e

s HE2: AEEHRBEE ORGSR -

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Hazardous wastes such as hazardous wastewater, waste oil
cleaning rag and organic solvents are handled according to
the latest policies of “National Hazardous Waste Inventory”.
These wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger
for record. The Group engages qualified recycling companies
to perform waste disposal and treatment so as to minimise the
impact on the environment.

During the year, the effective implementation of hazardous
waste management strategies, includes enhancing the
disposal efficiency of environmental protection equipment
and facilities; stabilizing those customers under the storage
category, reducing tank cleaning, and reducing the amount
of waste oil and hazardous waste generated; continuous
epidemic control, and reducing the amount of waste received
from foreign vessels for chemical washing, and other series of
control measures and policies impacts, led to a decrease in the
amount of hazardous waste generated in 2022. The Group
has set comprehensive reduction target by 10% reduction in
hazardous waste generation by 2025. The hazardous wastes
generated by the Group during the reporting period are as
follows:

Trading and
Waste Disposal other business
BEEVRE BHREMER
Hazardous wastes ~ E£HEZE  tonnes [ -
generated BEEY
Hazardous wastes ~ E£MABZE  tonnes/thousand -
generated FEEYFEE  tonnes of terminal
intensity throughput
W/ ERBLETH
ZEFFHR EBERERAT

RS dEgREEAHS

BEBERM(WAEEK  BEEHHNE
AT RIB(ERERAERY R8N &H
BREE - ZEBREVRLEFETRERD
BERRE  ERE - AEBERBEAE
REWARIAEERMEE REE - PR
BERBOTE -

TR EREREEERYEERE 8
RRSRARIFBRIEEENE  BERF
BF - RDBHEEE R BEREEREY
MELE  KENRIBER  BAINRIL
THREZEMRRES R EEEEMK
RYE BEFE_S_—_FELENEEE
BEWHERD - AREERIEHEBBER
B BER-_Z_RFANSASTEEYH
BERAD10% - RBEME - AREELH
EREREVNERMT

Terminal
storage
business
SRR RS

1243 12.43 80.83

0.004 Trading and

retail business:

BH5Rk

TELH

Terminal storage
business:
WEARES
0.031
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The Group has put effort on waste-free initiatives in reducing
non-hazardous waste. The Group has launched waste recycling
and implemented different measures to reduce the wastes
generated in the office. For example, used paper and plastic
materials are collected in the office for recycling purpose. Waste
electrical and electronic equipment is separately collected.
With these measures, the Group hopes to ease the pressure
on landfill space and bring benefits to the environment. The
amount of non-hazardous waste generated in 2022 remained
stable. The Group has set comprehensive reduction target by
10% reduction in non-hazardous waste generation by 2025.
The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
reporting period are as follows:

Trading and
Waste Disposal other business
BENRE B REMER
Non-hazardous EENES  tonnes I 0.14
wastes generated  EEEY)
Non-hazardous ELMEZ  tonnesemployee 0.004
wastes generated  BEWTE W/ EE
intensity
tonnes/thousand
tonnes of terminal
throughput
W/ EEANETH
Non-hazardous FURMEE  tonnes B -
wastes recycled BEEY)
Non-hazardous FUMREZ  tonnesemployee -
wastes recycled BENRE W/ &8
intensity
Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied
to all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of
wastewater. Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two
separate systems to prevent pollution to groundwater.
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YiiE% - AEBCHESEEY D RMEST
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EHEEEZEYHERFETE - AEEHD
RUZEBEHERE  BERZEZRFAH
BEEZEZEVHERND10% ° RREH
M AEBEAEZEZEMNBEROT

Terminal
storage
business
BRRHER
6.44 6.58 6.79
Trading and retail
business:
ZIRTEEH -
0.003
0.002 Terminal storage
business:
BHEAREY
0.003
- - 0.26

Terminal storage
business:
BARERY
0.007
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The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology (ZEFEFIE T A2 IB1EE0y)
to develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats wastewater
with microorganisms. During this year, around 1,349 m3 (2021:
4,980 m3) of wastewater was discharged and treated. After the
treatment, the water which meets satisfactory quality standard,
is used in fire services and planting. Not only the emission of
wastewater to land and water bodies is reduced, but also the
water can be reused to save the water resource. This system
is simple and the cost of maintenance and operation is low.
Therefore, it is widely admired and accepted by government
departments and peers.

Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of
boilers, pumps and compressors, etc. Appropriate acoustic
insulation is applied to those machines. Regular maintenance
is also conducted as to reduce the noise generated due to
wearing of the components in those machines.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from fossil
fuels and electricity. The Group promotes the idea of “green
office” to reduce the electricity consumption as follows:

e The temperature in the office is set at 26°C in summer.
e No heating is supplied in winter according to the
characteristic of weather in South China.

e All electronic appliances have to be switched off when
leaving the office.

e After all staff leave the office, security guards double
check the electronic appliances and ensure all of them are

switched off.

The Group also checks the oil usage frequently to minimise the
chances of oil leakage which lead to energy wastage.
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In light of using the gasoline recovery device, the volatilized
gasoline was collected and re-transformed to gasoline for the
terminal storage business, resulting in the purchased electricity
consumption increased in 2022. As affected by the pandemic,
business travels and transportation by vehicles have reduced. In
addition, we have adjusted our business strategies in a timely
manner in accordance with national policies; stabilized our
quality customers and optimized our operational processes,
including but not limited to optimizing the use of process
pipelines, classifying the use of public pipelines, and reducing
the frequency of air-drying the cleaning pipelines and cleaning
tanks, which greatly reduced the energy consumption of
loading and unloading vessels and storage operations. As a
result, the energy consumption was decreased in 2022. The
Group has set a target to reduce the total energy consumption
by 10% by 2025. The energy consumption for the year is as
follows:

Trading and

Energy Type other business
RERIER Efi 85 RHEMES

Purchased electricity BEEE MWhTFET R i 38.63
Petrol D MWhF BT RE 53.64
Diesel 5 MWhF{EF R 38.02
LPG BICEBR  MWhTETER -
Total energy EREREE MWhTETEE 130.29
consumption
Energy consumption #EJREFEZE  MWh/employee 5.43
intensity TETRE/EE
MWh/thousand
tonnes of terminal
throughput
TETERE,/
ERATE T

ENSER MESA T haE e
B OBEZMNARNE  EFEZE
Al CE-_FREEENREESE
BFRTEM - ARBEET FREA
RERESERFBITIRED - B
G - ARBBISRIBUR T R R AR
WA BEBERP  BILIEER
2 BEETRERIZEEENELCH
B8 BEEEIEER  mAER
EREE - BB EERTA AR
L BARERENERRBRRIES
B c At 2 - —EREERERE
T - REBEBRYBEZ 8ER
—E_RFRIBEREREERE
10% ° FNEEFREFEBRAT ¢

Terminal
storage
business
A HES
2,997.04 3,035.67 5,846.31
149.09 202.73 245.51
549.14 587.16 618.74
98.69 98.69 147.92
3,793.96 3,924.25 6,858.48

Trading and retail
business:

P
TEXRK

4.88

1.15 Terminal storage
business:

BRRRRS
257
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Water

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. In order to monitor the usage of water, meters
are installed in different locations and water consumption is
recorded regularly. Staff are responsible for managing the
water usage and checking the water system. If leakage of
water pipe happens, repair will be immediately carried out to
reduce the wastage of water resource.

In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according
to the actual water usage. To encourage water-saving, water
usage of each staff in the staff quarter is recorded and the
staff has to pay water bills by themselves. Different water
meters are set up and installed in each terminals according to
its production area, where dynamic management is applied to
identify abnormalities and report and repair them in a timely
manner. We stabilized the storage customers to reduce tank
cleaning operations, while optimizing the use of chemical
process pipelines, classifying the use of the public pipeline
network, and reducing the frequency of cleaning pipelines,
in a bid to reduce water consumption in general. As a result,
the water consumption in 2022 was reduced accordingly. The
Group has set a reduction target of 10% in water consumption
by 2025. The water consumption during the reporting period is
as follow:

Trading and

other business
B REMER
m3 35K 233

Water Consumption
KEFEE
Water consumption 7K 2

Water consumption 7K 452 E
intensity

m3/employee 10

UHK/ &R

m?3/thousand tonnes
of terminal
throughput

YK/ ER
AHETH

ERRERARIA

RS dEgREEAHS

7K

KEARHEEENS EEER - BE
REAKE - KBS ETRMERE - FH
FEAKE c BETABEEEAKEEEK
R o WKEBART - SANEETH
18+ URDKERRRE ©

THESHEVKERBERAKEAL - B
SEESHNAK EREEREINELR
EMAKE  BTABITXMNKE - B
BRELERBBRELETEKE  BHEE
BHRRABTLMEREREE  BER
BEPE BB REER  BLEIEE
BAE - BARERSERER R
BMEREE - 2EFEKFE - Bt
“ECCFKHERERERY - AREER
YER EER-ZE-RFRISKERER
1£10% » MREHRIOERBEROT -

Terminal
storage
business
TR RS
72,149 72,382 100,005
Trading and
retail business:
BORTERR -
23
22 Terminal
storage business:
BERHES:
38
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A3.

A4.

Nitrogen

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process
is controlled automatically instead of manually to avoid wastes.
The usage of nitrogen is monitored to ensure there is no
leakage.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group's terminal is near to the waterbody with high
biodiversity and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group's
internal policies, efforts have been made to minimise the
impact of activities on the environment. For example, two sets
of oil spill monitoring and alerting system have been installed in
the water body near the terminal. The system is able to detect
oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is berthing or oil
products are loaded.

Our terminals are also monitored by staff under 24-hour real-
time video surveillance system. If oil spill accidents are detected,
the signal from the alarm system can reach the responsible
staff and prompt remedies can be carried out to reduce the
impact on the environment.

To strength the pollution control, the Group has cooperated
with a company specialised in handling oil spill accidents to
equip adequate facilities (e.g. oil boom) to prevent the spread
of oil leakage in the sea.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Governance

The Group addresses climate-related risks based on the nature
of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate
change, including extreme weather events, or damage to
facilities have immediate operational impacts and are treated
as operational risks. Long-term challenges, such as emerging
ESG issues and climate-related risks and opportunities, may be
discussed by the Group’s ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board meetings
and ensures that they are incorporated into our strategy.

z

ARENRTFREZEEVENERE
R EEWE PR EREBRERE - BAR

HE

B ZEFTIBEMIEAFES - A

2RE - AAERESR  BERILER -

A3.

A4,

BRERRARER
REBETSEMAKE - ERRZHENME
HehaBEREE - REAEEN
RBEPEER - BBBIEEBE B IR
BREE - BPIME - ATHEERIK
HEREKMARBER N ERRL -
FEomtm St = S ENSUM MBS - RATRE(R
RRBELRAEIN

BT NE 24 RERBEERER
EREH - HBELERBEN > BRR
ReEEARTREST - WRAUR
RERIE - REHRBCFE -

AINGRISRENT - NEEEFFIREIE
RABINIRAIANE - LEEBTED R
Me(anmR) - Be/E DIRHEAL -

RizEt

=95
NEEZEERRA S REERR
EENRE - RIS CBFERIRRE
EHNERTE - AREENRES
METELE URALERARE
B AEBRIRE HgREBTIE
NEEFmREKE - R
RN HEREREE - BRIXHEE
2B Ko i o

EIRE - e REA TR R SR
T EXgGEFeeR L EHEE
HRRAMENEENAR - YA
WAL AT ERHES o

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills to
oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our Board
also seeks professional advice from external experts when
necessary to better support the decision-making process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for the
Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as well as
gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure and
policy relative to the best practice standards. Moreover, the
ESG Working Group works closely with the Group’s different
operation departments, with an aim to develop consistent and
enhanced approaches on addressing ESG risk issues and report
to the management.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts resulting
from natural disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by
taking into consideration a range of diverse risk factors across
the many categories in our services range. This diversity of risk
is combined with our business strategy and broad geographic
footprint helps us mitigate risk and provide protection against
the impacts of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection for
people in our communities against weather and heat-related
disease. Besides, we continue to explore opportunities to
engage our business partners and encourage them to develop
climate resilience and reduce their operational carbon footprint
by taking into consideration of different climate-related
scenarios, including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the
following steps:
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Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects
As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility that
the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such as stricter
policies including the introduction of and increases in carbon
pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes in customer
awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the International
Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others, we developed multiple
future images as the external environment that will surround our
Group. With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where climate
change measures do not progress and where such measures
progress further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such a society, it will
be possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and production,
introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is anticipated in
accordance with the global advance of climate change measures,
leading to the possibility of higher raw material procurement and
production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, production interruptions and
supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of higher
frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where the
emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are high. By
promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout the world
through comprehensive energy-saving policies and introduction of
renewable energy, we are working to achieve zero carbon emission
in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive energy-
saving and introduction of renewable energy. With respect to
renewable energy in particular, we have set a new target, achieve a
reduction rate for purchased electricity in coming few years.
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With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test the
existing risk management strategies under climate change with the
aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new strategies are
needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach using
national data, local information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound existing risks or create
new ones. The risk assessment is conducted through the following
steps:

Step 1: Establish the context
e Objective/goal

° Scale
e Time frame

e  Climate change scenario for most climate variables and sea
level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)
e |dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the past

in the area

e Risk management strategies in place to tackle future occurrence
of the hazard
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Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities
e Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

e |dentify potential hazards

e Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

e Identify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

e Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e., geographical
areas, business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has the
potential to be at risk in future

As outlined within the “Governance” section above, the Group has
robust risk management and business planning processes that are
overseen by the board of directors in order to identify, assess and
manage climate-related risks. The Group engages with government
and other appropriate organizations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets and
profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses climate
change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor
and reduce their environmental footprint.

HR3 BB B RRBENEE
o RETREERNFRBEERERRAMRK
By IER

. HBIEENH

o ERNBREBEHNED  AELE2R
ERERERE LB

o ERNAREFWES - BRIAIEEHR
R

S84 SR EER

o HRIRBAELAT AR —EREH
Bl R (IR E - 21588
BE HRERGS)

WmEXTER -8 - ARERARE
MEREEMEHREEE  EHEFE
EE - MtEs  SHEMEERIEERN
R o AEBBEBTREMSENEME
M ZREER MR A RE
RN RAER -

BPEERTERIEE(CHORE - LR A
WERB P ERRAMEEREEN - AT - RIR
R EgB AT EARENLE  BE
MBNEIERINFEZE - REBEFHEE
Boanfo] ST RIRE LR R AMEE - W
BERFRDEIRTNTE -

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related physical
risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or may impact
our Group's business and strategy in (i) operations, products and
services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii) adaptation and
mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research and development,
and (v) financial planning, as well as the steps taken to manage
these risks, are as follows:

Climate-related risks description Financial impact

RIREERRER Ligis 72

Physical Risk
BRER

Acute physical risks

RS dEgREEAHS

EARIZEREE

RBEHE - BERER /R ERE

BEG)2E EmERE - (DHERLE

B8 - (ii)EE LA - (VITERE
R (5875 F R MR A EAR

REFERRRMEERR  UREEE

FARRE PR

Steps taken to manage the risks

EERARARRNSR

- Increased severity and frequency of extreme - Operating cost increases. - Planned to adopted scenario
weather events such as cyclones and floods, - Capital cost increases due to analysis to disclose an
strong wind. Hence, staff are easily injured. In the damage of facilities. organization’s planning under

addition, under the extreme weather events,
the costs of transportation, communications
and living increase, which may lead to financial
oss.
- Increased likelihood and severity of wildfire,
which may hinder the operations of factories.
Financial loss occurs due to the interruption
of supply chain, logistics and transportation.
BARERRER
mmARMRLE KK RENRERENE -  KERERLF-

future scenarios, most notably
one with in a “2°C scenario”.

- Established a natural disasters
emergency plan.
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Climate-related risks description

RERER R

Physical Risk
BERm R

Chronic physical risks

- Prolonged hot weather may increase the -

energy consumption.

- Climate change brings uncertainties to the
environments of production and sales.
Although direct losses will not be incurred
by the company, this may still affect and limit
the product sales and services significantly.

- Prolonged climate change may detriment
the human's health. Continuation of
temperature rise can increase the fatality
rates and incidence rates of some diseases,
especially the one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread of some
climate-sensitive diseases such as malaria
and dengue fever may increase.
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Financial impact
g 32

Steps taken to manage the risks

EERERARRNSR

Revenue reduces from -
decreased production

capacity and the negative

impacts of workforce.

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or other
changes to facilities that may
reduce their vulnerability to
climate impacts and increase
the climate resilience in long
term.

- Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local

resilience.
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Steps taken to manage the risks

EERRARRNSR

Financial impact

b2

Climate-related risks description

BERR

Transitional Risk

BERER

Policy risk

- Asaresult of energy efficiency requirements,
carbon-pricing mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to encourage
sustainable land use, hindering the area of -
expansion, which increase the operation cost.

- Mandates on and regulation of existing
products and services as of the tightened
environmental and safety laws and standards
of oil. We have to spend much compliance
cost to update or maintain the equipment to
fulfil the new regulations.

BERER

- BRBRMENRE  REERHSANE -
ERLT - IEBRL A HETHRENA -
SHRERSE - EMEmEEnAs - -

- RBE RREIEEERE  FEREEM
MR ERENRT - ARBEEETDARK
K BHRREREAZIHRE

Legal risk

- Exposure to litigation. We have to adapt the -
tightened law and regulations issued by the
government due to climate change, and they
have the risk of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

- Enhanced emissions-reporting obligations. We
may have to spend much time on fulfilling the
report standards to comply the new obligations.
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- EHFLRR - AMREERRARREEE -
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—E-FFR EDERERAT

Operating cost increases
due to increased insurance
premiums for the factories.
Risk of trade increases.

BERE L7 - S BEAA
210
RSB -

Operating cost increases
for high compliance costs
and increased insurance
premiums for the Group.

BRRARBRAEEANRES -

i EEERA LT

Planned to be involved in
carbon trading and adoption
of clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

Monitor the updates of
the relevant climate-related
environmental policies,

to avoid the unnecessary
increase in cost and
expenditure due to the
violation of the climate-
related environmental
policies.

A2 ERIRR S YEE
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Monitored the updates

of environmental laws and
regulations and implemented
GHG emissions calculations in
advance.
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BE dEgRERES

Climate-related risks description

BERR

Transitional Risk
BURRR

Technology risk
- Developing the low carbon energy-saving -
products and energy saving technologies,
the capital investment and R&D expense
increase consequently.
- More green building strategies with
low-carbon, energy-saving technologies
are adopted by industry peers. Lagging
behind may weaken our competitive edges.
LA -
- FABREREEEDRSERE  HEERRE
MEF R IE M -
- RARTRPEZHRERERE  REAHF]
ik - ERRERHR o IR AR R MR E
o
Market risk

p=il

- More customers are considering climate- -

related risks and opportunities, which
may lead to changes in customers’ demand

for products. -

- Uncertainty in market signals. “How
environmentally friendly the product is”

becomes one of the factors to affect the -

product selling price.

- Increased cost of raw materials. More
environmentally-friendly raw materials
may be much expensive, which may
increase the cost.

5 E K
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Financial impact

mHHE

Steps taken to manage the risks

EERRARNNSR

Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving
products.

- Examined the feasibility and
benefits of applying the latest
low-carbon and energy-
saving technologies into our
operation.

ATEIRE AR E M ©

- BERASHEREERMR
LR ATIENRS o

Capital investment in -
technology development
increases.

RS0 ERERE LTt -

Revenue decreases for the -
change in revenue mix and

sources.

Operating cost increases as

abrupt and unexpected shifts

in energy costs.

Production cost increases due

to changing input prices and
output requirements.

Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products and
studied the application of
recycled materials.
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Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks

BERR b2 EERRARRNSR

Transitional Risk

HEER

Reputational risk

- Unable to fulfil the expectations of the - Revenue decreases from - Supported the green
customers, damage the Group's reputation decreased demand for goods productions.
and image. and the decrease in production - Fulfilled the social

- Stigmatization of our business sector, capacity. responsibility by organizing
such as more stakeholder concern - Operating costs increases from more activities or executing
or negative stakeholder feedback negative impacts on workforce actions to demonstrate how
on the product designed in a less management and planning. we place importance on
environmentally-friendly way. climate change.

BEER

- REERRFPHE  FEEMEENTERE. - ERFREERTR CURER - HREeLE-

- EBEAR AR MHhRHENEERRE Do - BREZERDIEENT B
DEHERLFENRFEEOIER RE - SPNERERRIXAATE THEEE  BRAKEYR
WERAM - M<E@RA LT (RELEER -

During the reporting period, the primary climate-related HiREHIR - F ERFEEKE R IEED
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as  BAf& &2 -
follows:

Detailed description of climate-related opportunities Financial Impact

RIZERA#RAE B

Resource efficiency

- Reduce more packaging material usage - Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
- Reduce water usage and consumption and cost reductions

e - EEMEE BB - GRS ERA

- RBAERABEYHE

- RPRKERTHEE

Energy source

RER

Use of lower-emission fuel sources
Use of supportive policy incentives
Use of new technologies

& RIEBERUAREL
ERRFBRAR
AR

—E-FFR EDERERAT

- Operating cost reduces through use of
lowest cost abatement

- Returns on investment in low-emission
technology increases

- EBERREHPRA AR S ERA
- KBRS EE L
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Detailed description of climate-related opportunities

FIRMERAMEFL

Financial Impact

g7

Products and services
- Development of climate adaptation and insurance risk

solutions
- Ability to diversify business activities
EmAMARTS
- EREERENRREROERL R
- EBETHS
Markets

- Access to new markets

M
- EEEmS

Resilience

- Participation in renewable energy programs and adoption of
energy-efficiency measures

- Resource substitution or diversification

t

Gl )
- 2HEBARRNRIRBEREEE
- ARERISZHL

=

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and GHG emissions indicators are the key metrics
used to assess and manage relevant climate-related risks
where we consider such information is material and crucial
for evaluating the impact of our operation on global climate
change during the year. Our Group regularly tracks our energy
consumption and GHG emissions indicators to assess the
effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives, as well as set

- Revenue increases through new solutions to
adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services

- EBYARENTRAFR(MRRARSEE
S ARR) 8 Al

- Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets

- EEERERHMIGETSE A

- Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

- Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increases

- Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency

- EBWHER  HHNRBMETERE NN
siEs e

- AR RETRRR TR

- ERRTRER AR IES AR K

Ny

#

EERER

REE R A AR R EE RR IR
MR R RS - sERBERERER
B BUE R ARNE R EIEER R
MRBROERERER  RMAIRA/RFENY
REHER AN EER FRHZIRRIREE
VWETEEMBRN ARERNEH

BHERETRBRE SR ER B HINIEIR - LAGY
ERBHE RN BRI - UREBZR - B

HER 2 BRRC T EEERE -

targets to contribute our effort to have minimal impact on

global warming.
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The details of time frames over which the target applies and
base year from which progress is measured are described in the
section A1: "Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources”
of this Report. Our Group adopts absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and is
committed to improve in these four areas: employment, health
and safety, development and training and labour standard.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide good and safe working environment to
its staff in order to comply with “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. It sets out the Group’s standards
for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines, remuneration scale,
holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental leaves and working
hours.

All employees are treated equally and their employment,
remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be affected
by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status.

The Group also advocates harmonious and work-life balance
culture among the employees through organising diversified
activities, including annual dinner, annual gathering, sport
days and birthday parties, etc. These activities can help the
employees to relax and enhance communications among
them. During the reporting period, no concluded case (2021:
nil) regarding employment was brought against us or our
employees.

ERRFEERAT

B HERERRE

BERFAMERER N EEENEES
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As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—HBK=Z

employee compositions (in percentage of employees) by
gender, age group, geographical region, employment category B4R

—Ft-A=1t—8"

BRI~ F

g - EEERNREAED

and mode were as follows:

Employee compositions

BEARK

VEEMK(HREEBBBE B L)W

E’J
T

By gender R

e  Male o« HiE 83%
e Female o T 17%
By age group REERA R

e Age 30 or below o 30BRELIAT 29%
o Age 31-40 e 31-40B% 40%
e Age41-50 e 41-508% 21%
e Age 51 or above 5155 10%
By geographical region J’Zc'i‘th

e Hong Kong o HF 4%
e The PRC e HH 96%
By employment category H’E{Eﬂ%ﬁf‘auslﬁ

e Senior management SREEE 8%
e Middle management o EPZ&EEEJE 14%
e General o —K 77%
e Contract/short term B, 1%
By employment mode ?J?{Eﬂ%ﬁ'ﬁ

e  Full-time o 2H 99%
e Contract/short term o BH/RH 1%

The employee turnover rate during the year by gender, age g xiZ 4R -
group and geographical region was as follows: AR ¢

Employee turnover rate

99%
1%

FhAR MR EDHNES

EERALE

By gender R 5

e Male o HiF 32%
e Female o I 19%
By age group RERRAR

e Age 30 or below e 30pREIAT 38%
e Age 31-40 e 31-40B% 28%
e  Age41-50 o 41-50B% 32%
e Age 51 or above o STpRakbA L 6%
By geographical region Rt E

e Hong Kong o HFE -
e The PRC e 31%
Overall st 30%
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B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group
is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and the community. The Group has established
“Health, Safety and Environment Policy Statement” in
accordance with the requirement of “Occupational Health
and Safety Management System” (OHSAS18001) and
ISO45001:2018. The Group continues to improve the working
conditions and monitor the effectiveness of safety related
controls. The Group complies with related health and safety
laws and regulations such as “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites”, etc. In 2022, no concluded
case (2021: nil) regarding health and safety was brought
against us or our employees.

Care to Employees

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal
protective equipment (helmet, goggles, masks, etc.) in the
workplace. Occupation hazards assessment is conducted
by third party regularly to monitor the performance on
occupational safety. To ensure the staff to have better health
protection, the Group provides medical insurance for the staff
annually.

The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
warm and comfortable working and living environment. The
Group has set up self-managed staff quarters and canteens
with a view to providing sound rest space and healthy
catering to its employees. Drinks are also freely provided to all
employees in hot season to prevent them from having heat
stroke. Furthermore, the Group offers various activities for the
staff, such as annual trip, annual gathering and birthday meal,
to advocate the work-life balance and harmony. Such activities
can strengthen the relationships between the staffs and allow
them to be more relaxed.
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B3.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employees in workplace is crucial. Key safety
precautions are implemented as follows:

e Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and
emergency cut-off valve are installed in each berth.

e  Parameters of all flammable and explosive substances
are carefully and closely monitored (e.g. temperature,
pressure, flow volume) during transfer. All parameters
information is transferred to PLC (Programmable Logic
Controllers) in the terminal control centre for monitoring
the frontline operation.

e Workers, who enter the tank, must wear protective
clothes and make sure that the toxic gas concentration
does not exceed the acceptable level.

e Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing
apparatus are provided.

During the year, there was 1 work injury case (2021: 2 cases)
and 9 lost days (2021: 246 lost days) due to minor injuries
during business operations. There was no work-related fatality
case (2021: nil) during the year. Employees were given paid
sick leave for their recovery. Overall, no employees had serious
accident during the reporting period.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group continues to provide comprehensive and suitable
trainings to employees to promote a learning culture based
on the Group’s “Training Management Procedure” and other
related internal policies. The Group analyses the employees’
training and operation needs to prepare training and budget
plan yearly. The Group provides diversified on-the-job trainings
to employees, particularly safety trainings, with the aim to
improve the quality of the employees’ safety and to establish a
corporate safety culture.

B3.
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Generally, there are both internal and external trainings for
employees. Every new employee needs to receive a three-
month training including general knowledge and skills about
storage tanks. Assessment is conducted after the training. Only
the new employees who pass the assessment can start their
work in their position. Continuous assessment is conducted
to keep track on the performance of the current employees.
The Group also offers on-the-job training, which based on the
operation needs and annual training plan. It aims to enhance
the performance and skill of employees. External training
mainly includes certification training for specialists (e.g. safety
management personnel, engineers, accountants, etc.). The
Group invites related government departments and institutions
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.

With continuous trainings and assessments, the safety
knowledge of the employees can be strengthened and the
safety awareness can be enhanced. This can decrease the
occurrence of work-related accidents.

During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as
follows:

Percentage of employees received

training
XIEEEDLL
By gender =5
e Male e 5
*  Female o I
By employment category RERERE S
e Senior management s SRERE
e Middle management o HMERE
e General e —f&
Overall #ct

T FFR EBERARAE
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69% 37%
82% 76%
78% 81%
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During the reporting period, the composition of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as
follows:

Composition of employees received

training

ZF8fE 24K

By gender =B

e Male o HH

e Female o Tt

By employment category RERERNES
e Senior management o SRERE
e Middle management o HRERE
e General ¢ —

Furthermore, the average training hours by gender and
employment category during the reporting period was as
follows:

Average training hours received per

employee

BEEENTHZIIRE

By gender =B

e Male o H

e Female o Ik

By employment category RERERNES
e Senior management o SREERE
e Middle management o HRERE
e General o —

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, especially
gender equality and is strongly against employment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group strictly complies with
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations. Recruitment guideline clearly states that person
under 16 is not allowed to work in the Group and zero
tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

During the year, the Group was not subject to any punishment
by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit related
to child labour or forced labour.

RmEHE - R RERERNE D - %
FEEEERIT

86% 92%
14% 8%

7% 6%
12% 1%
81% 83%

BeSh - BABRAEHARS - AR R IR BRI
5 FHEYHBDOT

39 20
18 6
15 8
38 17
37 19
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OPERATING PRACTICES
B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

During the reporting period, the Group had 66 suppliers
(2021: 40 suppliers) which were located in the PRC. The Group
depends on suppliers to provide materials and components for
different storage facilities. The selection of suppliers is based
on a list of criteria, including compliance, price, quality, stability
of supply and after-sales services with completion of “Supplier
Assessment Form” in accordance with the Group’s internal
policy “Material Procurement Management Regulations”.
Besides, the Group assesses the suppliers with a rating system.
The Group maintains a long-term relationship with suppliers
based on the result from supplier assessment. During the
year, the assessment result was satisfactory and there was no
significant risk related to supply chain in environmental and
social aspects.

The Group implements the “Organizational Risk Management
Procedures” and “Organizational Environment and Relevant
Management Procedures” to identify the environmental and
social risks in each section of the supply chain, and determines
the significant impacts of the supply chain to the environment
and society with the execution of the Group's internal policies
“Material Procurement Management Regulations” and the
“Supplier Management Procedures”. It is expected that the
risk of supply chain comprises of delay, termination and
accumulation of the supply of materials. The supply chain risk
assessment is carried out by the managers and supervisors from
the Procurement Department half-yearly. During the reporting
period, there was no non-compliance case of the supplier being
discovered.

To reduce the impacts of the Group’s operation to the
environment, the Group used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers. The
Group implements the “Material Procurement Management
Regulations” during procurement, and requires the suppliers
to be certified with the quality management systems, such
as 1SO9000 or equivalent. Products with the certification of
environmental labelling would be more preferable. Besides,
suppliers are required to conduct sampling test and inspection
for the products and services.
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading midstream player in providing storage service for
chemical products in South China, maintaining the safety and
quality of customers’ products in the warehouse is the utmost
concern of the Group. In order to continuously improve the
quality of service provided by the Group, we have set up an
internal policy — “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures in accordance
with the requirement of quality management system
(1ISO9001). During the year, the Group was not subject to any
disputes relating to the storage service or punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to
product responsibility.

Complaints Handling

The Group upholds the feedback from the customers. The
Group implements the internal policy “Customers Complaint
and Services Management Procedures” to handle the
complaints from the customers. Department of commerce of
the Group is responsible for dealing the with complaints from
customers. Prompt response will be taken and the problem will
be identified to prevent similar complaints from happening.
During the year, no complaint (2021: 1 complaint) related
to the efficiency of goods unloading was received, and no
products sold or shipped (2021: nil) subjected to recalls for
safety and health reasons by the Group.

The Group responded to the cases immediately and explained
to the clients. The situation has improved after the adjustment
of the working schedule of employees and the increase in the
consumer service training.

Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to
provide Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored.
Besides, all storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United
Nation Number) and other relevant numbers for identification.

When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample
testing on the goods, verify the certification or testing report
provided by the suppliers and check if the name, specification
and technical information of the sample meet the national/
international standards. Only goods that pass the testing and
meet the related requirements can be stored in the Group’s
warehouse.
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Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and
privacy is the key principle for operation. We comply with
relevant laws and regulations. According to Group’s Staff
Handbook, employees are required to sign an agreement to
protect the privacy of clients and any other sensitive business
information. Employees who violate the agreement will receive
punishment and legal action will be taken. During the year, no
severe violation was found that posed a significant impact on
the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery
in any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Ill —
Crimes of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market Economy
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Chapter VIII
— Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in HKSAR" and other
relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

The Group has adopted “Compliance Policies” and stated
that the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will
not export, re-export, or otherwise divert customer’s products
and other items in violation of any Trade Control Laws. All
the employees and external drivers who can get access to the
customers’ products are monitored. For example, the weight
of truck is checked when it enters and leaves the premises to
monitor any abnormal loading.

The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. The Group
has zero tolerance to any forms and degrees of bribery or
corruption behaviours in relation to the Group’s business
activities. During the year, no concluded case (2021: nil)
regarding corrupt practices was brought against us or our
employees.

The Group provided training sessions comprising of anti-
corruption, anti-bribery, anti-fraud, anti-blackmail and anti-
laundering to the directors and staff regularly. During the
year, 98% (2021: 98%) of the employees received the anti-
corruption training.
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The number of employees received anti-corruption training and
the training hours by employment category were as follows:

Anti-corruption training

REEERNE S  EXREFEIN
BB ABRIEDIRSAT

R&EFEIN

Number of employees received FIHEEAH
training

e Board of directors s EFE

e Senior management s EREHRE

e Middle management o HRETEEE

e General staff e —fRET

Total employees EEBAHY

Number of training hours BRI

e Board of directors . EF®

e Senior management s mREEE

e Middle management o HREMRE

e General staff o —fRET

Total training hours B

COMMUNITY

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contributing to the society and
fostering positive relationship with the communities in which
the Group operates. The Group has related policies and
measures to understand the needs of the community, such
as villagers, employees and non-governmental organisations.
Contribution to the community and maintaining harmonious
relationship with the stakeholders in the region of operation
are crucial for the sustainable development.

During the year, the Group participated in a charitable activity
to help the community by making donation of RMB20,000
to Dongguan Charity Federation ("HZEMZEZ4E ") in June
2022 and donation of RMB1,400 to Guangning Poverty
Alleviation Charity Federation ("EEE= LELBIKERES
=) in August 2022 to support alleviation of poverty.
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10 14
21 25

130 180
166 224

9 10
10 10
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96 162

132 233
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hans Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 117 to 231, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS RARETER
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional B EFZEIZEBERFINZEHE - R

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the AYWARHGEMBRENSTRAEEEN
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These =18 o FHHIFEFERPIRFEE LR

= A2 VN
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Rt B = BREITEIEY - BRI
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our  Re Y E L EFERHEBHNSE o
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant F{LEEER OB TYE - BMERRE - URIFER
and equipment and interests in leasehold land fZ 8+ it & 1& TS NEERE

and building held for own use under the terminal
storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the FELR4=E M IEHRALIS B (W) LEHFET0
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

RARETER BMNETNAEEZER

At 31 December 2022, the Group's property, plant and  Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
equipment and interests in leasehold land and building  of property, plant and equipment and interests in
held for own use accounted for 30% of the total assets  leasehold land and building held for own use the
of the Group. These assets principally comprised dock terminal storage segment included the following:

and storage facilities and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use. e evaluating management’s identification of

CGUs and the amounts of property, plant and
One of the cash-generating units ("CGU") with equipment, interests in leasehold land and
property, plant and equipment and interests in building held for own use and other assets
leasehold land and building held for own use carried at allocated to each CGU;

a net book value of HK$522 million as at 31 December
2022, recorded a decrease in revenue by 13%
compared to previous year.

EEER T _F+-A=+—BHYE BEE BMRATEERERIBTYE  BERRE AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use under the terminal

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

BRETER(E)

AHEREA RO BT Y%  BMERRE - UREER
RzETREFEENETRE

storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Consequently, management considered that potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and building held for own
use existed for this CGU as at 31 December 2022.

Management performed impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use using
the value in use model and compared the aggregate
carrying values of each separately identifiable CGU
to which the property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and building held for own
use had been allocated with the net present value of
the respective future cash flow (“discounted cash flow
analyses”) to determine the amount of impairment
which should be recognised for the year, if any.
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Bk & B ERZ A & AT BR 1(h() KHTEZ 10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENES A EEZEE

assessing and challenging management'’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

obtaining and reviewing the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments for
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use
under the terminal storage segment were based;

challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow analyses by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue and future
operating costs with the historical performance,
committed contracts on hand, the financial
budgets of the Group which had data been
approved by the directors and externally derived
data, which included projected growth rates,
projected inflation rates and industry analyses
published by external research institutes;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use under the terminal

RRESEE(E)

FERERRI B TUE MERRE - UREFER
RzEE+REFREBNETRE

storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

FLE B B RERAIE A BR 1) RATZF10

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RRETEE

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use under
the terminal storage segment as a key audit matter
because of the significant management judgement
required in making assumptions and estimations,
including estimations of future revenue, inflation
of operating costs and discount rate applied, which
can be inherently uncertain and could be subject to
management bias.

HAMEHBRREAFHEEZENEEEHE - 235KRK
Wanfhat » ERABIRE MAR X MZFRFEMA
AR FERA THREML TSR FAEERERR -
HE IR IBER RO B T - BB MRk
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REARETEH -

BAMETNAREZEER

assessing the discount rate applied in the
discounted cash flow analyses by benchmarking
against those of other similar companies in the
same industry;

evaluating the historical accuracy of management’s
value in use calculations by comparing the
forecasts at the end of the previous financial year
for revenue and operating costs with the actual
outcomes in the current year and investigating
reasons for any significant differences between
the forecast and actual results; and

performing sensitivity analyses for both the
discount rate and future revenue and considering
the resulting impact on the impairment
assessments and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment in an unlisted company

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

BREITERE)

RFELTARNREME(LEEFRTSNTSERE)

with no quoted market price in active market

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(ii) and notes 15 and
30(f) to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter
HARETEE

The Group made an investment in an unlisted
company whose subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of public bus, travel related and media
services in Hong Kong.

The investment in the unlisted company is accounted
for as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income under HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments. At 31 December 2022, the fair value of
the investment in the unlisted company with no quoted
market price in active market was HK$637,955,000,
which was classified under the fair value hierarchy as
level 3.

The fair value of the investment in the unlisted
company with no quoted market price in active
market was determined by the directors with reference
to a valuation report issued by an external valuer.
The investment in the unlisted company has been
valued based on a valuation model which requires
a considerable number of inputs and assumptions,
including future ridership growth rate, future fare
receipt growth rate and the discount rate.

BEEH—RMELTARELRE  ENEAREE
EEBRFERHEDEE L - IKEHR NIRRT -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENEST A EREZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investment in an unlisted company with no quoted
market price in active market included the following:

e obtaining an understanding of the design and
implementation of key internal controls in relation
to the valuation of the investment in the unlisted
company;

e evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuers engaged by
management to perform the valuation;

e involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology adopted in the valuation report
issued by the external valuer with reference to the
prevailing accounting standards;

e involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing whether the discount rate
applied was within the range adopted by other
companies operating in the same industry;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment in an unlisted company

BREITEER(E)

RELTARNREME(LBERT SN SHRE)

with no quoted market price in active market

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(ii) and notes 15 and
30(f) to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

FLR A R R 1(9)(i) K RTE 15K
30(1)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRESER

We identified the valuation of the investment in the
unlisted company with no quoted market price in
active market as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the investment in the unlisted company
to the Group's total assets at 31 December 2022 and
because of the significant management judgement
required in making assumptions and estimations in the
valuation of the investment which can be inherently
uncertain and could be subject to management bias.

BRI LT RAMERE (L EERTIZHTIER
B)EEZNSERENFER  ERARIELTAR
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KT REEBITEENHE - SR EFHERE
M IREEL AT RE X BN EREHRR

RMWES N REZEE

e challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions, which included future ridership
growth rate and future fare receipt growth rate,
adopted by management in the valuation model
by comparing with externally derived data; and

e evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management for the key assumptions, including
future ridership growth rate, future fare receipt
growth rate and the discount rate, considering
the resulting impact on the valuation results
and whether there were any indicators of
management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment in an investment fund

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

REESERE)

REEESHREMEEERT SN SRE)

with no quoted market price in active market

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(ii) and notes 15 and
30(f) to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

HRE SR

B R ER AV B S BR 1)) RATF 15K
30()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENEST A EREZSEE

The Group made investment in an investment
fund which invests primarily in equity and equity-
related securities, mainly in companies based in Asia-
Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar
investment focus.

The investment fund is accounted for as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS
9, Financial Instruments. At 31 December 2022, the
fair value of the investment in an investment fund
with no quoted market prices in active markets was
HK$123,285,000, which was classified under the fair
value hierarchy as level 3.

The fair value of the investment fund with no quoted
market price in active market was determined based
on valuation performed by the investment fund
manager at 31 December 2022 and adjusted by the
directors for valuation difference on certain underlying
investment.
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investment in an investment fund with no quoted
market price in active market included the following:

e  obtaining an understanding of the design and
implementation of key internal controls in relation
to the valuation of investment in the investment
fund;

e  obtaining the most recently available audited
financial statements and comparing to the
valuation report released by the investment
fund manager for the same period to assess the
historical accuracy of the valuations made by the
investment fund manager;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of investment in an investment fund

RRETEER(E)

RREESHREMGE(EBETRTSNTSHRE)

with no quoted market price in active market

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(ii) and notes 15 and
30(f) to the consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

BRESER

FLR A R R 1(9)(i) K RTE 15K
30(1)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRENETNAEREZSEE

We identified the valuation of the investment in the
investment fund with no quoted market price in
active market as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the investment in the investment fund
to the Group's total assets at 31 December 2022 and
because of the significant management judgement
required in making assumptions and estimations in the
valuation difference which can be inherently uncertain
and could be subject to management bias.

BABNRER SR E (L EEFENHNTIHRE)
HESHSBREAEE  EAARKREESHRE
i BERER T _HF+-_A=t+—HWEELE
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RHEEBEEBITEEAHE - SAkFEREN TR
M AR HINEIREEORESR

e obtaining the most recent fund performance
report and interviewing the investment fund
manager, to obtain information on the underlying
investments of the fund, such as nature and
timing of investments, percentage of ownership,
any change in portfolio since the last audited
financial statements, performance during the
period and factors driving the performance;

e with the involvement of our valuation specialists,
discussing with the investment fund manager
the valuation methodology as well as the key
assumptions adopted on valuation of the
investments; and assessing the appropriateness
of the valuation methodology adopted with
reference to the requirements of prevailing
accounting standards; and

e  evaluating the reasonableness of the adjustments
made by the directors on the valuation of
the investment fund obtained from the fund
managers by comparing with the valuation made
by the directors with valuation assessed by our
internal valuation specialists.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

—ECCHFH EBRFRERAE

Independent Auditor's Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BT R

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kong Wing Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2023
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Consolidated Income Statement
GERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HBIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZ&7EHI7R)

Revenue WA 3 694,851 1,974,767
Direct costs and operating expenses B K 2N [ 4844 B (601,234) (1,867,945)
Gross profit EF 93,617 106,822
Other income H Atz 4 55,479 26,236
Selling and administrative expenses  $4%& &1TIE A (85,672) (156,309)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on RAREFTAEBRZ

financial assets at fair value SMEEARE

through profit or loss (E518) W58 (8,066) 70,031
Profit from operations R RER 55,358 46,780
Finance costs BA TS AR N 5(a) (51,924) (54,934)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BFLATRR(BE) 5 3,434 (8,154)
Income tax FTiSt 6(a) (1,762) (5,364)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRER(BE) 1,672 (13,518)
Attributable to: FEAh :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR &M ER 207 (16,047)
Non-controlling interests JEFEAR RS 1,465 2,529
Profit/(loss) for the year FERER(F5E) 1,672 (13,518)
Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) SREXRF#ERZF

per share (E548) 9 0.01 cents {1l (0.41) cents 11

The notes on pages 124 to 231 form part of these financial R E 1248 E2318 2 M s A4AK I E
statements. Bk oz —E5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+-A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TEHIR)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year:

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated
income statement:

Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of
subsidiaries

[tem that will not be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated
income statement:
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of

investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI")

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The notes on pages 124 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

at 31 December 2022 R=ZF = —F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZ&7LHI7R)

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - B NERE 10 414,265 487,267
Interests in leasehold land and BIEERCEELT R
buildings held for own use B 10 184,754 208,380
Investment property KEYE 11 39,818 46,027
Prepayments and other receivables — F&/{sH I & Eofth fig Uy 708 12 11,121 15,645
Other investments Hipig & 15 761,240 816,844
Intangible assets BEEE 13 888 1,062
Interest in an associate kN ey 18 1,119 1,223
Interest in a joint venture REERHE 19 1,959 2,140
Goodwiill e 14 4,742 5,181
1,419,906 1,583,769
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 16 120,854 144,336
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A ERGRIE 20 273,672 440,451
Cash and bank balances R RIRITAES 21(@a) 162,297 118,160
556,823 702,947
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and B 5 R EAMENFRIE
contract liabilities UREHEE 22 73,479 53,741
Bank loans IRITER 23 164,239 206,066
Lease liabilities HEBaE 24 4,752 4,430
Current taxation BIHARR IR 25(a) 1,705 1,639
Amounts due to related parties FERT AR 5 8 26 77,358 82,802
321,533 348,678
Net current assets REEEZEE 235,290 354,269
Total assets less current liabilities #EERAREBEE 1,655,196 1,938,038

—Eo—gER ESERERAT @



Consolidated Balance Sheet
FEEEARER

at 31 December 2022 R=ZF=-—&+—-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 7R )

Non-current liabilities FERBEB
Bank loans IRITENK 23 420,600 562,109
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 27,570 23,564
448,170 585,673
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,207,026 1,352,365

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE
Share capital [N 29(b) 395,664 395,664
Reserves HE 791,377 936,458

Total equity attributable to equity Zx2 TR
shareholders of the Company FE{G RS 1,187,041 1,332,122
Non-controlling interests IR 19,985 20,243
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,207,026 1,352,365

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson RZE-_=F=ZA-+_HESFEHt#

22 March 2023. REETIE o
Yang Dong Zhang Lei
BE RE
Director Director
EF EFE

The notes on pages 124 to 231 form part of these financial FRE1248 52318 2Kt AAMK IS
statements. &z —2H -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERDBHR

for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T -_—F+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE3R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
AOARREERR

Treasury
HIEEY
under share  Share-based Asset Non-
Share Share Special ~ Translation  Statutory award  compensation  revaluation Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserve [GE reserve scheme reserve reserve profts Total interests equity
RERS
£BitY
KEf
KRR f y BERE BOVHRE REEMRR  RERA
) l 0 §000 §000 §/000 §1000
r ] i T T T T

Balanceat 1 January 2021 R=Z=-£-3-A

bi 3 395,664 761827 (251428) 6,745 31,947 (16,581) 9,416 - 31521 969,17 1711 986,229
(Lossfprofitfortheyear ~ ER(EE)/ 57 - - - - - - - - (60 (16047) 259 (135%)
Other comprehensive income - £ 2E4E - - - 13,141 - - - 309,336 - A 602 33079
Total comprehensive income ~ 2FENALE - - - 13141 - - - 309,336 (16,047) 306,430 3131 309,561
Fouitysettd share-based ~~ [WERZEZRIZS
transacton (Note 281) ~~ (H&E8(b)) - - - - - - 56,575 - - 56,575 - 56,575
Balance at 31 December 2021 =F=-£+=f
and 1 January 2022 =+-AR=%-z
-R-R2&H 395,664 761,827 (251,428) 19,886 31,947 (16,581) 65,991 309,336 15480 1332122 20243 1352365
Profit forthe year Eiat| - - - - - - - - 07 07 1,465 1612
Other comprehensive income £ 2EH% - - - (17,919) - - - (140,000) - (157,919) (1723)  (159,642)
Total comprehensive income 2 ENZEE - - - (17,919) - - - (140,000) 207 (157,112) (58  (157,970)
Shares purchased under share R EHR A £ 32l
award scheme (Note 28(2) A7 IH3E28(a)) - - - - - (3241 - - - (3.241) - 3.241)
Equitysettd share-based ~ JAEREEZRATS
transaction (Note 28(0)) (Hz280) - - - - - - 15872 - - 15812 - 15872
Lapse ofshare options ERERN
(Note 280} (Mska8(oli) - - - - - - (120) - 0 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2022 A=F==£+=f
=t-ReksH 395,664 761,827 (251,428) 1,967 31947 (19822) 81,443 169,336 16,107 1,187,041 19,985 1,207,026

The notes on pages 124 to 231 form part of these financial #HAE 1248552318 2 M X A48 EE
statements. ¥z o — 885 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —F+-A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TEHIR)

Operating activities EHETEH
Cash generated from operations KEEEFIBIR S 21(b) 295,664 148,069
PRC corporate income tax paid BRI EAEH (1,610) (4,191)
Net cash generated from EXTHERE

operating activities R 294,054 143,878
Investing activities REEH
Capital injection to an associate m—KEERETE - (1,204)
Capital injection to a joint venture A—REErETE - (2,108)
Decrease in restricted cash PR B3R 2R 52,448 14,067
Payment for the purchase of property, EEAYZE - BE K&

plant and equipment B s (5,408) (4,771)
Payment for purchase of other BAHMKE 2N

investments (105,500) (269,179)
Proceeds received from the disposal of HEWZE - FE &

property, plant and equipment Fth 2 B FTISFRIA 87 74
Interest received EHFE 8,381 1,512
Dividend received from unlisted EWSELETRAIRE 2

equity investment % & 31,118 -
Distribution from other investments ~ #E IR EH Ik 13,011 -
Net cash used in RETBFARS

investing activities FEE (5,863) (261,609)

@ HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-_—HF+-A=+—HI&FE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BA7TTFI7R)

Financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Payment for purchase of shares
under share award scheme

Net cash used in
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

The notes on pages 124 to 231 form part of these financial

statements.

—E-FFR EDERERAT

BMEEH

ENFE

FRITE PTG RIA

BIERITER

ENEERSNERTD

ENEERSNN B

IRIBA D R =t B
AR Z 3R

BMEZHARE
R

RERBALEERA
2, Ohd) B8

R—A—BZEER
Re%EER

HEERSEH T

R+=A=+—HZ
RERREEHEEA

21(a)

(49,790) (53,154)
146,695 120,445
(270,242) (165,010)

(6,076) (6,499)
(1,664) (1,795)
(3,241) -
(184,318) (106,013)
103,873 (223,744)
63,121 285,872
(4,697) 993
162,297 63,121
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR + BHEFEHERSIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group'’s interest in an associate and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
other investments (see note 1(g)) are stated at their fair
value.

Non-current assets are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(9]

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these developments has had a
material effect on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-

controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-

controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(q) or (t) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1()(ii)). A controlled structured entity that is directly
held by the Company is considered as branch/agent of
the Company and the assets and liabilities thereof are
accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company in
the Company'’s balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)(ii)). At
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group'’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture, after
applying the ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable (see note 1()(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associate
and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(I)(ii)), unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(I)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 30(f). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

0}

R FFR

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 1(V)(v)).

- FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

-  FVPLif the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FA S SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A THIR -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)
(ii) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading =R 7/ NTY
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) £ i
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set out in

note 1(v)(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment
(i)

B FF

&

R

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(I)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of
property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. The
proceeds from selling any such items and the related
costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAERHERRIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings 20-30 years
— Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
— Filling station facilities 20 years
— Office equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Leasehold improvements Over the term of

the lease
- Right-of-use assets Over the term of

the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents oil and gas
station under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(1)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
charges, during the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction in progress.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

()

Investment property

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use
assets which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 1(I)(ii)).

The Group's investment property is rented out under an
operating lease. The investment property is depreciated
on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life as
20-30 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(I)(ii)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 24 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

0}

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i

B FF

)

&

R

As a lessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in debt securities carried at amortised
cost (see notes 1(g)(i) and 1(I)(i)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h)
and 1(I)(ii)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAF TSR

1

HAEEAERRIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)

0}

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the principal portion of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 1(v)(i).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 1(k)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAERHERRIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets

0}

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses ("ECLs"”) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and bank
balances, and trade and other receivables) and lease
receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREFHBEGAE)
() Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued) () EEFEREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and (i) sWMIEREWESHE
lease receivables (continued) BER(E)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) quE?EHHT*E BB (E)

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(v)(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

(D)

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
asset becomes one-year past due and the Group
determines that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery, or the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  investment property;

- right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

— investment in an associate;

— investment in a joint venture;

- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAERHERRIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

M

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or
to the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

(i)

R FFR

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTSI7R -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U}

Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the

balance sheet date (see notes 1(I)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or
a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the balance sheet

date to which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Inventories (continued)

(n)

(i) Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

(ii) Consumable parts
Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(I)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(0)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAERHERRIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and including allowance for
credit losses (see note 1(I)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(I)().
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note

1(x)).

(r) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions

to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account

the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(r)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Share award scheme

For the share award scheme, the Group may
purchase its own shares through the trustee of the
share award scheme from the open market for the
shares to be granted under the share award scheme.
Shares held by a controlled structured entity of the
Group (see note 1(d)) to meet obligations under
share award scheme (see note 28(a)) are accounted
for as treasury shares in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEHERRIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR

1

SHEZABERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Ejt JrIE R(E)

(s)

ﬁ(fﬁ)

LL%RIE'%‘}Z&EJ SR BR
BIIMERBIET T E DT ER
MM (nBEBE Mz —HD
AlIfRSN) 2 EES B B2 YR
RoUARRBMBRARIZEREZ
TRMEZRE(NWEERMER

PR PAZNER B A] DA ) [B1 3 2 B
F'Eﬁ i EE R TE R 2 R K A]
BEmBE s ZR BRI
ZR - BIRBRAIER KRB 2
ER)o

BERBELEHRIBSEEERE
ENBERAEZBHERNE
EFR MREEBEERERE
BRAEMZ RS - BIEFIBEE
EXEEHTERMR -

BEEMBREEZREE - SEAE
BERTUE  ANTAIERR
R HIFERTOE N 7] M A A %
BETLAHIR - ERIERRDE
FIREH B S IE R B A Al %
Ry O] 5 o

D ELA% B EE R REINTIS B A T
REHABER BB ERER

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables (including amounts due to
related parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
invoice amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

v)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sales of goods, the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group'’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable.

(ii) Port and transshipment income
Port and transshipment income is recognised upon
performance of the services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JABTTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods

Revenue arising from the sales of oil and
petrochemical products is recognised at the point
in time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the products, which is usually when the
legal title is transferred to the customer.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

1)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHEEE)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies (w) IheEgE

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars. The
functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are Renminbi Yuan (“RMB"). The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR

1

SHEZABERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use are complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAERHERRIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

0}

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, including property, plant and equipment,
investment property, interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, intangible assets, investment
in an associate and investment in a joint venture, at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted future
cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying
amount and value in use and provides for impairment
loss. Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash
flow forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision
of impairment loss and affect the Group’s results and
financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Estimation of fair value of investment in an unlisted
company with no quoted market price in active
market

Investment in an unlisted company is stated at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The investment is
estimated based on a valuation model which requires a
considerable number of inputs and assumptions, which
included future ridership growth rate, future fare receipt
growth rate and the discount rate. Any change in the key
assumptions adopted would increase or decrease the fair
value of the investment and affect the Group’s results and
financial position.

Estimation of fair value of investment in an
investment fund with no quoted market price in
active market

Investment in an investment fund is stated at fair value
through profit or loss. The fair value of the investment
fund with no quoted market price in active market was
determined based on valuation techniques which required
significant unobservable inputs. The investment fund
has been valued based on valuation performed by the
investment fund managers at 31 December 2022 and
adjusted by the directors for valuation difference on
certain underlying investments. Any change in the key
assumptions adopted would increase or decrease the fair
value of the investment and affect the Group's results and
financial position.

ERRFEERAT

2

BETHAERAMAGE(E)

(i)

(iii)

RIFELHRARE (AR T
5N TS ERE) A R EMET

RIFELTMRABZRER A AER
ARfbEEKEETIR - ZRER
BREEAEHAFTEBERBRR(E
EARFREABUERE - RRE
BERRLMBAR)NMBERE
fhEt - FTRAZ TERRWAE
MR - HERE 2R AEEN
HED  WFEAREZEER
EAREARRL ©

RREESRE(WHEFRTS
MHSHE) WA REM-E

WIREES 2R ER AR ERA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR + BB ERHERSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(a) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are trading of
and provision of terminal, storage, warehousing and
transshipment services for oil and petrochemical products
and operating and leasing of a filling station.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major service lines

WA R D EBIHRE

(@ WA
AEBZFEEHAEE RIEMH
MmO ERGSE - 17 B
B R AR TS - A MRS & AR
DsE Y o

() REFSHHNBAREE
RISEE SO NS |

Revenue from contracts with BB &R EXERFE15
customers not within the REEMIRBEES
scope of HKFRS 15 EHHBA

Storage and warehousing income 8717 K& U A
Rental income from a filling station HNjd A9 EUA

Revenue from contracts with  EFHEE &R EXERFE15
customers within the scope REEANRERF

of HKFRS 15 =1L ON

Port and transshipment income &0 KL A

Sales of oil and petrochemical sHEmm R AtER
products

Revenue from operating a filling 484 hnsm b A
station

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by business lines and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)
respectively.

113,588 128,011
5,595 2,409
119,183 130,420
32,043 39,967
543,625 1,791,052
- 13,328
e 373,668 ... 1,844,347
694,851 1,974,767
KEEPAKNMHBRALRE

AR NI 58 D 8 5
0 R KT EE3(b)(i) & 3(b)
(iii)# 5%
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEHERRIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contacts with customers in
existence at the balance sheet date

As at 31 December 2022, all sales contracts have
original expected durations of one year or less.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
such that the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the balance
sheet date are not disclosed.

In 2022, the Group has three customers (2021:
two) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. Revenues from sales of oil
and petroleum products to these customers arose
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
amounted to approximately $495,779,000 (2021:
$1,324,000,000). Details of concentrations of credit
risk arising from the Group’s major customers are set
out in note 30.

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by business lines and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified
the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

R FFR

Terminal Storage: this segment represents the
Group's provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment activities carried out in Dongguan, the
PRC.

Trading: this segment represents the Group'’s trading
of oil and petrochemical products business carried
out in the PRC (including Hong Kong).

Other: this segment represents other businesses

including the operation and leasing of a filling station
in Zengcheng, the PRC.

ERRFEERAT

3

WAR D B®RE (&)

(a)

(b)

WA (4&)

(i) FEHAASRRRERRER
EEEERANBEER
HEHBA
RZETEZ=_F+=H
=t+—8 FIBHEELSYD
WRFBETHIR B —F 3 A
T  AEEHEBEEED
ERBBUBHREERE
1I5E1I1IENERER
o BEEEEEAGR
BHREIT(HE D KRE
THEHETTTIHE -

RZTEZ=ZF A&BE
—EREP(ZEZ—F M
ZIRAEEBET IR
BAEBEKRAZ10% ° [
ZEBRPHMEERBEA
HEMBBRAKEPEA
REMBE([HEA]) - AL
495,779,000 T ( =& = —
£ 1 1,324,000,0007T) ° 7K
SEFXBEFEARFER
Bate R 2 rHIB A KT FE30

(iii)

7 EBRE

AEEB BRI N EE D
ZEREBERS - REERFA
SEREETHREEARREE
BEHADBREREFERR—
BehA  REERHEIAT=
BRI HREDED - AEREA TS G
RIS E S ED - AR 512 7]

WEDHEL

- WBEAR: UOBALE
ERFEREEE 2 RH
B8 - AR ER X -

- B UoBRAKER
TE(EREE)REZE
Emm M A CERZER

- Hfp: ko #mEEME
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
Reportable segments are aligned with financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

0]

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables and
contract liabilities and lease liabilities attributable to
the individual segments and bank loans managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”, i.e. "adjusted
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/
(loss) before taxation”, the Group's earnings/
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation, management
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income, finance costs, depreciation
and amortisation and (reversal)/recognition of loss
allowance on trade and other receivables.

3 WARZB®mEE)

(b)

Mmi{ﬁ)

2HD BETHRAEERZR

ﬁﬁﬁﬁA%%éﬁ o e ;R RIR
SRR S ER B -

0}

DEPRAA EE&EE
MAFEDAERR kD
BERMS - K%‘%Im
THEBEABRANEE
ERFAREDBEIGZ
XE BENEE:

DEEEREMBEENLE
E BEEERRDEA
B BTERERNERA
ZHREREMABEE °
NEBERES DI EMN
Z 5 5 N EL A & < 5RIE LA
EHBEBELRHEEAE

LA&”*BEE:E.@Z?ETT
Em}\"

WARSZHEL2BAHE
DERELE WA RZE
DERELE X HEREE
DEEEEEMEE 2
Ef#EemEmoiREn

=5 -

=8 I

&R o 2m A, (&8) A
KRBz EA B ADE
M, (E18) ] BN R&HHE
BRI ZEAERRF (5
Bl BERIBRRANE
BB AEBZA
M(BB) MY ES TR
BER D3 2EE (B
A BT AN ) EH

ﬁE&o

BRESEEBRTINET,
(BR)ZDMERI - &
EEMERHERBKA
MEBUWA - R ~ 97
EREHER(BE) R
85 MEAMEYWKIAZE
BREZDEER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDB®E(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2IBFHEE)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) 2EE - BERERBE)
Information regarding the Group's reportable Hz2_ZET_—_Fr_F
segments provided to the Group’s most senior ——%+=-A=+—81t
executive management for the purposes of resource FE AHRERETAEER
allocation and assessment of segment performance EEETHEEAEUS
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is e &R Lo BRIEF 2
set out below. REBEREDFERSH

PR »
Terminal Storage Trading Other Total
EReR g% it it

2022 022 2001 M
ZECCE O3 - i “E-F CECCR

§000 §000 §000 000
T ; i 7 i

Revente from extemal ~ SMIZRIA

CUstomers 145,631 167,978 543,625 1,791,052 5,595 15,737 694,851 1974767
Inter-segment revenve R 3,076 4,504 - 26,103 - - 3,076 30,667
Reportable segment ~ ARESFUA

revenue 148,707 172,542 543,625 1,817,155 5,595 15,731 697,927 2,005,434

Reportable segment  A[REATRH
profitloss) before B/ (5E)

taxation 8,857 (1,159) 11,692 12315 2,204 2019 2,193 13175
Interest income HEMA 248 36 7982 1,063 11 5 8,241 1,404
Finance costs B 39,761 45,180 10,510 7998 1523 1584 51,794 54,762
Depreciation and HEREH

amortisation 45,510 64,197 2,259 2,601 2913 3,025 50,742 69,823

(Reversalrecognitionof ~ (BE) /AR
loss alowance ontrade ~ EHEUGIE Y
andother receivables  FBlEHE - - (aoo0) 13788 - - (B000) 13788

Reportable seqment assets THEHTAE 697400 901,077 538363 597,365 60,552 66,797 1296315 1565239

Reportable segment  AHEHTEE
liailities 528,676 789,208 231,514 154,225 61,099 68,332 821,289 1,012,265

—Eo—gER ESERERAT @
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR + BB ERHERSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSHHE(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DWWE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AHREDBWA ~ B -
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBBEZHE

Revenue ON
Reportable segment revenue AT E D WA 697,927 2,005,434
Elimination of inter-segment R EE S EBFEIUA

revenue (3,076) (30,667)
Consolidated revenue RAEUA 694,851 1,974,767
Profit po |
Reportable segment profit Al ¥ o0 &6 A 22,793 13,175
Unallocated other income less RAOTEABA

other expenses AR 43,245 10,741
Unallocated head office and RABLABE

corporate expenses NGIS-gin (54,538) (102,101)
Net fair value (losses)/gains on BARBETABREZ

financial assets at fair value EMEEQR

through profit or loss (E518), W55 (8,066) 70,031

Consolidated profit/(loss) before 4R A BB AT H],~
taxation (B18) 3,434 (8,154)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSEB®mEE)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 7 EIE(E)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

(i) "TRED LA ~ B
EERBBZHIRGE)

ZECFFR

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AmENEEE 1,296,315 1,565,239
Elimination of inter-segment FREE BB 2

receivables FEWI IS (142,227) (168,579)

1,154,088 1,396,660

Other investments Hibig & 761,240 816,844
Unallocated head office and FOBELLEE K

corporate assets NRIEE 61,401 73,212
Consolidated total assets IREREE 1,976,729 2,286,716
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities AERENEaE 821,289 1,012,265
Elimination of inter-segment Vaskizhancii{ v

payables FERTFRIE (142,227) (168,579)

679,062 843,686

Unallocated head office and FoBCBE &

corporate liabilities NEAE 90,641 90,665
Consolidated total liabilities REBas 769,703 934,351

ERRERARIA
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDB®E(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DWWE(E)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HhEER
The following table sets out information about the TREG B REHEAE()A
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from EERINBREAE ZIW
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, ARGNAEB 2ME - &
plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land and BR#EE - wEEBRZMA
buildings held for own use, investment property, ETHEEFER KA
intangible assets, non-current prepayments, M- BREEE - ERD
interest in an associate, interest in a joint venture FENHIE - R —EEEA
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The AR N—REaegh
geographical location of customers is based on the ¥R REBE(EEIE
location at which the services were provided. The RHEE])FifEE &
geographical location of the specified non-current B o =P FTIE M DA 4
assets is based on the physical location of the asset. BR 75 2 s BE SR - ERE

FERBEEMERIANE
2 BERFRE B RIRE -

Revenues from
external customers

HVERE T8 Z A

The PRC (including Hong Kong) Bl (E3EEE) 694,851 1,974,767

Specified non-current assets

EEFRBEE

Hong Kong T 11,691 6,075
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ FFEI(TEIEEE) 646,975 760,849
658,666 766,924
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St 35 ¥R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

Interest income B UTA 8,381 1,512
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 W s 5 R 14,326 1,267

Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BELREBZ
equipment 518 (128) M
Government grants (Note (i) B e B (PR REG)) - 13,809
Rental income from investment property REZREYE 2 BB 1,410 1,236
Dividend income & S A 31,118 -
Others HA 372 8,413
55,479 26,236

Note: MiE

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from a scheme in relation with the
promotion of high-quality economic development in Guangdong
from the provincial government of Guangzhou. The purpose
of the funding is to support the foreign investment of foreign-
invested enterprise in Guangzhou.

TECCFFH ERRRERAT

@

REE_ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8H
HFE - AEEXKIAEMNTE R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR + BB ERHERSIN)

5  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5  BREADERN ()
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging: AT A (E8) IR T 5%
THIB RN

(a) Finance costs (a) BAFERA
Interest on bank loans IRITE TS 50,260 53,139
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,664 1,795
51,924 54,934
(b) Staff costs* (b) BIRA*
Contributions to defined contribution FIE B TR IKET 2]
retirement plans YEH Z KR 5,688 5,991
Salaries, wages and other benefits N - TE NEAM
by 45,437 56,416
Equity-settled share-based payment PN Enr i )
expenses (Note 28(b)) X (B EE28(b)) 15,872 56,575
66,997 118,982
(c) Other items () HfhEHR
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EHH
(Note 13) (M¥5E13) 170 7
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and —BEMHE
equipment B E 41,983 60,543
— investment property —REWE 2,403 1,303
— right-of-use assets* —(ERREEE
(Note 10(c)) (FF7E10(0)) 12,374 14,210
(Reversal)/recognition of loss (BE), HERES
allowance of trade and K EL b FE YRR
other receivables 2 RS (4,000) 13,723
Auditor’s remuneration % B A
— audit services — B RTE 1,750 1,848
— review services —E BT 500 450
— other services — HAth AR 7% 650 -
Cost of inventories FERA
(Note 16(b)) (MizE16(b)) 522,784 1,759,483
* Staff costs include $1,756,000 relating to depreciation of right- * ETRABEMSERNEREEE
of-use assets (2021: $1,756,000), which amount is also included P E 1,756,000 0 ( — T ——4
in the respective total amount disclosed separately above. 1,756,0007T) * "ZsKEIFET AR it

fERIHERE B REET -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 mABEZRPZFEHR
STATEMENT
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a) HFEBZXRPZHAEHIE:
represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits BIHAR1E — BB EBH

Tax (Note (i) (BYEE@))
Provision for the year FERNEE 200 37
Under-provision in respect of BAFERETR
prior year 422 -
622 37
Current tax - PRC Corporate BEARIE — R
Income Tax (Note (ii)) FriS Bt (BEEG)
Provision for the year FAEE 2,407 5,929
Over-provision in respect of prior years &1 F & HAZE R (1,267) (602)
e 11490 . 5,327
1,762 5,364
Notes: Bf3E

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2022 is
calculated at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered Profits Tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2021.

The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
25% (2021: 25%).

ERRERARIA

T _FMNBAEAERE
BIHIRZFENGTERB
SEFEN165% (T = —4 ¢
16.5%)&TH - HAREEH—H
B AR AMAFIEHEG T
HA B AFIRAIN

RAMBARME © BH200
& IR JE R B s T A 8.25%
B BT Y FE AR FOE A A
16.5% EHt - M B R RIS
BREHBENE T =—F
HIMBRIEAERTHE -

HE_T-_—_F+-A=+—
AIEFE  FEMBARZE
AR BEERREA25%
(ZZE=—%F :25%) °
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 mEBBRBPZABHR(E)
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) RERABERFTEHERAHES

FHEF(BE) 2HEROT ¢

profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

Profit/(loss) before taxation BELATER, (E518) 3,434 (8,154)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before HBRRE R

taxation, calculated at the rates EEREEIBHEN

applicable in the tax jurisdictions BFLRTER,(E51E)

concerned FTECEEIE 1,204 1,022
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RA[#EF1Z 7 B 75 o 22 5,521 11,319
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERTRUA Z TR & (7,903) (13,357)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERZ AENATIAEE

recognised 2GR E 5,273 7,572
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB SRIARER 2B

recognised E51E (3,186) (930)
Over-provision in prior years BT S RRR RS (845) (602)
Others EAth 1,698 340
Actual tax expense ERMIEM 1,762 5,364
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EEMS
RIBEEBCRBTUERIDE3SI(NIERLA
RI(BEBRESMmER)RGIE 25
BEEMEWT

2022 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments
fee inkind contributions (Note (i)
DY)
i 2HR BifGral  EfzXi
EZHe Bz it (H=E())
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Executive directors HTES
David An BB - 7,290 60 15,872 23,222
Yang Dong IS - 3,051 60 - 3,111
Zhang Lei K& - 2,299 60 - 2,359
Independent non-executive BIEHTES
directors
Li Wai Keung ot 165 - - - 165
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRI 165 - - - 165
Chung Chak Man, William (Note (iv)) #3232 (Jff£5(v)) 13 - - - 143
473 12,640 180 15,872 29,165

TECCFFH ERRRERAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR + BB ERHERSIN)

7  DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7 EEMeE)
2021 —EBEZ—-F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement  Share-based
Directors'  and benefits scheme EVENS
fee in kind  contributions (Note (i)
: DA A5
L EMOMR RIGHE BRI
ETHE e A (FHEEG)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Executive directors BITES
David An Hiz - 9,267 60 56,575 65,902
Yang Dong IPES - 2,220 60 - 2,280
Liu Zhijun (Note (ii) BIEE (i) - 988 50 - 1,038
Zhang Lei RE - 1,845 60 - 1,905
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Li Wai Keung PER 120 - - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony EEiRE 120 - - - 120
Woo King Hang (Note (iil)) ~ #BSE (B &(iii)) 120 - - - 120
360 14,320 230 56,575 71,485
Notes: FIAE -

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

These represent the estimated value of share options granted
to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions
as set out in note 1(r)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy,
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous
years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and
note 28(b).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years.

Liu Zhijun resigned as an executive director of the Company on
23 October 2021.

Woo King Hang resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 22 December 2021.

Chung Chak Man, William was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 15 March 2022.

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

ZERIRBEA R BB BT
EEBEREGAEERE - ZFBR
REEERRBEAE BN
M XN R P2 & EE T AR
B URBEZBEEEREBESF
ERteRMeHE  Hh#ExmTA
ZETHERBAIROZY -

ZEEDN R FHE(BEEZEER

K 2 B S E ) BB R IR

E%Eﬁﬁ%’é%%ﬂ 1= R H5E28(b)
B

HE_T-_—_FR-_F-_—F+=
A=+—HLEFE  ARAHED
ek e E = e N XR8P B #
BEoFMATHREMALTHE - A
WE 5| 152 55 0 BB 7 % (B 3 0 A 14 ) 22
S EABEBEE - TN - BEER]
VEHUREERESRBRET
Al B o

AEER=_ZTZ=_—F+A=-+=H
BHIARAITES -

HYER T _—F+_fA=+=
AEIAREBYIENITES -
FEEYHR-_E-_—#=A+HAE
ZEARNRRBIIEFNITES -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three are directors of the Company (2021: three
directors and one former director who resigned in 2021) whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect
of the remaining individuals (2021: the remaining individual
and the former director after resignation) is as follows:

BaHMAL
RAEBARGERFMALS =5
ATBEARREE(ZE=Z—F : =
BEER—RR T —FBIZA
TEE)  EMESRME7HE - 2T
AT(ZEZ—F : B TTATRAIE
EEFRTRI)ZHSHOT

Salaries and other benefits SN K H b U
Contributions to defined contribution [\ E B FURIRET 2
retirement plans YEH 2 5K

The emolument of the remaining individuals with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

1,773 4,716
60 70
1,833 4,786

RaF G TATZMEEATHE
A

2022 2021
—_E__ — LT —F

—

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

Nil = $1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007T 2 1
$3,000,001 - $4,000,000 3,000,001%4,000,0007T - 1
9  EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 9 BREF (FE)
Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share BREARBHERF (FHE)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $207,000 (2021: loss attributable to
ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of $16,047,000)
and the weighted average of 3,878,322,000 ordinary shares
(2021: 3,898,048,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

TECCFFH ERRRERAT

BREAREEAFN,(FEE) IR
BFERAAQAT 2 L BRBEENR
#1207,0007(ZFE = —%F : AQH
2 B R AR 3R G B 18 16,047,000
L) RBETY @_Hﬁbu%ii’j%{
3,878,322,000 F E @A (= F = —
F 1 3,898,048,000 % L@ ) 5T &
BEGTEWNOT :



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R o
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9

EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE (continued) 9 BREF(FHE)(E)
Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) per share (continued) BREARBERR (FE)(E)

Weighted average number of ordinary EERINEFLITE

shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—RA—HEETLRER 3,956,638 3,956,638
Effect of treasury shares held under share  1RIEI D ZEEzT 2T A HY

award scheme EFRHR 2 (78,316) (58,590)
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=A=+—H#

shares as at 31 December EERINEEEE 3,878,322 3,898,048

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary TR PR E(E SR,
equity shareholders (E51]) 207 (16,047)

Basic and diluted earnings/(losses) BREARBHERF
per share (E8) 0.01 centsfll  (0.41) centsflll
The diluted earnings/(losses) per share is the same as the basic HREE - —FLR T - —
earnings/(losses) per share as there were no dilutive potential +-A=+—HItEFEEXEFMEE#
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 31 BIERCEBELBR  MEREER
December 2022 and 2021. (&8 BEREART,(EE)

R -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREMEHE

Interests in
[easehold

FEH

Cost: ik
At 1 January 2002 i3
-A-f
Bangecdjstnents  EF 5%
Additons piEs
Disposals it
At3TDecember 202 RZEZZF
tZA=1-H
Accumulated EiiER
depreciation and N
amortisation:
At 1 January 2022 S
--R
Bchange adjustrens B8
Charge for the year EErE
Witten backon disposdls 4 EF
At 31 December 2022 S
+2Az1-8
Net book value: FmEE:
At 31 December 2022 S
t2Az1-8
EERFRERAT

Buildings

Filling
station
faclities

it
B
§000
n

Other
properties
leased for

oWn Use
(Note c))

UL
anz
(Hi(a)
§000
n

Dock and
storage
faciliies

iild]
equipment

Motor

vehicles

ik
§1000
n

Leasehold
improvements

B
UE
§1000
fn

Sub-total

[and and

buildings

held for
own use
(Note (b)
and (c))

kteaRz
HRLHR

Erin
(ko)
R(c)
§000
r

3 9354 17186 117618 1482 12,164 367 126,013 B2740 154753
(3,048) (193) 87) (99.778) (555) (150) (151)  (105,162) (2.266)  (127429)

- - 12402 2,060 103 - - 14,767 - 14,767

- - (15%2) (1,066) (30) (1373) - (18431) - (18431)
29 8,361 13539 1,077,600 6,99 10,01 353 1153181 U044 1,393,655
14,116 580 13,08 7302M 533 8911 2,486 114,74 54,360 829,106
(1.27) (69) (101) (62929) (40) (587) n) (65443) (4:852) (70295)
2051 4% 5883 314% 516 897 366 47,836 6,212 54,048

- - (15%2) (920) (30) (1,305) - (18223) - (18203)
14,890 1,009 2833 103877 5412 1916 2919 738916 5720 794,636
18033 1552 10,706 nm 1,582 2125 544 414,265 184,754 599,019
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

M BERREB(E)
(a) FREEHIR(E)

Interests in

Cost: BA:
A1 January 2021 WoE=-F
-A-8 WS BT L4910 6959 128% 189 16080 25T 152078
Bangeadstnents YR 101 53 Mo B 191 i3] 7 3% U3 B4
Addiions piE 3% 6,158 - 1,585 3 - 110215 -0
Disposals it - - - . . o) - o) - o)
Transfer to investment @@jﬂ:&é
propery & S B - - - - e 1]
M3 Decemper 2021 RZFC-E
t2R=t-8 3o LTI VK I KV 3] 8 6 3 1603 WM 154753
Accumulated ZiER
depreciation and By
amortisation:
At January 2001 WoE=-F
-A-R 1169 1018 1 6505 4489 8702 18 6983 LB T3
Bageadustments B 315 2 9 N 1 m 9 084 18 0%
Chagefortieyer  FENE 2102 518 7 5701 I 819 %o 60 600 434
Witen back on disposals 1\ ER & - - - - - 90 - %)) - (902)
Transfer to investment @@E&é
propery h# - oy 00 - - - - - B
A3 Deemter 201 R4
t2RZt-8 w6 %0 B 5339 8911 28 TME 5430 8906
Net book vale: EREE:
A3 December 2021 WZFC-E
S s I 8774 4183 ws9n 283 3053 1188 47267 8380 69647

Buidings

Filing
station
faclties

Other

properties
Jeased for
OWn Use
(Note (c))

Dock and
storage
faclties

Office
equipment

Motor
vehicles

Leasehold
Improvements

leasehold
land and
buldings
held for

OWn Use
(Note (o)

(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the
PRC authorities with lease terms of 25 to 50 years.

(b) AEEEFTEBITHEART L
ERERN  HEHR25E50
E o
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset is as follows:

10 9% BERREE)
(0 FEREEE
EREEERABEED BED
HRREDFED TN

Interests in leasehold land and FEBAZHEE T
buildings held for own use NgF R

Other properties leased for own BITERATBRE
use, carried at depreciated cost HEtEeBHEEME

Prepayments, carried at RATE R ARTIBRE
depreciated cost TERTFIE

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

(i) 184,754 208,380
(ii) 10,706 4,143
(iii) 1,283 1,725

196,743 214,248

PIEEEROBEMS KNS IEE
DT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEEZAEEE
assets by class of underlying asset: DEEDWMITERY ¢
Interests in leasehold land and HIEERZEEL R
buildings held for own use BT 6,212 6,420
Other properties leased for own use Hibg RHEEME 5,853 7,471
Prepayments TERTFRIE 309 319
12,374 14,210
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 5(a)) HEBENE(MzEs@)) 1,664 1,795

TECCFFH ERRRERAT
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, additions to
right-of-use assets were $12,402,000 (2021: nil). This
amount included the capitalised rental payments of a staff
quarter and office of the Group.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(d) and
30(b), respectively.

Notes:

0}

(i)

(iii)

Interests in leasehold land and building held for own use
The Group was granted with land use rights for a period
of 25 to 50 years on leasehold lands and held an office
building located in the PRC. The Group is the registered
user of these lands and the building, including the whole
or part if undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the land use rights
from the government authorities and the building from
the previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the leases.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties
as its offices and staff quarters. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 to 5 years. Lease payments are usually
increased every 2 to 3 years to reflect market rentals.

Prepayments

Prepayments represent prepayment of costal usage right
located in the PRC. The Group is granted with costal usage
rights for a period of 8 years. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the costal usage right from the
government authorities and there are no ongoing payments
to be made under the terms of the lease.

10 ¥% - BERRKEE)

(9]

FEREEEE)

HE-_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—
HIEFE  RETREEER
12,402,000 0 ( = & = — 4 -
/) ZeHeErER—HE
TITEEERAENENAS

B
AN

HERRLEBRIEERE
BIEI B DT REIE o BB R R
21(d)}%230(b) °

() FHFEERZAELBREFER
AEBHRLNPENEE T
R R HI25 2 505 /) + b 3
WA —RPAKRE - A&
B %S T i R FT O EMS
BA - BEAERN 2R
DAANENNE - B —
SRATAFUR - ARMBTE R
JEER - 3450 3 A2 % ) R 11 R
BABART  RBEHEEKRR
BEEMTIAREIN -

(i) HtgmEEwE
AEECRSERERRAER
BETEENEMYENER
o HE—RYFR/H2ES
FoHENRBEE2E23F 1
3 ARBTISEE -

SN B

TR FOR AL B 5 3
FRRERTEN TR - AEEER
BEERE  RHSF  BX
N—2BATHRIE - AABT
= REREEEAE - RIFE
ERFABEEMTIETZ

fi -

(iii)
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11 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 11 REWE

Right-of-use
assets — land
Buildings use rights

FEREEE-
BF AR
$'000 $'000
T T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2021 Rn—E-_—F—H—H - - -
Transfer from property, BEEEE Y -
plant and equipment & 26,067 23,605 49,672
Exchange adjustments e H 403 365 768
At 31 December 2021 and R —F
1 January 2022 +-—A=+—8~K
—E-_—_4—F—H 26,470 23,970 50,440
Exchange adjustments IE AR (2,243) (2,031) (4,274)
At 31 December 2022 A
+=—A=+—H” 24,227 21,939 46,166

Accumulated depreciation and ZitITE R :
amortisation:

At 1 January 2021 WZZE-_—%—H—H - - -
Transfer from property, HEamE
plant and equipment = N a& 978 2,065 3,043
Charge for the year FEE 1,303 - 1,303
Exchange adjustments [E 5, a5 35 32 67
At 31 December 2021 and RZE-—F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+—8kK
—E-—#—H—H 2,316 2,097 4,413
Charge for the year FEWE 1,261 1,142 2,403
Exchange adjustments e H (246) (222) (468)
At 31 December 2022 e Sl =
+=-—A=+—H 3,331 3,017 6,348
Net book value: BRIENHE :
At 31 December 2022 RIZE-—F
+-—A=+—H 20,896 18,922 39,818
At 31 December 2021 MN-ZE——F
+—-—A=+—H 24,154 21,873 46,027

TECCFFH ERRRERAT @
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11

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
Particulars of the Group’s investment property is as follows:

The Group's investment property consists of a filling station in
the PRC that was classified as property, plant and equipment
in 2020. The Group leased out the filling station to an
independent third party in 2021 and classified the filling station
as investment property accordingly.

The investment property was stated at cost and the aggregate
fair value of the Group's investment property at 31 December
2022 was approximately $40 million (2021: $47 million), a
Level 3 fair value measurement, based on a valuation carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group, using income approach taking into
account the expected net operating income of the properties
in the future and capitalised into the value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate. The Group appoints an external valuer to
conduct valuation on the Group’s property, and the selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and maintenance of professional standards. The Group has
adopted the cost model under HKAS 40 to account for its
investment property, and accordingly, the carrying amounts
of the investment property were not adjusted to the revalued
amount at the year end.

The investment property is leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 31.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment property:

Valuation technique

fhER

Filling station Income approach

plths:hes WAGE

11 REWMEE)
REERIEEYEFIBEOT ¢

AEENEREMERETE—@EnH
U BER—Z_TFLERME - KW
B AEER T - —FKm
MY T 2B E=T - WAEE
Bz s vE D B ARRE Y -

WEMERRASE - MAEEREA
MERE-__F+_A=+—HH
DR EBERINL0008T (T =—
F 47008 7T)  WIHE=ZHRDAR
BFt2 - WAERERNEEWEE L
BN A ERBEEGEMTETHERD
EY BEARBERBANEEE B
P E B EE R RO TERPLE W AT
B WIRABEMENMEEERN A
fBE - AEESEEINBEEM AR
EENMEERGE  BEZEQE
TS B2 BUUEULELH
FEEKE - AEEDREABTBES
AERIEAOSTHR ARG E R EME
AR Bt BEWEREBETER
FRAEBCEGHEH -

BREMEDREZLEEZHERTE =
77 HE-SHBEFBHNMES -

RAFE  E—RLE_F2HHE
RAEHEEE  TEEARELE
(T F )

AT RERBR/BERNEREY RS
ENERHAZBBNME -

Significant unobservable inputs

EATUBRGARE

Annual increment rate of net income and
discount rate
SR ARG R RITIR R
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12 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 12 BENAREREMERRIE

Prepayment for purchase of property, BEYE BEX
plant and equipment REETE IR 844 1,014
Prepayment for right-of-use assets FRAEEETEMNRE
(Note 10(c)) (FtEE10(c)) 1,283 1,725
Other receivables H b pedsIE 8,994 12,906
11,121 15,645
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BFEEE

Club memberships
28

Cost: RN

At 1 January »—A—H 3,904 3,897

Exchange adjustments M 5 8 B (44) 7

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 3,860 3,904

Accumulated amortisation: G T

At 1 January n—A—H 2,842 2,658

Exchange adjustments (EReECE (40) 13

Charge for the year FETE 170 171

At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 2,972 2,842

Net book value: REFE

At 31 December mt+—A=+—H 888 1,062
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “selling and NEFZHIEBERT AGEEGEER
administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statement. [SHERITHER |F -

TECCFFH ERRRERAT @
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14 GOODWILL 14 BE
$'000
T
At 1 January 2021 W-_E-_—%—H—H 5,033
Exchange adjustments FE 3, A% 148
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 W-ZT-—F+-A=+—HEK
—EF-F—H—H 5,181

Exchange adjustments I 5, (439)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+—-_A=+—H 4,742

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU") identified according to country of operating and
operating segment as follows:

AEDEEARERBEEEARLE
L EERI R EEBA([REE

Trading g5

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projection which are prepared on the basis of reasonable
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market
conditions. The cash flow is discounted using a discount rate
of 12% (2021: 10%). The discount rate used is post-tax and
reflects specific risk relating to the relevant CGU.

4,742 5,181

e EEBMNA A URE S EEERE A
EBEAESY - ZSHEFEARS R
SR - THIEREE AT R AR RIS
ANEERBRFRR - BWEeMFER12%
IR EITR(ZF=—F 1 10%) °
FTRITIRE Bk FifE kbR T HERE
ReELXBEMABOFTRR -
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15 OTHER INVESTMENTS

15 HfigE

Unlisted equity securities at FVOCI BARERT AEAM
(non-recycling) 2HEKE 2 IELTRA
FBH(TAEEmE)
Financial assets measured at FVPL BARBERAB®Z

Details on the fair value measurements of other investments
are set out in note 30(f).

Notes:

(i)  The unlisted equity securities are shares in Bravo Transport
Holdings Limited (“BTHL"), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and engaged in investment holding.

The Group designated its investment in BTHL at FVOCI (non-
recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes.
Dividends of $31,118,000 were received on this investment
during the year (2021: $Nil).

(i) The financial assets represent interest in a limited partnership in
an investment fund.

16 INVENTORIES
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:

(i) 637,955 672,455
(ii) 123,285 144,389
761,240 816,844

ERHMBREN DA EEFBER
FFEE30(f) ©

BifRE

() ZFIHFLHTHRAKZES ABravo
Transport Holdings Limited ([BTHL)
WG R-RREBEZESE
R R A R R E AR -

NEE G EAEBTHLH R B F AR
AREAEMEE WS (F A8
B) AAIFEZIRE D RNE
BEEH - FARZEERERKE
31,118,0007t(=ZZE=—%F : Tjr) °

(i) ZEMEERN—HEREESH
BREBNEIER

16 FE
(a) HELEEEBRAZEERHE:

Oil and petroleum products Aol AR E R
Consumable parts SHFEM

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as
follows:

117,475 140,298
3,379 4,038
120,854 144,336

(b) BREBMIETABEZEES
BEAOWWT :

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEREEAE

TECCFFH ERRRERAT

5(0) 522,784 1,759,483

@
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY
(a) Investments in subsidiaries
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
shares unless otherwise indicated.

17 REMBAAR—BZEFEEUE
e
(a) REMEAT
UTIERBEHAEENE
B BESRBEEEAFENN
BRBZHE - BRIFREHA -
BRIFTH 2 B BRI S TR -

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and FElbhE
Name of subsidiaries operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
i/ BRAR
WEARER Beny RS EMRERARE Ef IERH
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals HongKong  Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited B i of $1 each FER
ERRM TARRA 20,000,000%
BRAEIT
Oriental Point International Limited HongKong ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100%  Tradeof oil and
RREBERAT B Bk of $1 each petrochemical products
1,000,000% EEHmRALER
SREEIT
Timeslink Development Limited HongKong  Hong Kong 10,000shares ~ 100% - Provision of administrative
BRERARLT 0 30 of $1 each senvices
10,000% REITREHR
SREEIT
Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI) HongKong ~ British Virgin Islands 100shares ~ 100% - Investment holding
Company Limited B RERLEE of US$1 each REER
ERBERATARAA 100%
BREEIZT
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RIB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding
Development Limited = # AR 580,000,000 REER

NP ROk IZRARAA
(&AL

188 HANS
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

17 REMBLAR-—BEZEFEBULE
e
(a) REMBWAT(E)

ZECFFR

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and FEfERE
Name of subsidiaries operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
it/ B
HEARZHE By Rz EHRRAGE Bi TEXH
Dongguan Dongzhou International The PRC The PRC RMB555,000,000 - 92%  Provision of termindl,
Petrochemical Storage Limited W B AR555,000,0007T storage and transshipment
("DZ International") services and trade of
RETRNER A AREERAR oil and petrochemical
(TRMETR)) products
RUER - HEREERE
HREERRRALER
Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd. The PRC The PRC RIMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding and
("GZ Hans") E 3 AE580,000,0007 trade of ofl and
BMERHRREARAT petrochemical products
([BMER)) REBRAREEAGR
RftER
Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd ("SHDY") ~ The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 91%  Trade of ol and
HearEFERAA ([ Hegk)) i t (aid up capital of petrochemical products
RMB4,702,000) EERmROIER
(Note 2)
AFE#50,000,0007
(BHREER
AR%4,702,0007)
(Rzt2)
Guangzhou Hans Industry & Transportation ~ The PRC The PRC RIMBS,000,000 - 60%  Operation of a filing station
Energy Co,, Ltd. h hE (paid up capital of BERE
BNmER L RARAR RMB410,000)
(ME8IRY) (Note 2
ARE5,000,0007
(BERRA
ARH#410,0007)
i)

ERRERARIA
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 17 REMBATIR —BZEGIEEHEE
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) =)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) BEMBLATE)
Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and JEik
Name of subsidiaries operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
i/ BETR
WEARAH mey Rz % EARRAFE IBER
Guangzhou Zengcheng Industry & The PRC The PRC RIMB1,200,000 - 60%  Operation of a fillng station
Transportation Fillng Station Co, Ltd. i e ABRH1,200,0007C T mt
BRI AR AR
([EHIR])
Creative Apex International Holding Limited ~ HongKong ~ British Virgin Islands 1 share 100% - Investment holding
2B ERARAT Bk AERIES of USSTeach REARR
\REREEIZT
Glorify Group Ltd HongKong ~ British Virgin Islands Tshare — 100% - Investment holding
Bk AERIES of US§ leach RERR
1RERAEIEZT
Note 1:  GZ Hans is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company MizE1: BMZBAFIINEER
and #8741k, DZ International, B I3 and SHDY Al pREAL BN
are limited liability companies. The official names of BOEBIRK EEHE
&A1k, DZ International, B T3 and #f T ERBBREMRA - HFE
% are in Chinese and the English translations are for A~ EMBEE - 2B T
reference only. X RIER T 222 IE R & T8
AR BXEEEERS
o
Note 2:  The amount represented the registered share capital MEE2 . ZeFmE AR B
which is not fully paid up yet. AR o
The following table lists out the information relating to TREFNEAENED REH B
GZ Hans and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 RARZE_ZF+ZHA=+—
and, which are the subsidiaries of the Group which ARER  ZEFRARRZTZ
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) as at 31 FR-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H
December 2022 and 2021. The summarised financial RAEBEMBERFERER
information presented below represents the amounts ([FEIER R RMIB AR « T
before any inter-company elimination. N E2HHI B EREE R ARGHE

[EPANGIDEFEra-E
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 17 BREMBLATR—BESEMNEENE
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued) BE)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) REMBAR(E)

GZ Hans and its subsidiaries

BMNERREKE AT
2022 2021
—E—-= —E-—F
$'000 $'000
T Tt
NCl percentage IR A DL 8% 8%
Non-current assets FEMBNEE 648,826 762,570
Current assets mEEE 300,258 454,672
Current liabilities mEAE (255,101) (326,571)
Non-current liabilities ERBALE (442,476) (629,565)
Net assets BESE 251,507 261,106
Carrying amount of NCI JEPE AR RS BR A B 20,121 20,888
Revenue A 689,616 1,966,579
Profit for the year F R DR A 13,045 23,153
Total comprehensive income %EH&Z¥%@%E 13,561 22,795
Profit allocated to NCI 7 BC 2 FEFE R 25 A A 1,044 1,852
Cash flows from operating activities X EFEELRSAE 64,032 209,839
Cash flows from investing activities ~ REEBESIR SRS 54,866 (6,573)
Cash flows from financing activities REETHELHEESRE (89,246) (253,569)
(b) Investment in a controlled structured entity (b) RE—HZEFLEMER
The Company directly controlled a trust (the “Share Award ARG EEEHEREER
Scheme Trust”) that was set up in relation to the Group'’s —NFWNA+HBRMN E’\Jﬂxﬁ}
share award scheme adopted on 15 April 2019 (the “Share RENFTEI([ AR SREh T &) B RS
Award Scheme"). Principal activities of the Share Award Mm% s T (B 2R T 8l
Scheme Trust include purchasing, administering and FEl) o IR EEENETEME TN EE
holding the Company’s shares under the Share Award TEENBRIERIBR D EEETE AE
Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees (see Note BRETI s FmBE BERE
28(a)). The Company has the power to direct the relevant BARRERD (RHEE28()) ° &
activities of the Share Award Scheme Trust and it has the NEEAERRD RE T EE5T
ability to use its power over the trust to affect its exposure HEEB ) BeesEREY
to returns. Therefore, the Share Award Scheme Trust is EERENFEERR - Bt -
considered as a controlled structured entity of the Group. & B EHEE TR AR EE

RSIEH S RIEE R
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18 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18 REE QAR 2R
Form of Place of Particulars of Group's
business incorporation issued and effective Principal
Name of associate structure and business paid up capital interest activities
ALK BEAR F5EZ
BENRER ERERY £S5k BRRAFE ERER TEEEK
Dongguan Fengneng LNG Co., Ltd. Incorporated The PRC RMB100,000,000 18.4% Provision of
RERRMCARARAD  MMEL @ (paidup capitel o LNG storege
RMBS5,000,000) and operating LNG
(Note 2) related business
AR 100,000,007 REURILRAR
(BHRER REREERI
AE#5,000,0007) RARIEBES
(FitzE2)
Note 1:  The official name of the associate is in Chinese and the Mz : ZEELRANEHRBAT
English translation is for reference only. X - HEXEEEHRSE .
Note 2:  The amount represented the registered share capital which is MiEr2 :  ZemETMmRAR - AR
not fully paid up yet. R °
Note 3: A non-wholly owned subsidiary directly holds 20% of the MiEE3 : EREWE AR HEERAZH
shares of the associate. ERTEIRGDE20% ©
The above associate is accounted for using the equity method B R R AR RARN RS BT
in the consolidated financial statements. TN -
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19 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

19 REghXIER

Form of Place of Particulars of Group's
business incorporation issued and effective Principal
Name of joint venture structure and business paid up capital interest activities
SMELR BETR &
BELEER ERERY £ 5k HRRAFE ERER TEERK
Dongguan Fengneng LNG Incorporated The PRC RMB100,000,000 32.2% Provision of
Terminal Co., Ltd. FHftak L o (paid up capital of NG terminal
RREWRILAAR RIMB5,000,000) and operating ING
BAERAT (Note 2) related business
AE#100,000,0007 RERICRAR
(BHRAR EAEREE R
AR5,000,0007) RARIBRS
(M)
Note 1:  The official name of the joint venture is in Chinese and the Mzl : ZAEBERCEMNEHAEHEATP
English translation is for reference only. X HENEEEHRSE -
Note 2:  The amount represented the registered share capital which is Mier2 :  ZemiEamRAs - ArRE
not fully paid up yet. B °
Note 3:  Relevant activities of this entity require the unanimous MIEE3 . AEEBONEBREHEERRN
consent of the shareholders and, thus, the Group has joint —HEAE  MAKEERE=F
control over this entity with a third-party shareholder. MR 52 B 68 5 AL A 45 h 42
Accordingly, it has been accounted for as a joint venture. 7o Bt EEWIERA—EE
PN
Note 4: A non-wholly owned subsidiary directly holds 35% of the Mzt : E2EWBAREERBEZA
shares of the joint venture. R ERMHHI35% °
The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity FteECEERRERENGE MK
method in the consolidated financial statements. WARANK

ZECFFR

ERRERARAR
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20 B RHEMEWTIE

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance NREERENES
(Note (7)) U AR R (B REG)) 238,672 359,291
Prepayments and other receivables T FRIA R Bt
(Note (ii)) FE W A (BT (i) 35,000 81,160
273,672 440,451

Notes: FI5E

()  Trade debtors, net of loss allowance are financial assets measured () HMBREEBENEZEZIRIGER AL
at amortised cost. BN EN S REE -

(i) The amounts of the prepayments and other receivables expected iy EHEHR ¢ BB ERRE
to be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one Rz iﬁ 5 5R0IE R Efth FE W R IE
year are $1,202,000 (2021: $1,389,000). Apart from these, 1,202,000 T (=& = — F
all the other trade and other receivables are expected to be 1,389,0007T) © Britb 24N - EeRFTE
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. B 5 R EH MK GRIATE SN —F

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain other
receivables amounting to $8,787,000 was due from a debtor that
was in financial difficulty. The directors are of the opinion that
expected credit loss allowance amounting to $8,787,000 as at 31
December 2021 was necessary to be recognised.

Ageing analysis

As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date or date of revenue
recognition and net of allowance, is as follows:

(a)

MR E R BER -

HE-_ZT-_—F+-A=1+—HL
FE - BR—ZEVHERHFNES
AB)E T E b fE U 5RE A 8,787,000
LeRZTEZ—F+ZA=+—
B ZEERAEVEEREHEE
[5188,787,0007T °

SRR HT

REER  RIERZAHIWE
RAMLEHGRREZE SR

WK (R AE 5 S EL Al FE MR

) ZEREDIAT -

Within 1 month —(EARA 53,478 10,424
Over 1 month but within 2 months —E A EEMEA A 43,528 -
Over 2 months but within 3 months ME A A FBE={EAR - 9,785
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EALEENREARN 98,965 186,008
Over 6 months ME A A £ 42,701 153,074

238,672 359,291
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20 EFRHEHMEKREE)

(a) Ageing analysis (continued) (a) BREOW(E)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30-180 REFBALTEHEFPEHIE
days to its trade customers. Further details on the Group's 180K 7 BRBRHR - BlAAEEHZ
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors are BERENESRENERELE =
set out in note 30(a). ERR #E—SHBFRHAH T

30(a) °

(b) Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of (b) F£NE 5 RIEWZKIBIEMEIER

trade receivables during the year is as follows: EBEESEMT :

Balance at 1 January B—A— B 5,000 64
Recognition of loss allowance during FANHEREIERE
the year 1,000 4,936
Reversal of loss allowance during FANREBEEE
the year (5,000) -
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—HH
R 1,000 5,000
The significant decrease in the long-aged balance of E SRR RIRE 5 KIE
trade receivables contributed to the decrease in the loss S EBEESEEER L - AR
allowance. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and EENEERRENE SRR
credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out in note FrELNEERRFIBEHNH T
30(a). 30(a) °

—E-FFR EDERERAT
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBITEBREMBEESREER
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a) BERBITERERE

Cash and bank balances R4 MIR1THERS 162,297 118,160
Less: Restricted cash (Note (i) - ZREIIR S (EEG)) - (55,039)
162,297 63,121
Note (i):  The restricted cash were held for the purpose of bank MiFEG) : KBRS HIRITIERR
guarantee and bank borrowing agreements. WITERIBERSE -
(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash (b) BRFIAEF (i) RS ER
generated from operations: FISRE IR :

Profit/(loss) before taxation BEL TR, (E51E) 3,434 (8,154)
Adjustments for: AT SIBIEL T
Interest income FLE U A 4 (8,381) (1,512)
Finance costs B TSR AR 5(a) 51,924 54,934
Depreciation e 5(c) 56,760 76,056
Amortisation of intangible assets m B E 5(c) 170 171
Equity-settled share-based EREE 2 5(b)

payment expenses R%1n Sz 15,872 56,575
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER 4

plant and equipment Bl 5= 128 1
(Reversal)/recognition of loss (BE),TERE S 5(c)

allowance of trade e B e YR IR

and other receivables ) 5pi=biiyic] (4,000) 13,723
Net fair value losses/(gains) on BARERABRZ

financial assets at fair value SREERAE

through profit or loss &8 (R )5 8,066 (70,031)
Dividend income % BT A 4 (31,118) -
Exchange differences b =58 (18,491) (1,492)
Changes in working capital: LiEEe Y
Decrease in inventories FERD 11,713 34,940
Decrease in trade and other B 5 NEM

receivables &R IR R 167,520 66,260
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 K HAER IR

other payables and ReE#HBE

contract liabilities 20 ORd>) 41,810 (72,056)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts et AR 5 I8

due to related parties #hn, ) 257 (1,346)
Cash generated from operations IR SETEATISIH S 295,664 148,069
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21
INFORMATION (continued)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2022

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Interest element of lease rentals paid
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest paid

Total changes from financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Other changes:

Increase in amount due to a related party
classified as operating cashflow

Increase in lease liabilities from entering
into new leases during the year
Interest expenses (Note 5(a))

Total other changes

At 31 December 2022

ERRERARAR

R-F-—%-A-H

HEREMENET
MRTERAENE
BEBITER
BREERSNHSES
ERRERENEATES
BRME

BERSREZDAG
I 5 A%

Hit#E:

PREEEREREL
ER—EHEA
FURE

EREHEEEEL
REEELM

ME R (FizE5()

S )

RZE-—F
+zZA=t-8

RERBITERRHMRSREER

(&)

(c)

METHEEZBEYHR

TRHAJAKREEREGHEL
ZEEEH G BREREER
FREEE  BEETHELZA
EEBEBERESREIRKER
TREMNAEESFARERE
ROBRRMERSMEL 2R
mEZAE

Amounts Bank loans
duetorelated  and interest Lease
parties payable liabilities
et R RITEMR

HE ERFIE HESE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr i Fr
(Note 26) (Note 24)
(Hiz¥26) (Mizt24)

82,802 768,175 27,994 878,971

- 146,695 - 146,695

- (270,242) - (270,242)

- - (1,664) (1,664)

- - (6,076) (6,076)

- (49,790) - (49,790)

- (173,337) (7,740) (181,077)

(5,701) (59,241) (1,998) (66,940)

257 - - 257

- - 12,402 12,402

- 50,260 1,664 51,924

257 50,260 14,066 64,583

77,358 585,857 32,322 695,537

®
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21
INFORMATION (continued)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

BeRRTEARRAMAESREEY
(&)
(0 BMEEBELEZEBEHRE)

activities (continued)

Amounts Bank loans
due to related and interest Lease
parties payable liabilities
e B A
HEaRE
$'000
Tr
( (Note 24)
(B (BiizE24)
1 January 2021 R-E-—F—F—H 82,230 789,778 33,798 905,806
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRENET .
Proceeds from new bank loans MBTETFEHE - 120,445 - 120,445
Repayment of bank loans f,éfiiﬁﬁﬁﬁm - (165,010) - (165,010)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREEREHFEHS - - (1,795) (1,795)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHSNERTSH - - (6,499) (6,499)
Interest paid EfFE - (53,154) - (53,154)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BERETEEEAE - (97,719) (8,294) (106,013)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 1918 22,977 695 25,590
Other changes: b2
Payment to a related party dassified as PEBEEREREL
operating cashflow A — B A 3 (1,346) - - (1,346)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FERET (MF5() - 53,139 1,795 54,934
Total other changes Hipgsast (1,346) 53,139 1,795 53,588
At 31 December 2021 W-Z-—-F+-R
=1+-8 82,802 768,175 27,994 878,971
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBTEMREAMREREER
INFORMATION (continued) (%)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERESRHEZRE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement FIAGA RS RERMNAERRE
for leases comprise the following: SREBIETHEE

Within financing cash flows ERBMEREREA 7,740 8,294
These amounts relate to the following: ZESTHETIER

Lease rentals paid BERHEERS 7,740 8,294
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 BENHMEAREREHNER
LIABILITIES

Trade creditors B SRR 42,410 12,999
Contract liabilities SRR 11,666 12,246
Other creditors and accruals Emh R EETRE A 19,403 28,496
73,479 53,741
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the trade and other RZEBEZZFRZZT-_—F+=H8
payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income =+—RH FBEESREMENRIE
within one year. TEEIR —F NEE IR RN ©

TECCFFH ERRRERAT @
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 EZRHMENRERSHEEE)
LIABILITIES (continued)
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade creditors REER - IRBEZHEYRENER
(which are included in trade and other payables), based on the RGTAE S REMEMTUE) RE
invoice date, is as follows: DT -

Within 1 month —fEAR 42,410 3,258
Over 3 months =@AMNE - 9,741
42,410 12,999
Contract liabilities = =L
The Group receives part of the contract value as a deposit from EEHRELFMEAHELE S
customers when they sign the oil and petroleum product trade B AEBRUYEPEEHSELEE
agreement. This deposit is recognised as a contract liability until VEBES MNEPEENEBEWES
the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. The Bl X BN SHERAEEHNEE BT
rest of the consideration is typically paid according to the credit REBEERERETEEPNEERIAX
terms granted to the customer. The amount of the deposit was o e eMIrERBRERZ FER
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers. BE o
Movement in contract liabilities SHEaBEET

At 1 January n—A—H 12,246 27,606
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of  FERERFHTA
recognising revenue during the year that EHaBENRAEE

was included in the contract liabilities at SRR ERD
the beginning of the year (12,246) (27,606)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of B FEEEIESER
receiving deposits from customers AHEEEN 11,666 12,246
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 11,666 12,246
All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as income PEENABBEEEN—FERNERE
within one year. g A o
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23 BANK LOANS
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:

23
(a)

8R1T
(a) R1T

LN
EFRREENDIFTNT

Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans IRITER
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Bank loans IRITER

(b) At 31 December 2022, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

164,239 206,066
420,600 562,109
584,839 768,175

(b)

R-E-_—F+-A= + E’
BITERAEN T HEEE

Bank loans (secured) RITER(FIKM)
Within 1 year or on demand R—F R fEZ KA
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREAMER
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBAFA
After 5 years hF%

(c) At 31 December 2022, the Group had bank loans
totalling $584,839,000 (2021: $768,175,000) which
were secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with net book value of $287,897,000
(2021: $332,032,000) and interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use with net book value of
$160,447,000 (2021: $180,384,000). The aggregate
banking facilities of the Group amounted to $808,236,000
(2021: $928,325,000) of which $584,839,000 (2021:
$768,175,000) were utilised.

TECCFFH ERRRERAT

164,239 206,066
108,218 102,448
312,382 418,532

- 41,129
420,600 562,109
584,839 768,175

(0

RZZE-_—_F+=-A= +—
B AEBZETERAH
584,839,000 L ( =& — — 4 :
768,175,0007T ) * Jh LA & E
8K % (& 4 287,897,000 ( —
T — —4F : 332,032,0007T) Z
ME - BEEEHERERSE
160,447,000 0 ( — & = —
£ :180,384,0007T) 2 E 1F
ARG REFRERSIE
B - AEEZRITTREHLE
7 808,236,000 7c ( — & = —
£ : 928,325,000 7T ) © H
584,839,000 C( =T = —F :
768,175,0007T) BB/ -

@
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24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HEHME
At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as RZE-_—F+-A=+—H #HE
follows: BECEEBRNAT

Within 1 year —F R 4,752 4,430

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFNR 4,150 303

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFA 3,359 1,342

After 5 years hF% 20,061 21,919
27,570 23,564

32,322 27,994

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 25 HSKEEEABRDZAEH
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) ZFEEEABRZRBBIEE
represents:

PRC Corporate Income Tax TS 1,046 1,602
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFIEM 659 37
1,705 1,639
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 25 SGEEEREBERTZRERHRE)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

(b) RERZELRAEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$404 million (2021: $558 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.

The tax losses of approximately $12 million (2021:
approximately $46 million) for the Group’'s PRC
subsidiaries will expire in 5 years after the relevant tax
losses were incurred as follows:

REBEMEG) AR EFHEREK
R EREERRRTARAIERE
BRI RLARE R A R B s A DA
HEBRAER  NEEXRBH
REHEEENL4ET(ZF
——% : 558870 ) HERE R
THERE °

REEE BB R BB IS
1BA1,2008 L (== —F : {)
4,60087T) A BRI ER%E
ERFLFARE - BT

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFER
After 2 years but within 3 years MEERE=FNR
After 3 years but within 4 years —HFRENFR
After 4 years but within 5 years MEZERFRA

Tax losses of approximately $392 million (2021: $512
million) for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not
expire under the current tax legislation.

—E-FFR EDERERAT

8,000 36,000
- 8,000
1,000 -
1,000 1,000
2,000 1,000
12,000 46,000

RIBEBITHBIEN - AEEEE
BRI B A A BT IS ES1E 493,92
Brn(ZZ2=—F : 5.128L)1
fEIR AR o
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25

26

27

HAEEAERRIN)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty (5% for foreign
investors who are registered in Hong Kong provided
they meet certain criteria). Under the grandfathering
treatments, undistributed profits of a foreign-invested
enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are exempted from
withholding tax.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $28,143,000 (2021: $16,117,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $1,407,000 (2021: $806,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable within one year.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

25

26

27

REEERBRIMZAEHR(E)

() RERIELEHREME :
R - BREE s rDR D B
SN SNERERINEBIMNEES
Z IR BIRBAN10% FE T (1 5
REBEMENTEE TRENI
B EE - AIR5%) - HRZH
BORRBIT - SNERER-FTF
tHE+ A=t —BZRDE&R
HER R BATAIH -

RZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—H"
HRD KM B AR RFIEREAE
M 258 528,143,000 (=&
——4 :16,117,0007T) ° Ik
B D IRZEREB %A B R
TAE S M R TE R R B TE
B1&1,407,000( =T =—%F :
806,0007T) + B AR BHEHIZ
EMBARMNBRERRREET
A RARRETE IR EF)

P& BRER T 7R
FERARE D SR A BN - RENA
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on
15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) for the purpose of
retaining participants and encouraging them to make
contributions to the growth and development of the
Group.

In view of the recent amendments to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023, the
Board proposes to terminate the existing Share Award
Scheme and adopt the Hans Energy Share Award Scheme
Il, being the new share award scheme of the Company (the
“New Share Award Scheme”), subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders in the forthcoming 2023
annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
remitted in total of $20,000,000 to the trustee for the
purchase of shares of the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. On 15 April 2019, the trustee purchased
a total number of 58,590,000 shares (the “Share
Purchase”) on the market at a total consideration of
approximately $16,581,000 for the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
remitted in total of $6,000,000 to the trustee for the
purchase of shares of the Company pursuant to the share
award scheme. On 6 January 2022, the trustee purchased
a total number of 20,000,000 shares on the market at a
total consideration of approximately $3,241,000 for the
purpose of the share award scheme (2021: Nil). As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, no grant of awards has been
made under the share award scheme.
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme

SHEZABERIN)

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract resources that are available to the Group
and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or
may bring benefit to the Group. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme would expire on 27 December 2022. In order
to enable the continuity of the share option scheme of
the Company, the termination of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and the adoption of 2022 share option scheme
(the "2022 Share Option Scheme”) were approved by
the Company’s shareholders on 15 June 2022. The 2022
Share Option Scheme is due to expire on 14 June 2032.
In view of the recent amendments to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023, the
Board proposes to terminate the 2022 Share Option
Scheme and adopt a new share option scheme (the “2023
Share Option Scheme"”), subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming 2023 annual
general meeting.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to any eligible participant including any employee,
director, consultant, agent, business affiliate, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner of the
Company or any subsidiaries of the Company, or any
supplier or provider of goods or services to the Company
or any subsidiaries of the Company, to take up options at
a consideration of $1 per each option grantee to subscribe
shares of the Company, as may be determined by the
directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of
the Company. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b)

28 LESEEZIBRHOXS (E)

BRESRIE)

R FFR

On 30 August 2018, 65,000,000 options and 62,500,000
options were granted to directors and employees of the
Group by the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme respectively. The directors estimated the weighted
average fair value of each option at the grant date to be
$0.12. The options vested on 31 May 2019 and would
then be exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August
2028.

On 23 December 2020, 5,000,000 options were granted
to a director of the Group by the Company under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The directors estimated the
weighted average fair value of each option at the grant
date to be $0.1192. The options vested on 23 December
2020 and would then be exercisable from 23 December
2020 to 22 December 2025. The share price immediately
before the date on which the options were granted was
$0.390.

On 23 December 2020, 243,763,800 options carrying
the rights to subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were
granted to Mr. David An, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of the Company, subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 25 January 2021 (“the EGM").
The independent shareholders approved the said grant
of share options at the EGM. The directors estimated the
fair value of each option at the grant date to be $0.1049.
The exercise price of each option is $0.400 per share. The
options were vested on 25 January 2021 and exercisable
from 25 January 2021 to 22 December 2025. The share
price immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was $0.390.
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

SHEZABERIN)

On 14 April 2021, 3,000,000 options were granted to a
director of the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme. The directors estimated the fair value of each
option at the grant date to be $0.1285. The exercise
price of each option is $0.340 per share. The options
will be vested on 14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14
April 2022 to 13 April 2027. The share price immediately
before the date on which the options were granted was
$0.340.

On 14 April 2021, 392,663,800 options carrying the rights
to subscribe for 392,663,800 shares were granted to
Mr. David An, a substantial shareholder and an executive
director of the Company, subject to the independent
shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting held on
2 June 2021 (“the AGM"). The independent shareholders
approved the said grant of share options at the AGM.
The directors estimated the fair value of each option at
the grant date to be $0.1194. The exercise price of each
option is $0.340 per share. The option will be vested on
14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14 April 2022 to 13
April 2027. The share price immediately before the date
on which the options were granted was $0.340.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
$15,872,000 (2021: $56,575,000) were recognised in the
consolidated income statement (note 5(b)) for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

As at the reporting date, no options were granted under
the 2022 Share Option Scheme.
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 LEEREEIRORS (&)
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) BEBRRERTEI(E)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) BRESHZERRET
follows: mE

Number of Contractual

instruments Vesting conditions life of options

IA¥A BER BRESVER

Options granted to directors

BTeEscBiE

-on 30 August 2018 65,000,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

-RZZ-\FN\A=TH RZE-NFRA=1—R 106
2EEE

- on 23 December 2020 5,000,000 100% vested on 23 December 2020 5 years

-RTZ-ZE+-A-1ZH R-ZZE-ZTF+-A=1+=H 56
gl

-on 25 January 2021 243,763,800 100% vested on 25 January 2021 5 years

-ZZ--%-A_t+&HA R-F-_—%-A-thA 55
2EEE

—on 14 April 2021 3,000,000 100% vested on 14 April 2022 6 years

-2 -FMATHEA WZEZZFMATMA 6%
rEER

—-on 2 June 2021 392,663,800 100% vested on 14 April 2022 6 years

-ZZ--%7:AZH RZT-_FMA+EA 6%
UGB

Options granted to employees

RTEE < EiE

-on 30 August 2018 62,500,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

-RZE-A\FAA=T1H RZE-NFRA=1T—H 10%F
2HEE

Total &5t 771,927,600
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise

prices of the share options are as follow:

Outstanding at

the beginning of the year
Lapsed during the year
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year

Outstanding at the end of
the year

REFRARITHR

RERR
RERR
RERRI

RERRARITH

28

Weighted
average
exercise

price

i
FHTEME

2022
S

o Yy

$0.350
$0.236

$0.351

The options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had
an exercise price of $0.236, $0.340 or $0.400 (2021:
$0.236, $0.340 or $0.400) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 4.0 years (2021: 5.0

years).

No share options were exercised during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

UEREERORS (&)

(b) MBRRFERTEI(E)
(i) FBRE BB RMnEFI

TEEWT :
Weighted
average
Number of exercise  Number of
options price options
e
BREZE THTEE BREZE
2021
—E-—F
714,927,600 $0.246 78,500,000
(3,500,000) - -
- $0.363 639,427,600
- $0.340  (3,000,000)
711,427,600 $0.350 714,927,600
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

(iii)

ZECFFR

Fair value of the options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
options granted is measured by reference to fair
value of the options granted. The estimate of fair
value of options granted is measured based on a
binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

28 LIEREE o ROXS (&)

(b) BARFEREI(E)
(iii) BREZAIAERRBR

S5 L B PR LA 45 R 2 A
B2 ARE  DEEMRE
IR 2 AR B E -
5 L B AR 2 8 e fELDA =
EABAEE - R
&t B R R 2 5
HAR -

14 April 25 January 23 December 30 August

Grant date 2021 2021 2020 2018
“B--F ZB--f k- S 3:3 “E-N\F

RHAH MAtmA —-A=tEH +=A=t=H NA=tH
Fair value at STEEAZ $0.1194 $0.1285 $0.1049 $0.1192 $0.12
measurement date AHE 0.11947 0.12857C 0.10497¢ 0.11927 0.127¢
Vesting period FEH 10 months 1 year - - 9 months
10f8A 14 9{&l A

Share price FR(E $0.375 $0.34 $0.395 $0.4 $0.236
0.3757C 03471t 0.3957¢ 047t 0.2367C

Exercise price i $0.34 $0.34 504 504 $0.236
0.347¢ 0.347¢ 0471t 047t 0.2367C

Expected volatility HHRE 39% 44% 39% 39% 54%
Option life Ll 2aa 6 years 6 years 5 years 5 years 10 years
6% 6% o RS 108

Expected dividends EE Nil % Nil % Nil % Nil % Nil %
Z% % Z% Z% T%

Risk-free interest rate @ RFI= 081% 0.82% 0.322% 0.243% 2.17%

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis
of weekly share prices of the Company over the past
years immediately preceding the grant date. The
calculation is based on the assumption that there
is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the whole life of the options and
the historical volatility of the shares of Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29 BEXRR#E
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REZMARIBD 2B E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEEGRE RS HEMKE D B
balances of each component of the Group's consolidated EHIR A S RS S S
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes FER o AAA)F(ERERAARE
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company'’s DRAREERNER RN E B
individual components of equity between the beginning IEE AR o

and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company AT
Treasury
sharesheld  Share-hased
Share Share  undershare compensation Accumulated
capital  premium award scheme reserve losses
RERS
SR A g
kx  RAEE MEFRA iMeE RS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
S T T T S
(Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b)
(etosa) (O
Balance 1 January 2021 RZB--5-F-BzEH 395664 761827 (16,581) 9416 (%,741) 1,053,585
Changes in equity for 2021; “EC-EEREY.
Loss and total comprehensive income  EREER 2 AHLE
for the year - - - - (62,470) (62,470)
Equity settled share-based transaction WEREEZRAXH - - - 56,575 - 56,575
Balance at 31 December 2021 and W=ZF=-%+-F=1-f
1 January 2022 k=B-ZE-f-H
k=33 395,664 761,827 (16,581) 65,991 (159,211) 1,047,690
Changes in equity for 2022; “ECCERRER:
Loss and total comprehensive income  ERERR2ARELE
for the year - - - - (22,600) (22,600)
Shares purchased under share award  REBRETEBENRH
scheme - - (3.241) - - (3.241)
Equity settled share-based transaction MERLERAR S - - - 15,872 - 15,872
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - (420) 420 -
Balance at 31 December 202 ~ W=E-=F+-B=1-A
k=33 395,664 761,827 (19,822) 81,443 (181,391) 1,037,721

@ HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital
Issued share capital

0]

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: BREE0.I0TZEER :

Authorised: AT -

At 31 December 2021 and 2022 RNZEZ—FR-T_—
+-A=1+—H

Issued and fully paid: BEETRAE

Notes to the Financial Statements

St 35 ¥R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR + BB EHERIN)

29 EXRHEE)

At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R=ZE-—%—A—H -

1 January 2022 and 31 December RZE-—F+=H

2022 =+—RB -—%-_—F%
—A—BRZZT_ZF
+=-A=+—~H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company's residual assets.

() Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

ZECFFR

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Cayman Islands Companies Act
(2023 Revision).

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition
in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

ERRERARIA

F

(b) B
(i) BBITRE

Number of
ordinary

shares Amount

EZEREE &8

‘000 $'000

Tk FIT

10,000,000 1,000,000

3,956,638 395,664
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(9]

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted to use and is not
available for distribution.

Treasury shares held under share award scheme

Treasury shares held under share award scheme
represents the shares purchased by the Group that
are not yet granted to directors and employees of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(r)iii). The consideration paid for
the purchase of the Company’s shares is reflected as
a decrease in the equity of the Company.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents
portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(r)(ii).

(vii) Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note

1(9)).

29 EXRKHE(E)
RETERRAR(E)

(9]

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

R FFR

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
loss (net of treasury shares held under the share award
scheme) which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$561 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: $586
million). Under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (2023
Revision), the share premium of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its memorandum and articles
of association and provided that immediately following
the payment of distribution or dividends, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Company’s articles
of association, distributions shall be payable out of the
profits or other reserves, including the share premium
account, of the Company.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and bank
balances. Capital comprises all components of equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, plus
net debt.

During 2022, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2021, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as define above) was 0.55
(2021: 0.95) as at 31 December 2022.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

SHEZABERIN)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, other financial assets measured at
amortised and bank balances.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 98%
(2021: 97%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's five largest customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than one month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MRKEREENSHMIEAAEB(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =ERRZE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. To measure
the lifetime ECLs, the Group distinguishes the trade
receivables by different customers and by segments. The
Group considers first whether any trade receivable due
from an individual customer requires specific provisions.
Credit loss rates are assigned to the trade receivable by
reference to various qualitative and quantitative factors
such as market default rate of the industry in which the
customer operates and the credit ratings, historical default
experience and the financial position of the customer,
adjusted for other factors, where applicable, to reflect
the current and forward-looking information specific
to the customer and on the macroeconomic conditions
which might affect the customer’s ability to settle the
trade receivable. Under this approach, ECL of $1,000,000
(2021: $5,000,000) was recognised for trade receivable
amounting to $179,144,000 (2021: $344,082,000) due
from a customer of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022. The management is of the opinion that
the ECL of the remaining trade receivables of $60,528,000
(2021: $20,209,000) were immaterial to the Group's
financial statements.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is disclosed in note 20(b).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 FiEREERESMIAQNAE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERBE)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost mainly
consist of other receivables. These mainly comprised of
deposits and other receivables due from third parties. The
Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each debtor. In determining
the ECL, the Group has taken into account the credit
ratings, historical default experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors,
where applicable, that are specific to the debtors and
macroeconomic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate, in estimating the probability of default
of each of these financial assets occurring within their
respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. During the year ended
31 December 2021, lifetime ECL of $8,787,000 was fully
recognised for other receivables due from a debtor that
was in financial difficulty.

Bank balances

In respect of bank balances, the Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by placing deposits with financial institutions
that meet the established credit rating or other criteria.
Given these high credit ratings, management does not
expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 47% of total bank balances
were deposited with a financial institution in Hong Kong
(2021: 56%).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MKEREERSMIAAARE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) E£RBMERR

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
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2022
—EoCE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
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Bank loans RITER 1993712 133780 338812 - 671964 SBA839 253750 130433 47303 41518 90584 TE81TS
Legse [iabilties 58k 6,444 5431 8417 29349 49647 3! 6,058 1887 59 34191 80 279
Trade and other AR
payatles 5 614813 - - S BI8B 61813 41495 - - 1 Y3
Amounts due to releted ERTER
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MEEREERESMIAEAARE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (o) FIZEEB:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future MEEBRAS—ESBHRIAZAR
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because B ARKIFESRERRATISF
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest RO R BT SR RS o AR
rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. The Group's EECHMERBREZERERITE
bank loans at 31 December 2022 were issued at fixed Ko REBWN_ZT-_—F+—4
rates and therefore did not expose the Group to cash —+—RAZRITEFIRETEFE
flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as 8 AmirEFAREEmER
monitored by management is set out below. SRFEER - REEZ FEH

MR EIREEIEWEH N T »
Interest rate profile FIZHER

2022 pAA
—E—= —E-—F
Effective Effective

interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRFI= =8 Y ES £
$'000 $'000

T T

Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:

Lease liabilities HERE 2.6% - 6.8% 32,322 1.7%-6.8% 27,994

Bank loans RITER 5.4% -7.5% 584,839 6.5%-7.0% 768,175

Total borrowings BEEBE 617,161 796,169
The Group’s bank balances are short-term in nature, REBENRITHEBRAEHNE - Fx
and potential variations in interest rates do not have a MR E RS T e Y AREFEN %
significant impact on the results of the Group. BIERRERFTE -

@ HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements

Pt 5 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR - BB FHAERIN)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk

0}

(i)

R FFR

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of (i) storage and warehousing
income and (ii) port and transshipment income
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollar (“"HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 BMKEREEREMIAAAMBE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb:E)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (iii) ERENEERR

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRINHEAEBER RS
at the end of the reporting period to currency RAEAEERANGBHERE
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities BB EETIEZE
denominated in a currency other than the functional WREENBEMEEZ
currency of the entity to which they relate. For BERERFS - 25
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure s BEBeEUNETY
are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the T~ ERERHEERBIEE
spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting RIE o [EH G INETFSE
from the translation of the financial statements of BHREREAEB R EE
foreign operations into the Group's presentation ST ER -
currency.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SN /= B
(R T5IR)
2022
—E-C
usbD
E
$'000
Tr
Trade and other receivables Z 5 REMEWZIE 263,098 - 351,230
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTER 54,086 1,391 7,013
Trade and other payables Z 5 REMENZIE (127,988) (14,356) (12,147)

Net exposure arising from recognised & HREE Kk & (&
assets and liabilities FELRRFEE 189,196 (12,965) 346,096
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iv)

ZECFFR

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit/(loss) after tax (and
retained profits) that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the
United States dollar would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies.

30 BIXEREEREMIAAARE(E)

ExEkERE)

(iv) BRBEDH
TRERMAEENRRS
Hi KA S B K@K 2 E =X
RERAETMES  BRR
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REBBRBEEEN (&
B) (KRR 2 Bnege
ok E  BHRBRR
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CERETLHLHEMEBERE
EBZAMEHMZHE
KEE o

(d)

2021
B 5
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) on Increase/  (decrease) on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
BRE & A RHER
HNEER REBEA AN 2 i
£/ o4, =04
(&) (R2) ()
$'000
Tr
usb e 10% 1,412 10% 1,215
(10%) (1,412) (10%) (1,215)
RMB ARH 10% (1,297)  NATEAH  NATER
(10%) 1,297  NATNER  NATNER

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit before
tax and equity measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Commodity price risk

(f)

The Group is engaged in trading of oil and petroleum
products. Prices of oil and petroleum products are affected
by a wide range of global and domestic factors which are
beyond the control of the Group. The fluctuations in such
prices may have favourable or unfavourable impacts on
the Group.

Fair values
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

30
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 BIXEMEERESMTIAQNAEBE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued) f DREE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAAREBEIEZESREE

value (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the only
financial instruments of the Group carried at fair
value were other investments (See note 15). These
instruments are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis and their fair value measurements fall into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair values of other investments are determined
with reference to the fair value of the underlying
financial assets which are market unobservable.

The gains and losses arising from the remeasurement
of the financial assets measured at FVPL are
presented in the “Net fair value (losses)/gains on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
line item in the consolidated income statement.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MIKEREERSMIAAAE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued) f) DREE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BRAREHEZERMEE
value (continued) BRaEE)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The movement during the year in the balance of
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

BRE=BRAREFNEZ
BR(E)
E=ZRAnBEHAELEHRZ
FANEHIT

Financial assets measured at FVOCI:

At 1 January 2021

Payment for purchases

Changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Payment for purchases
Changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year

At 31 December 2022

Financial assets measured at FVPL:

At 1 January 2021

Payment for purchases

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss during the year

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

Proceed from distribution

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss during the year

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2022

RAAEFAHMEEKEZ
TREE -
R-_ZT_—%—H—H
BERIE

F RN R R ENGERER Y
AR EEH

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H
;=T —F—H—H
BE R
FRAREMEEY S
WRZANEEE)
n= F+-A=+—H
BARBEAERCSREE
n-—E-_—F—H—H
BExE

R-EBE-—F+-A=+—H~K
—E-—%—AF—H
EEF)’T%‘TAIE

FARBaERZAINEES

PE LR
R-E-_—_F+-A=+—H

118,557
244,562

309,336

672,455
105,500

(140,000)

637,955

49,402
24,956

70,031

144,389
(13,011)

(8,066)
(27)

123,285
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued)

0]

ZECFFR

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

fhER

Investment in an unlisted company
(measured as FVOCI)

R—RFELTRANKRE
(RAREGARMEZE
WEtE)

Valuation techniques

FRBRREE

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The fair value of the investment in an unlisted
company is estimated using a discounted cash flow
model (2021: based on transaction price). The cost
of equity was determined based on the Capital Asset
Pricing Model with additional risk premium built in
to reflect the risks specific to the unlisted company.
The discount rate was then estimated by using the
debt/equity weights of the unlisted company. As at
31 December 2022, it was estimated that with all
other variables held constant, an increase/decrease in
discount rate by 5% would have decreased/increased
the net assets by $54 million and $63 million
respectively.

The fair value of the investment in an investment
fund is recorded based on valuations supplied by the
fund managers with valuation difference adjustments
made by the management of the Group. The
fund managers estimate the fair value by applying
appropriate valuation techniques such as comparing
to latest transaction price and market comparable by
comparison with comparable companies and after
applying a liquidity discount if applicable.

ERRFEERAT

Discounted cashflow model

MEEREEREHIAAARE(E)

) DAREGE)
() BROAREBEHEZERMEE

RamE#=E)
BRAFE=RANEAEZ
BRI(E)
Significant Weighted
unobservable inputs average
EXTTRERARE T
Future ridership growth rate 7.9%
ARFEBHERE
Future ridership growth rate 6.1%
FRERARE
Discount rate 7.44%
BIRE

FE=R DA EFEMERNGERN
PSEIVN €71

R—RIELEMRFEEN AR BERA
BERFRERN (ZE=-_—F: &ZR
RSB ) RAGET o RIERAZIRIE
BEREETERAUBED  EPMNA
T RIS (B DA I R 3 _E A A
REFERBR - REBAFHAIELTA
RIMETRS, WA E SR G TR R -
WZZBE-=—F+=-A=+—8 " &
BHMEBHRFTEHERT - 7137
RN 5% S FEEFED R

e —

W, 18 A05,4008 7T K 6,3008 7T

REESHARBEEREESEEE
WA hERE  WAAKRENEIEE
ETHEZRAE - E2LERBK
REE R HERM - EaE &L
BAREITHE - KRB EH T IH(E
RSN - WEEABR TR
FREMEITINR - BRI RAE
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31

32

33

SETRHERIN)

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain non-current assets under
operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year was
approximately $121 million (2021: $132 million). The leases are
negotiated for a lease term of 1 week to 6 years (2021: 1 week
to 7 years). None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

31

REHERH
AEEMAERHBEA
AEBERBLEHEEREETIER

FRMBERZASREFERAOE
12V (ZE=—F 1 1.32187L)
MEERIEESHZcF (T ——
FEAESETF) 2 FHHEITHER -
ZENEREREXARS -

AEBRET A HEH 2 EETHE R
ZARKEREMEEBELT

Within one year —F A
After one year but within two years —FREMRFR
After two years but within three years MEREBE=FA
After three years but within four years —FRENFR
Beyond four years P&

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2022, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of interests in a limited partnership of $78 million (31
December 2021: $78 million and the purchase of additional
shares in BTHL of approximately $106 million). The purpose
of the limited partnership is primarily achieving capital
appreciation and participating primarily through investments in
equity and equity-related securities, mainly in companies based
in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar
investment focus.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

32

33

26,066 33,049
10,521 7,586
9,232 6,946
6,683 7,240
2,329 9,661
54,831 64,482

BARIE
RZB-_—F+-A=+—"H K&
ERmETOERREBEREREE
BAREZDRZERAGERAAER
7800BT(—E-—F+_-_A=+—
B :7,8008 T KIEEWBTHL I 5
#91.06187TC) - ZERAERARIMNE
K FEIFEBRERERRES
HEEREAREE REHRFTER
R KR K& BN A A R LA RIS E &
BT MAEES -

BEAEZEARS
BRTAMBRESERBENRZ S REE
R AEBEHERBBIBUTEAR
5

FTREEEAEME
ITZEBRBAEME XN ARRE
EZER(RME7HRE) -

ERERTR B TER ERAIE
UABHBIER B ERER I
w5 -
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34 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 34 R-Z-—#+_-A=+—HKAT
BEHEERER

Non-current asset FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries RIB AT 2 S 1,051,489 1,051,489

Current assets REEE

Prepayment and other receivables TE TR IE K B At R IE 6,551 3,764

Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE S ] 668,185 819,355

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEFEIEAR 41,934 9,188
716,670 832,307

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals HAbE R RIBRETIRER 1,750 1,748

Amount due to a subsidiary FETB B A R FRIE 728,688 834,358
730,438 836,106

Net current liabilities REBAEEFE (13,768) ¢ ( 3799)

NET ASSETS BEEFRE 1,037,721 1,047,690

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital R& R 395,664 395,664

Reserves B 642,057 652,026

TOTAL EQUITY R 1,037,721 1,047,690

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on RN-E-_=F=-—A_+_HESEES
22 March 2023. HOE R RETEE
Yang Dong Zhang Lei
B% RE
Director Director
EZE EF

—Eo—gER ESERERAT @



Notes to the Financial Statements

FA S SRR B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A THIR -

35

36

37

HAEEAERRIN)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Group has
repaid bank loans of $584,191,000 and obtained a new bank
facility amounting to $683,978,000.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation of the consolidation
financial statements.

35

36

37

BEERRKERS

RZZE-_—_F+_A=+—H =&
ERBAEENEEN AR R &L
¥ i% 75 AVand Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited * ER B R &
SEMKT o kBRI SRR E®R
FURRRIEE -

HEERNIFAREN

WMEHKRE  AEEDEZRITER
584,191,000 7T A K R 1S #THY ER 77 Rl
% %8 /683,978,000 °

kBT
MOLBRBFOAFAE - URTAARF
BiEaUBHRRNETH
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements and HKFRS

38

BRMBRERNF1THR - RESA

ARG ERFVRIETT A - HHFHL
H)E P R B BRI e R BN

EEMGERBE-_E-__F+=A
=+ —HIEFEEMERERZIEET ~
FTERRREBURER 2 E
HEAWGRRERHGELY 558
TR RSB EMZIEH R LB
R - BEREE_ZT-__F+=H8
=+ —HIEFEHRER » IARER
M AT HRE - ZEBRRBIERE
B E@FERE 2 LA THERT ©

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5 R
ZEmRZ
R IRES

1 January 2023
—E-_=%—HA—H

1 January 2023
—E-=F—HF—H

Practice Statement 2, Making materiality 2% - BtEZME1ELHHEF - S5

REIKE

judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting
BA1LAT A ER

and errors: Definition of accounting
estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income
Taxes: Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of E#H & EAFE 1SS - A FHF
BIZ25) - BESH

financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

ERRERARIA

BEASFERNESRIERT AN - BTH
policies, changes in accounting estimates #& - BaHE i1 R iEzR072 87 (55T -

BB EFHERFE12RERTA - XGE—
RBHEER B BEIEFELIE

VY B Y

1 January 2023
—E-=F—H—H

1 January 2023
—T-=%—H—H

1 January 2024
—Z-FE—-A—H

AEBEREFEEREARMZEE
EOFE - 25/ ARERRK
N2 FER AR e 47 B A TS R
EEBRTE -



Five Year Financial Summary
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WATTHIR + BEFERRERRSIN)

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=t-BIEE

2019 2021
—TNF z —T_—F
(Note)
(%)
$'000 $'000
T T
RESULTS E 3
Continuing operations  EEEL LK
Revenue A 141,556 314,845 2,481,906 1,974,767 694,851
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrFigT(E5HE), & (89,516) (127,824) (38,342) (8,154) 3,434
Income tax BIEET (9,099) (3,552) (994) (5,364) (1,762)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ ER(E1E), & F (98,615) (131,376) (39,336) (13,518) 1,672
Discontinued operation #& & %7
Profit for the year FRRA 35,164 1,234,689 - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year R (&), HF (63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336) (13,518) 1,672
Attributable to; FEAL
Equity shareholders of RRAIRER
the Company (62,406) 1,108,620 (40,095) (16,047) 207
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E{ZRR 25 (1,045) (5,307) 759 2,529 1,465
(63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336) (13,518) 1,672

At 31 December
Rt=A=t-A

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BEMAE 1,954,760 2,074,490 2,020,480 2,286,716 1,976,729
Total liabilities aERE 2,039,142 1,120,770 1,034,251 934,351 769,703
Net (liabilities)/assets (BR)/BERE (84,382) 953,720 986,229 1,352,365 1,207,026
Non-controlling interests  3E#E AR (7,590) 15,095 17,112 20,243 19,985
Total (deficit/equity RABIREENM

attributable to equity BEH) s

shareholders of the

Company (76,792) 938,625 969,117 1,332,122 1,187,041
Total (deficit)/equity BB, fEw (84,382) 953,720 986,229 1,352,365 1,207,026

Note: The comparative figure of revenue for the year ended 31 December  Mizt: HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
2021 has been restated to conform with the current year's ZWALREFTEEEY - UHFERFE
presentation. E2HFH -

@ HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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